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CORPORATE PROFILE

Founded in 1910, Stewart Enterprises is
the second largest provider of products
and services in the death care industry in
the United Stutes. The Company currently
owns and operates 221 funeral homes and
139 cemereries in the United States and
Puerto Rico. Through its subsidiaries, the
Company provides a complete range of
Jfuneral merchandise and services, along
with cemetery property, merchandise and
services, both at the time of need and on

a preneed basis.




DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

By staying focused on our objectives—concentrating on the customer and
delivering products and services well—we achieved good results for the

2007 fiscal year.

These are the highlights:
*+ Net earnings from continuing operations grew 4.6 percent from fiscal
2006—to $39.3 million from $37.6 million. On a diluted per share basis,

net earnings from continuing operations improved to $0.38 from $0.35.

» Revenue increased 1.7 percent—to $522.8 million from $514.2 million.
Cemetery revenue grew by 4.1 percent, to $243.5 million from
$234.0 million. Funeral revenue decreased 0.3 percent. to $279.3 million

from $280.2 million.

* Cash flow from operations was $81.9 million in fiscal 2007 compared
to $90.1 million in fiscal 2006. Fiscal 2006 included $12.7 million
more cash received from unusual withdrawals from our preneed trust
funds than fiscal 2007. (The unusual withdrawals reflected preneed
services that had been delivered in earlier periods for which cash had
not been withdrawn from the preneed trust funds.) Additionally, we
paid $9.3 million in net tax payments during fiscal 2007 compared to
$4.2 million during fiscal 2006.

< As of October 31, 2007, our outstanding net debt balance (debt minus

cash and cash equivalents) was $378.8 million.

» During the fiscal year, we paid dividends of $10.2 million, or $0.10

per share.

STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
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Performing with integrity

+ We issued $250.0 million of senior convertible notes, which reduced our
borrowing costs. We also improved our capital structure by repurchasing
564.2 million in stock. An additional $50.0 million of stock repurchases

have been authorized for fiscal 2008.

The decrease in funeral revenue last year mainly reflected an unusual item
that had added to fiscal 2006 revenue. The decrease also reflected a
2.2 percent decline in same-store funeral services performed. The drop in
funeral calls was consistent with what the industry experienced, and
we believe it was the result of a decrease in deaths in our markets.
However, though funeral calls were down, our same-siore funeral
operations achieved a 3.4 percent increase in average revenue per
traditional funeral service and a 7.4 percent increase in average revenue

per cremation service.

Overall, our results establish fiscal 2007 as another successful year for
our company. We generated cash flow, grew our revenues and increased

our earnings per share.

Serving the customer well is all-important.

Last year, we served an average of 300 customers daily through our 221
funeral homes and 139 cemeteries, which we operated in 24 states and
Puerto Rico. In some way—whether through traditional or nontraditional
services, arranged for on a preneed or at-need basis—we touched
approximately 109,000 families during the year. We touched an even
larger number if we count the friends and relatives who participated in
those services. A good indicator of how well we met our customers’ needs

is the customer satisfaction scores they gave us. These scores went up
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again last year, as they had in each of the four preceding years. We value
this input not only because it is good to know how we are performing,
but, more importantly, because customers with good experiences are more

likely to strongly recommend our businesses to others.

Customization, personalization and simplification

Good and improving customer satisfaction scores can be attributed to a
number of factors, not the least of which is simply listening to what our
customers want from us. Research, as well as our own experience, tells us
that changing generations have changing expectations about the way they and
their loved ones should be memorialized and buried. We have to be able o
accommaodate these changing preferences if we expect our business to grow
and prosper. The custom funeral planning, merchandising and cremalion
initiatives we put in place several years ago have better prepared us for
today’s consumer. In addition, architectural changes we have made, such
as putiing reception centers in many of our funeral homes and adding
cremation gardens in our cemeteries, have enabled us to further satisfy

families while growing revenue.

Another way we are improving our customer focus is through better market
segmentation. We recognize that groups within our larger audience have
special needs and wants, and we are identifying and listening to these
groups. Offering private mausoleums, or family estates, is an example of
both segmenting the market better and utilizing our resources betler.
There is a segment of our audience that wants more memorialization
to tell their family story, and has the financial means to support that

desire. We have some great cemelery properties in our organization that

We make lasting
impressions on others
and take pride in
maintaining our funeral
homes and cemeteries—
Catawba Memorial
Park, Funerals and

Cremations, Hickory, NC
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Celebrating 97 years c.>f SerVice

can accommodate family estates. Our job is to put the two together,

something we will definitely continue to work on in 2008,

Besides customizing and personalizing our offerings, we have simplified
them by consolidating them into easy-to-understand packages. An
itemnized price list can be quite overwhelming. Therefore, we offer
families easy-to-understand packages along with the itemized price list.
Doing so both simptlifies the family’s decision making and benefits
our operations. In fiscal 2007, offering packages helped us increase our
same-store average revenue per traditional funeral service by 3.4 percent
and our average per cremation service by 7.4 percent. We are pleased with
our progress in this area and will continue refining our packages to

further improve our per service revenue in fiscal 2008.

In today’s technology-driven world, consumers are looking for ways to
do things faster and more easily than before, We already offer online
guest books and video tributes, and will explore other opportunities to

integrate technology into funeral services and memorials,

Prearrangements and combination operations

The value to families of making funeral and cemetery planning as convenient
as possible is evidenced by two of our successful long-standing business
strategies and competitive strengths: prearrangements and combination

operations.

More than 60 years ago, our company’s founders realized the value 10

families of preplanning and prepaying for cemetery property, services and
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products. Since then, we have added funeral services and products to our
preplanning portfolio. From a consumer’s perspective, it is an opportunity
to make informed decisions about one's own funeral preferences
and document them so it will be easier for family members to plan the
service when the time of need arrives. Moreover, by prepaying for the
arrangements, consumers freeze the cost of tomorrow's services at today's
prices, which may lighten the family’s ultimate financial burden.
From our company’s perspective, preplanning provides an opportunity to
build market share. As of Octeber 31, 2007, the estimated future value of
our preneed backlog of funeral and cemetery products and services is
approximately $2.0 billion. This revenue will be recognized in the future

as the prepaid products and services are delivered.

Approximately 47 percent of our cemeteries have a funeral home on-site that
is operated in conjunction with a cemetery. These combination operations
enable families to make all necessary arrangements at one location. The
benefits to us are the ability to leverage resources, increase the call volume
of the funeral home by drawing on the cemetery's heritage, and increase the
number of cemetery events by drawing on the funeral home's business.
We have been realizing these benefits since owning our first combination

operation in the late 1970s.

We’re building on a strong foundation of leadership.

In our near century of business, our organization has been guided by
experienced and capable leaders who have been supported by strong
executives and dedicated employees. Through their hard work, these teams

have grown a small privately owned company into the second largest

We meet consumers’
preferences by
providing enhanced
cremation and
alternative service
offerings—

San Francisco
Columbarium,

San Francisco, CA

STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
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Offering our customers pers Onalization

provider of funeral and cemetery products and services in the

United States.

In March of 2007, 1 was honored and privileged to join Stewart Enterprises
as president and chief executive officer. Since then, 1 have been working
alongside Tom Kitchen, our senior executive vice president and chief
financial officer who had ably served as acting CEO since mid-June 2006.
My predecessors made great progress in consolidating and integrating
our operations to better obtain the benefits of size and scale. From
streamlining processes to implementing new business systems, they
sought io provide better customer service in an efficient and cost-effective

manner. We will strive to build on their success.

Becoming best in class is our goal.

We have developed a new long-term business strategy with three
components: our Best in Class initiative, our Innovation initiative and our
Acquisition initiative. During 2008, we will focus on the Best in Class
initiative. We will implement best practices geared toward improving the
overall performance—in terms of earnings, cash flow and return on
invested capital—of our existing funeral home and cemetery businesses.
We are applying a continuous-improvement mindset to improve all of our
business processes at both the home office and our individual locations.
Having once been a strong acquisition company, we want to fully realize

the synergies that come from being a large company.

When we compare our businesses, we see that their performance results

follow a bell-shaped curve: We have star businesses and businesses that
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are waiting to become stars. We believe our Best in Class initiative will
enable us 1o narrow the performance gap while moving our company’s
average performance upward. Our Best in Class initiative has several
components, including cultural standards, key measures and improved
processes. Within each of these components, we will measure both results

and result-oriented behaviors,

Cultural standards. Every great organization has its own documented and
practiced cultural standards. Using our stated purpose, caring for people,
making o difference®, as the underlying foundation. we recently created
a set of s1x “caring” cultural standards for our company: communication,
appearance, respect, initiative, name recognition and gratitude. We want
these shared attitudes, values and practices to shape employee behavior,
so that all of our employees will be high-performing people who live by
great values in the workplace. We believe if we care for our people and help
them to be successful in the jobs they are paid to do, then they will be more

motivated, have more ideas and creativity, and ultimately perform better.

Key measures. Key measures are those few and powerful metrics that
drive performance at the local level. The markets in which we operale may
differ, but our key measures will be consistent throughout our organization,
providing a common performance language across all of our businesses.
The measurement system we have developed allows us to restrict our
focus to those activities that most enable our locations to achieve desired
results. The system provides a diagnostic tool to help managers identify
performance problems. It also provides proven solutions when a key

measure is found to be tracking negatively. For example, one of the

Providing private
mausoleums, or family
estates, is one way

we meet families’
memorialization needs—
Sylvan Abbey Memorial
Park, Clearwater, FL

STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
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Living by our Carlng cultural standards

key metrics is the number of funeral calls. If funeral calls are below
expectations, our program provides various suggestions taken from our
best-performing locations that the manager can use to help grow funeral
calls. It is worth noting that our first key measure is customer satisfaction,

which further emphasizes our customer-focused mindset.

Improved processes. By further refining our internal processes, we will
free up more time to invest in growing and improving our business. For
example, we want our emnployees to spend as much time as possible with the
customer. One step we are taking is to review our information processes
and procedures from contract writing through financial reporting. Another
step, to be implemented in 2008, is a company-wide conversion to a
new Web-based, integrated software system designed specifically for
the death care industry. The system will streamline our collection and
analysis of data and make the data more easily available throughout

the organization.

Additionally, we believe the time management spends in operations is
critical to achieving the desired results of our Best in Class initiative. To
this end, we are working to ensure that management spends more time
on training, sharing best practices and implementing solutions at each of

our funeral home and cemetery locations.

As to the Innovation and Acquisition initiatives, they will come second.
Although we are always considering new opporiunities, we believe it is

important to first get the best overall performance possible in our base
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business, and then optimize that success by adding new products and

services and making acquisitions.

We appreciate our employees, customers and shareholders.

At the end of the day, we want our employees going home at night
knowing that they have been successful at better serving their customers and
growing the value of our company. and that their efforts are appreciated,
And knowing, if they need help, that it is readily available. We want our
customers to be well satisfied with the products and services received.
And to know, if they want something different, that we will do our best to
provide it. Finally, we want our shareholders to know that we appreciate
the trust they have placed in this company, and that we are working hard

to deliver a good return on their investment.

Thomas J. Crawford
President
Chief Executive Officer

January 31, 2008

Qur funeral homes offer

a complete range of
services and products
at the time of need
and on a preneed
basis—Johnson County
Funeral Chapel,
Overland Park, K8
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

Our Class A common stock trades on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market under the symbol STEL

On November 30, 2007, the closing sale price
as reported by the NASDAQ Stock Market was
$8.20. The following table sets forth, for the periods
indicated, the range of high and low sale prices, as
reported by the NASDAQ Stock Market. As of
November 30, 2007, there were 1.130 record holders
of our Class A common stock. Record holders
include persons holding Class A commen stock on
behalf of one or more beneficial owners who are not
holders of record.

Fiscal Year 2007 High Low
Fourth Quarter $9.13  $6.25
Third Quarter 8.43 6.79
Second Quarter B.50 7.05
First Quarter 7.18 5.88
Fiscal Year 2006 High Low
Fourth Quarter $6.40  $5.07
Third Quarter 6.09 4.96
Second Quarter 6.04 4.87
First Quarter 393 4.78

We declared quarterly dividends of $.025 per share
on Class A and Class B common stock during fiscal
years 2007 and 2006.

Transfer Agent & Registrar
Shareholders requesting a change of address, records
or information about lost certificates should contact:

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
480 Washington Blvd.

Jersey City, NJ 07310-1900

Toll Free (800) 635-9270
www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
639 Loyola Avenue, Suite 1800
New Orleans, LA 70113

SEC Form 10-K

A copy of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K is available free of charge on the
same day it is filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission at the Company's Web site,
www.stewartenterprises.com. To receive a copy of
the Form 10-K without charge, contact:

Martin de Lauréal

Senior Vice President,

Corporate Development and Investor Relations
Stewart Enterprises, Inc.

P.O. Box 11250

New Orleans. LA 70181-1250 USA

Phone (504) 729-1400

Fax (504) 729-1438

mdelaureal @stei.com

Corporate Office Address
Stewart Enterprises, Inc.
1333 §. Clearview Pkwy.
Jefferson, LA 70121
(504) 729-1400
www.stewartenterprises.com
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Total Return Comparison

The graph and corresponding table below provide a comparison of the cumulative total shareholder return
on our Class A common stock, the S&P 500 Index and an industry index made up of Service Corporation
International (“SCI™) and Carriage Services, Inc. (*Carriage”) for our last five fiscal years. We believe that
we, SCI and Carriage are the only major death care providers that have been publicly traded in the
United States throughout the entire period covered by the graph. The information in the graph is based on
the assumption of a $100 investment on October 31, 2002 at the closing price on that date and includes the
reinvestment of dividends. The returns of each issuer in the industry index are weighted according to its
stock market capitalization at the beginning of each period for which a return is indicated.

Cumulative Total Shareholder Return

$400
£ $300 2
5 /
o
@]
= $200
£
g‘ $100

$0

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

—&— Stewart Enterprises —#%— S&P Index —®— Industry Index

Cumulative Total Shareholder Return

October 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Stewart Enterprises 100.0 746 1302 94.3 1163  173.0
S&P Index 1000 1143 1250 1359 1581 180.4
[ndustry Index 100.0 1087 160.2 1810 1845 3109
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X) Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2007
OR
() Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Commission File Number: 1-15449

STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in @-@éﬂ'é%?ﬂng

LOUISIANA ” 72-0693290
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) AR 7 / /Uﬁéls Employer ldentification No.}
1333 South Clearview Parkway
Jefferson, Louisiana Wﬂshlngton 70121
(Address of principal executive offices} ™~ ﬂ@ﬂ * QC {(Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (504) 729-1400

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

Title of each Class Name of Exchange on which registered
Class A Common Stock, No Par Value The NASDAQ Stock Market LLL.C
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a2 well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes _X
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, Yes___ No_X_

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No__

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will
not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part II1
of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. ___

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer as defined in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. Large accelerated filer _X  Accelerated filer ___ Non-Accelerated filer

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ___ No _X_

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of April 30, 2007, was approximately
$707,000,000.

The number of shares of the registrant’s Class A common stock, no par value per share, and Class B common stock, no par value
per share, outstanding as of November 30, 2007, was 94,671,012 and 3,555,020, respectively.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the proxy statement in connection with the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders are incorporated in Part LI of this
Report.
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Cautionary Note

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that are generally identifiable through the use of
words such as “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,” “will” and similar
expressions. These forward-looking statements rely on assumptions, estimates and predictions that could be
inaccurate and that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially.
Important factors that may cause our actual results to differ materially from ¢xpectations reflected in our forward-
looking statements include those described in Item 1A. “Risk Factors.” Forward-looking statements speak only as
of the date of this report, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise such statements to reflect new

circumstances or unanticipated events as they occur.

LIIYS

PARTI
item I. Business
Operations

Founded in 1910, Stewart Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company™) is the second largest provider of funeral and
cemetery products and services in the death care industry in the United States, Through our subsidiaries, we provide
a complete range of funeral merchandise and services, along with cemetery property, merchandise and services, both
at the time of need and on a preneed basis. As of October 31, 2007, our operations included 221 funeral homes and
139 cemeteries in 24 states within the United States and in Puerto Rico.

General. We believe that we operate one or more of the premier death care facilities in each of our
principal markets, which are primarily in larger metropolitan areas in the Southern, Western, Mid-Atlantic and Mid-
Western states. In our view, a “premier” facility is one that is among the most highly regarded facilities in its
market ar¢a in terms of a number of factors such as tradition, heritage, reputation, physical size, volume of business,
available inventory, name recognition, aesthetics and/or potential for development or expansion. While funeral
homes and cemeteries in the United States perform an average of approximately 110 funerals and 160 burials per
year, our facilities perform an average of approximately 270 funerals and 375 burials per year. In addition,
approximately 41 percent of our properties are located in California, Florida and Texas, which are three of the four
states with the highest populations over age 65, an age group that represents a large portion of our target market.

We operate most of our funeral homes and cemeteries in “clusters.” Clusters are groups of funeral homes
and cemeteries located close enough to one another that their operations can be integrated to achieve economies of
scale. For example, clustered facilities can share vehicles, embalming services, inventories of caskets and other
merchandise and, most significantly, personnel, including prearrangement sales personnel; thus, we are able to
decrease our costs and expand our sales and marketing effectiveness at each location, By virtue of their proximity to
one another, clustered facilities also create opportunities for more integrated and sophisticated management of
operations.

Funeral operations. Cur funeral homes offer a complete range of funeral services and products both at the
time of need and on a preneed basis. Our services and products include family consuitation, removal and
preparation of remains, the use of funeral home facilities for visitation, worship and funeral services, transportation
services, flowers and caskets. In addition to traditional funeral services, all of our funeral homes offer cremation
products and services. Most of our funeral homes have a non-denominational chapel on the premises, which allows
family visitation and religious services to take place at the same location. We also earn commissions on the sale of
insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts that will be funded by life insurance or annuity contracts issued by third
party insurers when we act as an agent on the sale of the policies. Funeral operations accounted for 53 percent of
our revenues for fiscal year 2007,

Cemetery operations, Our cemetery operations sell cemetery property and related merchandise, including
lots, lawn crypts, family and community mausoleums, monuments, markers and burial vaults, and also provide
burial site openings and closings and inscriptions. Cemetery property and merchandise sales are made both at the
time of need and on a preneed basis. We also maintain cemetery grounds under cemetery perpetual care contracts




and local laws. Cemetery operations accounted for approximately 47 percent of our revenues for fiscal year 2007,
which is a significantly larger percentage than either of our two largest competitors. We believe this is a
competitive advantage because families generally return to the same cemetery for multiple generations to bury
family members. Cemetery property often becomes an important part of a family’s heritage, and family members
who relocate are often returned to their home cemetery to be buried. We build on our relationships with our
cemetery customers by offering additional cemetery property to related family members and by offering related
products and services such as cemetery merchandise and funeral services at one of our funeral homes located on the
cemetery grounds or nearby. Approximately 38 percent of our total cemetery acreage is available for future
development.

Combination funeral home and cemetery operations. Approximately 47 percent of our cemeteries have a
funeral home onsite that is operated in conjunction with the cemetery, which we refer to as a combination operation.
We believe combination operations represent a competitive advantage because they offer families the convenience
of complete death care services at a single location. A family that is planning a burial in one of our cemeteries
often perceives our onsite funeral home to be a more desirable location for funeral services than an unaffiliated
offsite funeral home. Thus, the call-volume of the funeral home is enhanced by the heritage of the cemetery, and,
over time, the volume of cemetery events increases as well. In addition, combination operations enhance our
purchasing power, enable us to employ more sophisticated management systems and allow us to share facilities,
equipment and personnel, including a preneed sales force, resulting in lower average operating costs and expanded
marketing and sales opportunities. As a result, our combination operations usually generate higher operating
margins compared to our stand-alone funeral homes and cemeteries. In addition to our combination operations,
approximately 37 percent of our cemeteries are located within the same market as, and operated in conjunction with,
one or more of our nearby funeral homes.

Third-party affiliations. We have entered into-various agreements with faith-based organizations and non-
profit entities and plan to pursue more of these types of affiliations. In 1987, we entered into an agreement with the
Catholic Archdiocese of New Orleans pursuant to which we constructed and own a2 mausoleum on one of our
cemeteries, and the Archdiocese of New Orleans assists in the promotion of the sale of crypts in the mausoleum to
Catholic parishioners of the Archdiocese of New Orleans. The Company pays the Archdiocese of New Orleans a
percentage of the revenue from the sale of all crypts in the mausoleum. Additionally, in fiscal year 1994, we
constructed a funeral home and mausoleum on the grounds of the New Orleans Cemetery of the Firemen’s
Charitable and Benevolent Association, a non-profit organization. We own and operate the funeral home and
mausoleum.

In 1997, we entered into lease agreements with the Archdiocese of Los Angeles whereby we have the right
to construct and operate funeral homes on the sites of up to nine cemeteries owned and operated by the Archdiocese.
As of October 31, 2007, five of these funeral homes were operating, and on November 2, 2007, we opened the sixth
funeral home. The leases expire in 2039, and we do not have an option to renew. We account for these leases as
operating leases. In October 2007, we entered into a contract with the Archdiocese of Los Angeles to manage the
preneed sales at eleven of the Archdiocese cemeteries. We expect sales to begin in 2008.

We have a mausoleum construction and sales business, Acme Mausoleum Corporation (“ACME"), which
constructs community mausoleums on third-party cemetery property and assists in the selling effort of these crypts.
In return for these services, ACME receives a sales commission for the crypts sold and construction revenue. Over
the last 50 years, ACME has developed relationships with the Catholic Church in approximately 70 dioceses in 39
states.

Preneed arrangements. We believe that we are distingunished from our competitors by our strong emphasis
on, and more than 60-year history of experience with, preneed sales. Preneed plans enable families to specify in
advance and prepay for cemetery property and funeral and cemetery services and products. We market our preneed
properties, services and products domestically through a full-time staff of approximately 1,000 commissioned sates
counselors. We estimate that as of October 31, 2007, the future value of our preneed backlog of funeral and
cemetery products and services (including estimated future earnings on funds held in trust and build-up in the face
value of third-party insurance contracts, in each case using projected returns) represented approximately $2.0 billion
of revenue to be recognized in the future as these prepaid products and services are delivered. Our methods for
calculating the future value of our preneced backlog are discussed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of




Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in Item 7. Our expertise in preneed sales has historically
developed out of, and now complements, our strong cemetery operations. This is because cemetery property, such
as a burial plot, is usually the first purchase a family will make when considering preneed arrangements. We build
on our relationships with our preneed cemetery property customers by offering them additional preneed products
and services such as cemetery merchandise and funeral services. Our focus on preneed cemetery property sales is
also important because these sales generate current revenues and higher current cash flows than other types of
prenced sales.

Customization, personalization and packages. Our market research indicated that consumer preferences
are shifting towards more personalized memorial services and merchandise in the context of both traditional burials
and cremations. We responded to these changing preferences by, among other things, training our funeral arrangers
to offer our customers a broad range of options, such as designing a funeral service to reflect the special interests or
accomplishments of the deceased. We developed a custom funeral planning program that as of 2006 was
implemented in all of our funeral homes and is part of our regular training process. We are also changing the way
our product offerings are displayed at our locations, making it easier for our customers to appreciate our wider
selection. In addition, in late 2006, we implemented new funeral package pricing which provides value to our
families by simplifying the selection process while enhancing the services we provide. We believe that our product
and service offerings have enhanced the experiences provided to families at our funeral homes and have contributed
to increased revenues per sale.

Enhanced cremation and alternative service offerings. In fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 20035, 39 percent, 39
percent and 37 percent, respectively, of the funeral services we performed in our continuing operations were
cremations. A significant trend in the United States is an increasing preference of consumers for cremation.
According to industry estimates, 32 percent of funeral services in the United States during 2005 resulted in
cremations, and cremations are expected to represent 39 percent of funeral services in the United States by the year
2010. All of our funeral homes offer cremation products and services. While the average revenue for a cremation
service is generally lower than that of a traditional full-service funeral, we have found that these revenues can be
substantially enhanced by our emphasis on customization. For example, in addition to a personalized memorial
service to celebrate the life of the deceased, an enhanced cremation may include a casket, an umn and a niche in a
mausoleum or columbarium in which to place the remains. We continue to market our products and services to
address the rising demand for cremations. Qur 22 altemative service firms are generally located in leased premises
and have lower overhead than traditional funeral homes. These firms primarily offer direct cremations with limited
additional products and services. Although death care arrangements at these locations are typically less expensive
than services at a traditional funeral home, it is not our goal to be the low-price leader in these markets.

Trusts and escrow accounts. We maintain three types of trusts and escrow accounts: (1) preneed funeral
merchandise and services, (2) preneed cemetery merchandise and services and (3) cemetery perpetual care. For
further discussion of these trusts and escrow accounts, see Notes 4, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
included in Item 7.

We believe that the balances in our trusts and escrow accounts, along with future earnings on the balances,
insurance proceeds and installment payments due under contracts will be sufficient to cover our estimated cost of
providing the related preneed services and products in the future. For additional information, see Item 1A. “Risk
Factors.”

Generally, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Investors Trust, Inc. (“ITI”), a Texas corporation with trust
powers, serves as investment advisor for our investment portfolio and for our prearranged funeral, merchandise and
cemetery perpetual care trusts and escrow accounts. ITI provides investment advisory services exclusively to our
trusts for a fee. Under state trust laws, we are allowed to charge the trusts a fee for managing the investment of the
trust assets. We have elected to perform these services in-house, and the fees are recognized as income as the
services are performed. For additional information, see Note 20 to the consclidated financial statements included in
Item 8. ITI is registered with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. As of October 31, 2007, ITI
managed assets with a market value of approximately $909.2 million. Lawrence B. Hawkins, one of our executive
officers and a professional investment manager, serves as President of ITI. ITI operates within the guidelines of a
formal investmment policy established by the Investment Committee of our Board of Directors, The policy




emphasizes diversification and preservation of principal while seeking appropriate levels of current income and
capital appreciation.

Management. We have an experienced management team. Many of our divisional and regional managers
owned and operated their own funeral homes and cemeteries and joined us when we acquired their business. Our
management structure is designed to allow local funeral home directors and cemetery managers substantial
flexibility in deciding how their businesses will be managed and how their products and services will be priced and
merchandised. At the same time, financial and strategic goals are established by management at the corporate level.

As of October 31, 2007, we were divided into two geographic operating divisions in the United States, each
of which was managed by a division president and chief financial officer. Our operating divisions are further
divided into regions, each of which is managed by a regional vice president. We also have a Corporate Division,
which manages our corporate services, such as accounting and treasury, information systems, human resources,
training and communications, and a Sales and Marketing Division responsible for sales teams in all operating
divisions. From time to time, we may increase, reduce or realign our divisions and regions.

Centralized support services. Qur Shared Services Center, which we opened in 1997, was developed for
the standardization and centralization of all of our facilities’ administrative and support processes such as
accounting, management reporting, payroll, trust administration, contract processing, accounts payable processing,
accounts receivable collection and other services. It allows us to decrease our costs without diminishing service by
creating significant savings on items such as trust administration fees, travel expenses, office supplies, overnight
delivery and long distance telephone services. In 2006, we instituted a centralized purchasing department to provide
additional momentum in negotiating favorable supplier contracts. During 2007, we implemented a new financial
software system which has created efficiencies and is expected to create further efficiencies as we leverage
knowledge of the new system. We will also implement a new contract processing industry-specific software in 2008
that is expected to create further efficiencies. As we look at our opportunities for growth, we expect to leverage the
efficiencies that we have achieved through our Shared Services Center and expect to manage much of our growth
with our existing infrastructure.  Additionally, we have a centralized formal training strategy and began
implementation of standardized marketing programs to enhance sales effectiveness.

Financial information about industry and geographic segments. For financial information about our
industry and geographic segments for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 20035, see Note 20 to our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8.

Business Strategy

Implement new long-term strategic plan. Our new long-term business strategy has three components: our
“Best in Class Initiative,” our “Innovation Initiative” and our “Acquisition Initiative.” Qur focus for fiscal year
2008 will be on our “Best in Class Initiative.” This initiative aims to improve performance at the rooftop level by
giving all managers the same key metrics by which they can measure their performance and by providing tools to
facilitate the sharing of best practices by key metric. For example, one of the key metrics is an increase in the
number of funeral calls. If funeral calls are below expectations, our program provides various suggestions taken
from our best performing locations that the manager can use to help grow funeral calls. We will also seek to
strengthen our performance-oriented company culture and to refocus management time and attention on improving
field operations. The goal of our Best in Class Initiative is to generate a higher return on assets and to grow profits
and cash flow.

Our “Innovation Initiative” will seek to generate new growth opportunities tangential but not tied to the
growth of our base business.

Qur “Acquisition Initiative” is to acquire businesses and implement our Best in Class Initiatives in these
newly-acquired businesses. QOur Acquisition Initiative will be ongoing and will proceed as appropriate acquisition
opportunities are found. We will evaluate acquisition opportunities that make sense for our business strategy at
prices we believe will result in satisfactory returns.




Improve key metrics. We continue to believe that increasing cemetery property sales, funeral calls and
preneed funeral sales is important to the growth of our business. These goals have been a key focus of our company
for our last four fiscal years, and we plan to continue to focus on them as we implement our Best in Class Initiative.

We view preneed cemetery property sales as the catalyst for growth in our cemetery segment as they create
a customer base for all our businesses. These sales also result in high margins and produce positive cash flow. We
have transitioned to personalized selling, and in addition to responding to requests generated by our media
campaigns, our salespeople havz been successful in obtaining referrals from their existing customer base, allowing
them to assist new customers with their cemetery and funeral needs.

We continue to develop and implement strategies to drive at-need and preneed funeral growth throughout
our organization. We are using the most successful tactics of our top performing funeral homes to develop strategies
to drive funeral call growth throughout our organization with an increased focus on preneed funeral sales. We
believe that the continuous addition of preneed funeral contracts to our backlog is a primary driver of sustainable
long-term growth in the number of families served by our funeral homes.

Continue focus on improving cash flow and controlling costs. We plan to continue our focus on improving
our cash flow and continue controlling our costs by, among other things, obtaining volume discounts from suppliers
and leveraging our operating costs through clustering and combination operations, Additionally, we have been
incentivizing local managers to control costs by tying their compensation more closely to the profitability of the
locations they manage. During fiscal year 2006, we established a director of purchasing position to provide
additional focus and momentum in negotiating favorable long-term contracts with our supplier base. In 2007, we
completed the sale of $250.0 million of convertible notes which will significantly decrease our future interest
payments and improve cash flow.

Continue focus on customer and employee satisfaction. Part of our strategic plan focuses on putting people
first — customers and employees. We have conducted market research to obtain a clearer understanding of customer
service expectations and are measuring the results through one of our key metrics — a customer service rating. We
also seek to enhance employee satisfaction through professional growth, which includes the implementation of a
mentoring program and succession plan for all key employee positions. We continue to invest in the professional
growth of our employees through numerous programs.

Maintain backlog through preneed marketing. We consider maintaining our backlog through preneed
marketing to be an integral part of our long-term business strategy. Our primary objective is to balance our preneed
sales levels and our cash investment while maintaining a sustainable and predictable level of growth in our backlog,
The aging of the population represents a significant opportunity for us to expand our customer base through preneed
marketing, as persons over 50 years of age are most likely to make these purchases.

Deploy cash flow. We plan to continue to evaluate our options for deployment of cash flow as
opportunities arise. We believe that the use of our cash to pay dividends, repurchase stock, construct funeral homes
on cemeteries of unaffiliated third parties and make acquisitions of or investments in death care or related business
are attractive options. We believe that growing our organization through acquisitions and investments is a good
business strategy, as it will enable us to enjoy_the important synergies and economies of scale from our
infrastructure. . - :

The Death Care Industry

Industry consolidation. Death care businesses in the United States have traditionally been relatively small,
family-owned enterprises that have passed through successive generations within the family, The decade of the
1990s witnessed a trend of family-owned firms consolidating with larger organizations, but this trend slowed
dramatically in 1999. As the number of consolidators participating in the acquisition market declined, those that
remained generally applied significantly tighter pricing criteria, and many potential sellers withdrew their businesses
from the market rather than pursuing transactions at lower prices. Our industry continues to be characterized by a
large number of locally-owned, independent operations, with approximately 80 percent of industry revenue being
generated by independently-owned operations. We estimate that our industry, which consists of approximately



22,000 funeral homes and 10,500 cemeteries in the United States, collectively generates approximately $15 billion
in annual revenue.

Large public death care companies have also experienced consolidation. In 1999, The Loewen Group, Inc,,
at the time the second largest provider and a primary competitor for acquisitions, entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. In addition, Equity Corporation International, previously the fourth largest public death care company
and another of our competitors for acquisitions, merged with Service Corporation International in 1999. The
Loewen Group emerged from bankruptcy as Alderwoods Group, Inc. and was acquired by Service Corporation
International in November.2006. .

During the 1990s, we grew rapidly primarily through acquisitions of funeral homes and cemeteries both
domestically and abroad, financed by new equity and debt capital. We ceased our acquisition activity in 1999 and
developed strategies for improving our cash flow and reducing and restructuring debt. During fiscal year 2000
through fiscal year 2003, we completed our transitional strategies of improving our cash flow, restructuring and
reducing our debt and selling our foreign assets. During fiscal years 2004 through 2007, we sold underperforming
assets, refinanced and farther reduced our debt and implemented new strategies to improve operations. We believe,
at the right pricing, that growing our organization through acquisitions can again be a good business strategy, as it
will enable us to enjoy the important synergies and economies of scale from our infrastructure.

Importance of tradition; barriers to entry. We believe it is difficult for new competitors to enter existing
markets successfully by opening new cemeteries and funeral homes. Entry into the cemetery market can be difficult
due to several factors. Because families tend to return to the same cemetery for multiple generations to bury family
members, it is difficult for new cemeteries to attract families. Additionally, mature markets, including many of the
metropolitan areas where our cemeteries are located, are often served by an adequate'number of existing cemeteries
with sufficient land for additional plots, whereas land for new cemetery development is often scarce and expensive.
Regulatory complexities and zoning restrictions also make entry into the cemetery market difficult. Finally,
development of a new cemetery usually requires a significant capital investment that takes several years to produce a
return. Entry into the funeral home market can be difficult for many of the same reasons. Families are often willing
to move from an existing funeral home to a newer facility developed on the grounds of their preferred cemetery;
however, absent that connection, families tend to choose the funeral home that previously served their family.
Families also choose a funeral home because of its reputation, which can only be developed over time.

Continuing need for products and services; increasing number of deaths. There is an inevitable need for
our products and services. Although the number of deaths in the United States will reflect short-term fluctuations,
deaths in the United States are expected to increase at a steady, moderate pace over the long-term. According te the
United States Bureau of the Census, the number of deaths in the United States is expected to increase by
approximately 1 percent per year, from 2.4 million in 2005 to 2.6 million in 2010. Furthermore, the average age of
the population in the United States is increasing. According to the United States Bureau of the Census, the United
States population over 50 years of age is expected to increase by approximately 2 percent per year, from 76.8
million in 2000 to 98.6 million in 2010. We believe the aging of the population is particularly important because it
expands our target market for preneed sales, as persons over the age of 50 are the most likely group to make preneed
funeral and cemetery arrangements.

Growing demand for cremation. A significant trend in the United States is an increasing preference of
consumers for cremations. The trend toward cremations has been a significant concern for traditional funeral home
and cemetery operators because cremations have typically included few, if any, additional products or services other
than the cremation itself. For additional information, including information about our strategies to address this
trend, see “Operations — Enhanced cremation and alternative service offerings.”

Competition

Our funeral home and cemetery operations generally face intense competition in local markets that
typically are served by numerous funeral home and cemetery firms. We also compete with monument dealers,
casket retailers, low-cost funeral providers and crematories, and other non-traditional providers of limited services
or products. Discount retailers have begun marketing caskets at prices that are sometimes substantially lower than
what we offer. Consumers also can now buy caskets in funeral supply stores and directly from manufacturers, as




well as over the Internet. Market share for funeral services and cemetery property is largely a function of goodwill,
family heritage and tradition, although competitive pricing, professional service and attractive, well-maintained and
conveniently located facilities are also important, and price can be especially important for funeral and cemetery
merchandise. Extensive marketing through media advertising, direct mailings and personal sales calls has increased
in recent years, ¢specially with respect to the sale of preneed funeral services.

Traditional cemetery and funeral service operators face competition from the increasing number of
cremations in the United States. Additional information about the trend toward cremation and our strategies to
address that trend can be found under the heading “Operations -~ Enhanced cremation and alternative service
offerings.”

Regulation
Our funeral home operations are regulated by the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC™) under the FTC’s
Trade Regulation Rule on Funeral Industry Practices, 16 CFR Part 453 (the “Funeral Rule”), which went into effect
on April 30, 1984, and was revised effective July 19, 1994. The FTC began reviewing the Funeral Rule in 1999 at
which time it conducted hearings to receive input from industry and consumer groups. At this time, the FTC has not
issued any proposed changes to the regulation nor are any anticipated in the immediate future.

The Funeral Rule defines certain acts or practices as unfair or deceptive and contains certain requirements
to prevent these acts or practices. The preventive measures require a funeral provider to give consumers accurate,
itemized price information and various other disclosures about funeral goods and services and prohibit a funeral
provider from: (1) misrepresenting legal, crematory and cemetery requirements; {2) embalming for a fee without
permission; (3) requmng the purchase of a casket for direct cremation; and (4) requmng consumers to buy certain
funeral goods or services as a condition for furnishing other funeral goods or services.

Our operations are also subject to extensive regulation, supervision and licensing under numerous federal,
state and local laws and regulations. For example, state laws impose licensing requirements for funeral homes and
funeral directors and regulate preneed sales. Our embalming facilities are subject to stringent environmental and
health regulations. We have a department that monitors compliance, and we believe that we are in substantial
compliance with the Funeral Rule and all such laws and regulations. Federal, state and local legislative bodies and
regulatory agencies frequently propose new laws and regulations, some of which could have a material effect on our
operations and on the death care industry in general. We cannot predict the outcome of any proposed legislation or
regulation or the effect that any such legislation or regulation might have on us.

Employees

As of October 31, 2007, we employed approximately 5,500 persons, and we believe that we maintain a
good relationship with cur employees. Approximately 140 of our employees are represented by labor unions or
collective bargaining units. ‘

Additional Information

QOur business was incorporated as a Louisiana corporation in 1970. Our principal executive offices are
located at 1333 South Clearview Parkway, Jefferson, Louisiana 70121, and our telephone number is 504-729-1400.
Qur website address is www.stewartenterprises.com, where all of our public filings are available free of charge on
the same day they are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The SEC also maintains an
internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC. The SEC’s website address is www.sec.gov.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Cautionary Statements

Cur business is subject to significant risks, We caution readers that the following important factors, among
others, in some cases have affected, and in the future, could affect, our actual consolidated results and could cause
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our actual consolidated results in the future to differ materially from the goals and expectations expressed in the
forward-looking statements in this report and in any other forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf.

Risks Related to Qur Business

We have experienced a decline in funeral call volume for a number of years due to many factors, such as the number
of deaths and competition in our markets, our ability to identify changing consumer preferences and various other
Jactors, some of which are beyond our control.

We experienced declines in same-store funeral call volumes for a number of years due to many factors
described elsewhere herein including the number of deaths, intense competition and our ability to identify changing
consumer preferences. From fiscal years 2001 to 2007, we experienced same-store funeral call volume changes of
(1.5) percent, (2.6) percent, (1.0) percent, 0.4 percent, (0.2} percent and (2.2) percent, respectively. We can give no
assurance that we will be able to increase same-store funeral call volumes over the long term. Declines in same-
store funeral calls can adversely affect revenues and profits if not offset by increases in average revenue per call or

| other sources of revenue.

Price competition could reduce market share or cause us to reduce prices to retain or recapture market share,
either of which could reduce revenues and margins.

Our funeral home and cemetery operations generally face intense competition in local markets that
typically are served by numerous funeral homes and cemetery firms. We have historically experienced price
competition primarily from independent funeral home and cemetery operators, and from monument dealers, casket
retailers, low-cost funeral providers and. other non-traditional providers of services or products including, in recent
years, internet providers. From time to time, this price competition has caused us to lose market share in some
markets. In other markets, we have had to reduce prices, thereby reducing profit margins in order to retain or
recapture market share. Increased price competition in the future could further reduce revenues, profit margins and
backlog and potentially impact our annual goodwill impairment analysis.

Discount retailers sell caskets at prices substantially lower than prices we offer. Consumers also can now
buy caskets in funeral supply stores and directly from manufacturers, as well as over the Internet. Competition from
these sources could reduce our casket sales, which could adversely affect funeral revenues and margins.

Increased advertising and better marketing by competitors, as well as increased offering of products or services
over the Internet, could cause us to lose market share and revenues or cause us to incur increased costs or to
decrease prices in order to retain or recapture market share.

In recent years, the marketing of preneed funeral services through television, radio and print advertising,
direct mailings and personal sales calls has increased. Extensive advertising or effective marketing by competitors
in local markets could cause us to lose market share and revenues or cause us to incur increased marketing costs. In
addition, competitors may change the types or mix of products or services offered. These changes may attract
customers, causing us to lose market share and revenue or to incur costs necessary to respond to competition by
varying the types or mix of products or services offered by us. Also, increased use of the Internet by customers to
research and/or purchase products and services could cause us to lose market share to competitors offering to sell
products or services over the Internet.

If we are not able to respond effectively 1o changing consumer preferences, our market share, revenues and
profitability could decrease.

Future market share, revenues and profits will depend in part on our ability to anticipate, identify and
respond to changing consumer preferences. We may not correctly anticipate or identify trends in consumer
preferences, or we may identify them later than our competitors do. In addition, any strategies we may implement to
address these trends may prove incorrect or ineffective.

Earnings from and principal of trusts and escrow accounts could be reduced by changes in stock and bond prices
and interest and dividend rates.
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We maintain three types of trusts and escrow accounts: (1) preneed funeral merchandise and services, (2)
preneed cemetery merchandise and services and. (3} cemetery perpetual care. Earnings and investment gains and
losses on trusts and escrow accounts are affected by financial market conditions that are not within our control.
Earnings are also affected by the mix of fixed-income and equity securities that we choose to maintain in the trusts,
and we may not choose the optirnal mix for any particular market condition, The size of the trusts depends upon the
level of preneed sales and maturities, the amount of ordinary income and investment gains or losses and funds added
through acquisitions, if any. Declines in earnings from cemetery perpetual care trusts would cause a decline in
current cash flows and revenues, while declines in earnings from other trusts and escrow accounts could cause a
decline in future cash flows and revenues. In addition, any significant or sustained investment losses could result in
there being insufficient funds in the trusts to cover the cost of delivering services and merchandise or maintaining
cemeteries in the future. Any such deficiency would have to be covered by cash flow, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

At October 31, 2007, we had net unrealized gains in our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and
services trusts totaling $20.7 million and $8.4 million, respectively, based on the adjusted cost basis of the
investments, and had other than temporary declines of $74.3 million and $40.9 million, respectively, from the
original cost basis. Unrealized gains and losses in those trusts have no immediate impact on our revenues, margins,
earnings or cash flow, unless the: fair market value of the trusts were to decline below the estimated costs to deliver
the underlying products and services. If that were to occur, we would record a charge to earnings to record a
liability for the expected losses on the delivery of the associated contract. Over time, gains and losses realized in the
trusts are allocated to underlying preneed contracts and affect the amount of the trust earnings we record when we
deliver the underlying products or services. Accordingly, if the market value of these investments does not improve,
the trusts may eventually realize losses, and our revenues, margins, earnings and cash flow would be negatively
affected by the reduced revenue when we deliver the underlying products and services. At October 31, 2007, we
had net unrealized gains in our cemetery perpetual care trusts of $13.2 million based on the adjusted cost basis of the
investments and had other than temporary declines of $32.8 million from the original cost basis. Unrealized gains
and losses in the cemetery perpetual care trusts do not affect current earnings but unrealized losses could limit the
capital gains available to us and could result in lower returns and lower current revenues than we have historically
achieved.

Increased preneed sales may have a negative impact on current cash flow and earnings.

Preneed sales of cemetery property and funeral and cemetery products and services, which are generally
paid on an installment basis, are generally cash flow negative initially, primarily due to the commissions and other
costs to acquire the sale and the fact that a portion of the sales proceeds is required to be placed into trusts or escrow
accounts. We will continue to invest a significant portion of cash flow in preneed acquisition costs, which reduces
cash flow available for other activities, and, to the extent preneed activities are increased, cash flow would be further
reduced, and our ability to service debt could be adversely affected.

Increased costs may have a negative impact on earnings and cash flows.

We may not be successful in maintaining our margins and may incur additional costs. For example, we
have experienced increased property and casualty insurance costs primarily as a result of Hurricanes Katrina, Wilma
and Rita. We have also incurred significant legal costs to defend unanticipated class action litigation and the SEC
investigation. We will incur additional costs in fiscal year 2008 in conjunction with improving our business .
systems. In addition, the cost of certain commodities, particularly copper which represents a large component of our
bronze markers sold in our cemetery business, has increased significantly. Some of the costs impacting our business
are largely beyond our control. To the extent that we are unable to pass these cost increases on 10 our customers,
they will have a negative impact on our earnings and cash flows.

Our business is subject to the risk of losses due to hurricanes and other natural disasters.
Our Company is headquartered in the New Orleans metropolitan area, and approximately 75 of our funeral
homes and 45 of our cemeteries, along with our mausoleum construction and sales business, Acme Mausoleum, are

located near the Gulf Coast in southern Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Alabama and Florida, along the eastern coasts
of Florida, and North and South Carolina and in Puerto Rico. These areas are periodically threatened by hurricanes,
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which can damage our properties, interrupt our business and disrupt the lives of our customers and employees. We
are also at risk for tornadoes at our locations in the midwestern United States and for earthquakes at our locations
along the west coast of the United States.

In fiscal year 2005 our business was adversely affected by Hurricanes Katrina, Wilma and Rita. We
believe that a significant portion of the loss we experienced due to Hurricane Katrina should be covered by
insurance, but we cannot predict the long-term effects on our operations because of the economic conditions
currently existing in the New Orleans metropolitan area or the timing and amount of collection of insurance
recoveries.

Qur Chairman may have a significant and disproportionate influence on the outcome of election of directors and
other matters presented for a vote of shareholders and this control may be exercised in a manner that may conflict
with the interests of shareholders.

As of October 31, 2007, our Chairman, Frank B. Stewart, Jr., held 7,248,727 shares (or approximately 8
percent) of our outstanding Class A common stock and all of the 3,555,020 outstanding shares of our Class B
common stock. Because each share of Class B common stock is entitled to 10 votes on all matters presented for a
vote by our shareholders, Mr. Stewart controls approximately 33 percent of our total voting power, while holding
approximately 11 percent of our outstanding equity. Accordingly, Mr. Stewart may have a significant and
disproportionate influence over the election of directors and other matters requiring the affirmative vote of our
shareholders and this control may be exercised in a manner that may conflict with the interest of shareholders.
Additionally, because Louisiana law and our articles of*incorporation require the affirmative vote of two-thirds of
the voting power present to approve certain major transactions and any amendments to our articles of incorporation,
Mr. Stewart may have the ability to prevent the consummation of such actions, even if they are recommended by our
Board of Directors and favored by a substantial majority of our shareholders.

Servicing our debt will require a significant amount of cash, and our ability to generate sufficient cash depends on
many factors, some of which are beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our debt depends on our ability to generate cash flow.
This, to a significant extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other
factors that are beyond our control. In addition, our ability to borrow funds in the future to make payments on our
debt will depend on our meeting the financial covenants in our senior secured credit facility and other debt
agreements we may have in the future. Our business may not generate cash flow from operations, and future
borrowings may not be available to us under our senior secured credit facility or otherwise in an amount sufficient to
enable us to pay our debt or to fund other liquidity needs. As a result, we may need to refinance all or a portion of
our debt on or before maturity. We may not be able to refinance any of our debt on favorable terms, or at all. Any
inability to generate sufficient cash flow or refinance our debt on favorable terms could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition.

We may be unable to repurchase our 6.25 percent senior notes and our senior convertible notes when required by
the holders, or to pay the cash portion of the conversion value upon conversion of our senior convertible notes.

Upon a change of control of our company as defined in the relevant indenture, holders of our 6.25 percent
senior notes will have the right to require us to repurchase all or any part of their notes for cash at a price equal to
101 percent of the principal amount of the notes repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition,
upon fundamental change events specified in the relevant indenture, holders of our senior convertible notes may
require us to purchase for cash all or a portion of their notes at a price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount
of the notes plus accrued and unpaid interest. Alse, upon conversion of our senior convertible notes, we will be
required to deliver to the holders a cash payment equal to the lesser of the principal amount of the notes being
converted or the conversion value of the notes. As a result, we may be required to pay significant amounts of cash
to holders of the senior convertible notes upon conversion. We cannot assure you that we will have sufficient
financial resources to make these payments when due. Any inability to make these payments would constitute an
event of default under the indentures governing these notes and would also cause cross-defaults under the terms of
our other debt agreements.
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The call options we purchased and the warrants we sold contemporaneously with the sale of our senior convertible
notes may affect the trading price of our Class A common stock and the value of the senior convertible notes.

The counterparties to the call options we purchased and warrants we sold may engage in hedging activities
and modify their hedge positions from time to time prior to the conversion or maturity of our senior convertible
notes, particularly around the time of any conversion of the notes. These hedging activities may include purchasing
and selling shares of our Class A common stock; or other of our securities, or other instruments, including over-the-
counter derivative instruments. The effect, if any, of these activities on the trading price of our Class A common
stock or the senior convertible notes will depend in part on market conditions at the time and cannot be reasonably
predicted at this time. Any of these activities could adversely affect the trading price of our Class A common stock
and the value of the senior convertible notes. For additional information about the call options we purchased and the
warrants we sold, see Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

Exercise of the outstanding warrants could dilute the ownership interests of our existing stockholders.

Concurrently with the sale of our senior convertible notes, we sold warrants expiring in 2014 to purchase
approximately 11.3 million shares of Class A common stock at $12.93 per share and warrants expiring in 2016 to
purchase approximately 11.3 million shares of Class A common stock at $13.76 per share. The warrants expiring in
2014 may not be exercised prior to the maturity of the senior convertible notes due in 2014, and the warrants
expiring in 2016 may not be exercised prior to the maturity of the senior convertible notes due in 2016. The
warrants may be settled in cash at our ¢lection. Exercise of the warrants could dilute the ownership interests of our
existing stockholders. For additional information, see Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements included in
Item 8. ‘

The accounting method for our senior convertible notes is subject to change. Proposed new rules, if adopted, would
substantially increase our reported interest expense relating to the senior convertible notes.

In July 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") agreed to issue for comment a proposed
FASB Staff Position that if adopted would change the accounting for convertible debt instruments that permit cash
settlement upon conversion, and would apply to our senior convertible notes. The proposal would require us to
separately account for the liability and equity components of our senior convertible notes in a manner intended to
reflect our nonconvertible debt borrowing rate. We would be required to determine the carrying amount of the
senior convertible note liability by measuring the fair value as of the issuance date of a similar note without a
conversion feature. The difference between the proceeds from the sale of the senior convertible notes and the
amount reflected as the senior convertible note liability would be recorded as additional paid-in capital. In other
words, the convertible debt would be recorded at a discount to reflect its below market coupon interest rate. The
excess of the principal amount of the senior convertible notes over their initial fair value (the “discount”™) would be
accreted to interest expense over the expected life of the senior convertible notes. We would be required to record
as interest expense not only the coupon interest payments on the seniar convertible notes as currently required, but
also the accretion of the discount on the senior convertible notes. Thus, the new accounting rules would
substantially increase our reported interest expense relating to the senior convertible notes and would have an
adverse effect on our reported earnings, which could be material.

The FASB issued an exposure draft reflecting the proposed new rules on August 31, 2007, and we believe
the FASB plans to issue final guidance in January 2008.

Accordingly, if the proposed new rules are adopted as currently anticipated, we expect to record higher
interest expense relating to the senior convertible notes beginning in fiscal 2009. Additionally, interest expense
related to the senior convertible notes reported in prior periods would be higher than previously reported due to the
retrospective application of the new rules. We cannot predict whether or when the new rules will be adopted nor
whether they will be adopted as proposed. We do not expect any changes in accounting for the senior convertible
notes to affect our past or future reported cash flows relating to the senior convertible notes, and the changes would
not affect our actual cash interest payments on these notes.

Increases in interest rates would increase interest costs on our variable-rate long-term debt and could have a
material adverse effect on our net income and earnings per share.
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Amounts borrowed under the senior secured credit facility are subject to variable interest rates. Any
significant increase in interest rates could increase our interest costs on our variable-rate long-term debt or
indebtedness incurred in the future, which could decrease our net income and earnings per share materially.

Our ability to maintain compliance with our covenants under our senior secured credit facility and 6.25 percent
senior notes is dependent upon many factors. Covenant restrictions may also limit our ability to operate our
business.

Our senior secured credit facility and the indenture governing the 6.25 percent senior notes contain, among
other things, covenants that restrict our and our subsidiaries’ activities. Qur senior secured credit facility limits,
among other things, our and the guarantors’ ability to: borrow money; pay dividends or distributions; purchase or
redeem stock; make investments; engage in transactions with affiliates; engage in sale and leaseback transactions;
consummate specified asset sales; effect a consolidation or merger or sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of all
or substantially all of our assets; and create liens on our assets. In addition, our senior secured credit facility contains
specific limits on capital expenditures. Furthermore, our senior secured credit facility requires us to maintain
specified financial ratios and satisfy financial condition tests. The indenture governing the 6.25 percent senior notes
restricts our and the guarantors’ ability to create liens on assets, enter into sale and leaseback transactions and merge
or consolidate with other companies. Qur and our subsidiaries’ future mdebtedness may contain similar or even
more restrictive covenants.

These covenants may require that we take action to reduce our debt or to act in a manner contrary to our
business objectives. In addition, events beyond our control, including changes in general economic and business
-conditions, may affect our ability to satisfy these covenants. We might not meet those covenants, and the lenders
might not waive any failure to meet those covenants. A breach of any of those covenants could result in a default
under such indebtedness. If an event of defauit under our senior secured credit facility occurs, the lenders could elect
to declare all amounts outstanding thereunder, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and payable.
Any such declaration would also result in an event of default under the indenture governing the 6.25 percent sentor
notes. For additional information, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” included in Item 7.

The payment of dividends on our common stock in the future is subject to uncertainties.

The declaration of dividends on our common steck in the future is subject to the discretion of our Board of
Directors each quarter after its.review of our financial performance. Our ability to pay dividends is restricted under
our senior credit facility. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements included in {tem 8.

Unanticipated litigation or negative developments in pendmg litigation or the SEC investigation could have a
material adverse effect on our ﬁnancml Statements.

We are a defendant in the litigation described in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8 and other litigation in the ordinary course of business. Also as described in Note 19, we have received a
subpoena from the SEC, issued pursuant to a formal order of investigation, seeking documents and information
related to our previously disclosed and completed deferred revenue project. The outcome of litigation and
investigations is inherently uncertain and adverse developments or outcomes can result in significant monetary
damages, penalties or injunctive relief against us.

We may not be able 10 consummate significant acquisitions of or investments in death care or related businesses
successfully.

Although we have not made any significant acquisitions in recent years, we may in the future. Also, our
“Innovation Initiative” calls for us to seek to generate new growth opportunities tangential but not tied to the growth
of our base business. Any such acquisitions and investments have risks. We may fail to identify suitable candidates,
and even if we do, we may not be able to successfully complete the transaction or integrate the new business into
our existing business. We may not be able to find businesses for sale at prices we are willing to pay. Acquisition
activity, if any, will also depend on our ability to enter new markets. Due in part to our lack of experience operating
or investing in new areas and to the presence of competitors who have been in certain markets longer than we have,
such acquisitions or investments may be more difficult or expensive than we anticipate.
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The application of generally accepted accounting principles to our business is complex, and we have had significant
changes in the application of generally accepted accounting principles to our business. No assurances can be given
that we will not face similar issues in the future.

Our industry is unusual because we often sell products and services many years prior to the time they are
required to be delivered, and we are required by varying state laws to hold customer funds related to these sales in
trust until the products and services are delivered. The accounting for these unusual features is complex, and in
recent years there have been periodic changes in the application of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to our
business. Some of these changes have made it difficult to compare results from one period to the next. Such
changes have also increased our administrative costs. We can glve no assurances that we will not face similar issues
in the future.

Risks Related to the Death Care Industry

Declines in the number of deaths in our markets can cause a decrease in revenues. Changes in the number of deaths
are not predictable from market to market or over the short term, and veliable statistics on deaths in particular
markets can be difficult to obtain.

Declines in the number of deaths could cause at-need sales of funeral and cemetery services, property and
merchandise to decline and could cause a decline in the number of preneed sales being delivered, both of which
could decrease revenues. Although the United States Bureau of the Census estimates that the number of deaths in
the United States will increase by approximately 1 percent per year from 2000 to 2010, longer lifespans could
reduce the rate of deaths. Changes in the number of deaths can vary among local markets and from quarter to
quarter, and variations in the number of deaths in our markets or from quarter to quarter are not predictable.
However, generally the number of deaths fluctuates with the seasons with more deaths occurring during the winter
months primarily resulting from pneumonia and influenza. These variations can cause revenues to fluctuate. -

Our comparisons of the change in the number of families served to the change in the number of deaths
reported by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) from time to time may not necessarily be
meaningful. The CDC receives weekly mortality reports from 122 cities and metropolitan areas in the United States
within two to three weeks from the date of death and reports the total number of deaths occurring in these areas each
week based on the reports received from state health departments. The comparability of our funeral calls to the
CDC data is limited, as reports from the state health departments are often delayed, and the 122 cities reporting to
the CDC are not necessarily comparable with the markets in which we operate.

A weakening economy could decrease preneed sales and average revenue per at-need event. Declines in preneed
cemetery property sales would reduce current revenue. Declines in preneed funeral and cemetery service and
merchandise sales would reduce our backlog and could reduce our future revenues and market share.

A weakening economy that causes customers to reduce discretionary spending could cause, and we believe
has caused in the past, a decline in preneed sales. A reduction in discretionary spending could also decrease prices
and.amounts at-need customers are willing to pay. Geopohtlcal concemns could lower consumer confidence, which
could also decrease discretionary spending.

We have experienced an increase in the proportion of lower-priced, non-traditional funeral services and direct
cremations, which we believe is part of the continuing national trend toward increased cremation.

Our traditicnal cemetery and funeral service operations face competition from the increasing number of
cremations in the United States. Industry studies indicate that the percentage of cremations has steadily increased
and that cremations will represent approximately 39 percent of deaths in the United States by the year 2010,
compared to 32 percent in 2005. In fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007, 37 percent, 39 percent and 39 percent,
respectively, of the funeral services we performed in our continuing operations were cremations, and 54 percent, 56
percent and 56 percent of those were direct cremations, respectlvely A full service cremation, which includes a
funeral service, a casket and memorialization of the remains in a mausoleum or columbarium niche or a burial of the
remains, can result in funeral and cemetery revenue and profit margins similar to those of traditional funeral services
and burials, although the cemetery property sale revenue would generally be lower. In contrast, a basic or direct
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cremation, with no funeral service or casket and no memorialization of the remains, produces no revenues for
cemetery operations and lower revenues and profit margins for funeral operations when delivered through a
traditional funeral home. During fiscal year 2006 and 2007, we experienced a reduction in the proportion of full
service traditional funeral services and cremations and an increase in the proportion of lower-priced, non-traditional
funeral services and direct cremations. A continuation of this trend would adversely affect the revenues and gross
profits of our funeral and cemetery businesses. To address this trend, we have been intensifying our efforts to market
full service funerals and cremations. In addition, the increasing trend towards cremations in the United States could
cause us to lose market share to firms specializing in cremations.

Because the funeral and cemetery businesses are high fixed-cost businesses, posmve or negative changes in revenue
can have a disproportionately large effect on cash flow and profits.

Funeral homes and cemetery businesses must incur many of the costs of operating and maintaining
facilities, land and equipment regardless of the level of sales in any given period. For example, we must pay
salaries, utilities, property taxes and maintenance costs on funeral homes and maintain the grounds of cemeteries
regardless of the number of funeral services or interments performed. Because we cannot decrease these costs
significantly or rapidly when we experience declines in sales, declines in sales can cause margins, profits and cash
flow to decline at a greater rate than the decline in revenues.

Changes or increases in, or failure to comply with, regulations applicable to our business could increase costs or
decrease cash flows.

The death care industry is subject to extensive regulation and licensing requirements under federal, state
and local laws. For example, the funeral home industry is regulated by the FTC, which requires funeral homes to
take actions designed to protect consumers. State laws impose licensing requirements and regulate preneed sales.
Embalming facilities are subject fo stringent environmental and health regulations. Compliance with these
regulations is burdensome, and we are always at risk of not complying with the regulations.

In addition, from time to time, governments and agencies propose to amend or add regulations, which could
increase costs or decrease cash flows. For example, federal, state, Puerto Rican and other regulatory agencies have
considered and may enact additional legislation or regulations that could affect the death care industry Several
jurisdictions and regulatory agencies have considered or are considering regulations that could require more liberal
refund and cancellation policies for preneed sales of products and services, limit or eliminate our ability to use
surety bonding, impose or increase trust requirements and prohibit the common ownership of funeral homes and
cemeteries in the same market. If adopted by the regulatory authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operate,
these and other possible proposals could have a material adverse effect on us, our financial condition, our results of
operations, our cash flows and our future prospects.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

16



Item 2. Properties

The following table shows the number of funeral homes and cemeteries we operated in each of our
geographic operating segments as of October 31, 2007:

Number of
Funeral Number of
Operating Segment Homes Cemeteries Geographic Areas

Alabama, Arkansas, California, Illinois,
Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri,
Western Division — Funera] -------- 115 Nebraska, Oregon, Texas, Washington

Alabama, Arkansas, California, Kansas,

Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri,

Nebraska, Oregon, Texas, Washington,
Western Division — Cemetery------ 47 Wisconsin

Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Maryland,
North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South
‘ Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia, West
Eastern Division — Funera) ----—--- 106 Virginia and Puerto Rico

Alabama, Flonida, Georgia, Kentucky,
Maryland, North  Carolina,  Ohio,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee,
Eastern Division — Cemetery ------ 92 Virginia, West Virginia and Puerto Rico
: 221 139

As of October 31, 2007, approximately 76 percent of our 221 funeral home locations were owned by our
subsidiaries, and approximately 24 percent were held under operating leases. The leases have terms ranging from
one to 15 years, except for one lease that expires in 2032 and five leases with the Archdiocese of Los Angeles that
expire in 2039. An aggregate of $0.2 million of our term notes are secured by mortgages on some of our funeral
homes; these notes were either assumed by us upon our acquisition of the property or represent seller financing for
the acquired property.

As of October 31, 2007, we owned 139 cemeteries covering a total of approximately 9,908 acres.
Approximately 38 percent of the total acreage is available for future development.

We own a 98,200 square-foot building in suburban New Orleans that we use for our corporate
headquarters, shared services center, human resources, communications, internal audit and information systems
departments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of our current litigation and SEC investigation, see Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements included in [tem 8.

In addition to the matters described in Note 19, we and certain of our subsidiaries are parties to a number
of other legal proceedings that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of these
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not expect these matters to have a material effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

We carry insurance with coverages and coverage limits that we believe to be adequate. Although there can

be no assurance that such insurance is sufficient to protect us against all contingencies, we believe that our insurance
protection is reasonable in view of the nature and scope of our operations.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Nene.
Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers. Each of the
following has served in the capacity indicated for more than five years, except as indicated below.

Name Age Position

Thomas J. Crawford........ccco...... 54 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director"

Thomas M. Kitchen ..........occo.e.. 60 Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Director™

Brent F. Heffron........cccooiinnnnnn, 58 Executive Vice President and President—Eastern Division™

Lawrence B. Hawkins................ 59 Executive Vice President and President—Investors Trust, Inc.

G. Kenneth Stephens, Jr............. 46 Executive Vice President and President—Western Division™

Kenneth G. Myers, Jr.........o.o.... 50 Senior Vice President of Finance®™

Larry Merington........cccoevvnneene 53 Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing

Martin de Laureal ........ S 56 Senior Vice President of Corporate Development and Investor
Relations'”

Lisa T. WinningkofT .................. 40 Vice President and Senior Administrative Officer®

Lewis J. Derbes, JT.....ccocuninnan, 36 Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer”

Angela M. Lacour.......ccececovieeee. 35 Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer''”

() Mr. Crawford has served as our President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director since March 31, 2007. Prior
to that, he served on behalf of Sorenson Capital Partners, a private equity group, as Chief Executive Officer of
Erickson Companies, a regional residential framing company with manufacturing operations in Arizona,
California and Nevada. From 2003 to 2004, he was a Senior Consultant to Carew, International, a sales
process consulting and training company. He was Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of
publicly-traded The York Group, Inc., one of the largest casket manufacturers in the U.S., from 2000 until its
merger with Matthews International Corporation in 2002. From 1997 to 1999, he was Executive Vice
President of Sales and Marketing of Lozier Corporation, a manufacturer of retail display fixtures and systems.
From 1979 to 1997, he served in various positions with the Batesville Casket Company, a leading
manufacturer and supplier of caskets, including Vice President and General Manager — Hardwood Products
Group, Vice President of New Business Development, Vice President of Marketing and Vice President of
Logistics. Additionally, he held the positions of Director of Corporate Development for both the Batesville
Casket Company and its parent company, Hillenbrand Industries.

@ Mr. Kitchen has served as Senior Executive Vice President since March 31, 2007 and as Chief Financial
Officer since December 2, 2004. He has also served as a director since February 18, 2004. From June 30,
2006 until Mr. Crawford’s appointment as President and Chief Executive Officer on March 31, 2007, Mr.
Kitchen served as acting Chief Executive Officer. From July 2003 until he became cur Chief Financial
Officer, he served as an investment management consultant with Equitas Capital Advisors, LLC. From 1987
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10 1999, he was Chief Financial Officer of Avondale Industries, Inc., a publicly-traded company engaged in
the design, construction, system integration and repair of large, complex ships for commercial and government
customers. He served as President of Avondale from 1999 to 2002, after Avondale’s acquisition by Litton
Industries, which was subsequently acquired by Northrop Grumman Corporation.

Mr. Heffron has served as Executive Vice President and President of our Eastern Division since July 14, 2005.
From November 1, 1998 to July 13, 2005, he served as Executive Vice President and President of our Southern
Division.

Mr. Stephens has served as Executive Vice President and President of our Western Division since July 14,
2005. From January 31, 2000 to July 13, 2005, he served as Senior Vice President and President of our
Eastern Division. From January 1, 1997 to January 30, 2000, he served as Chief Operating Officer of the
Southern Region of our Eastern Division.

Mr. Myers has served as Senior Vice President of Finance since February 20, 2006. He has also served as a
consultant to the Company from February 2005 to February 2006. From July 2004 through February 2006, he
provided consulting services specializing in Sarbanes-Oxiey compliance. From 2001 to 2004, he was the Chief
Executive Officer, President and Director of Conrad Industries, a publicly-traded company engaged in the
construction and repair of government and commercial marine vessels. From 1992 to 2001, he served as Vice
President of Avondale Industries, Inc., a publicly-traded company engaged in the design, construction, system
integration and repair of large, complex ships for commercial and government customers, which was
subsequently acquired by Northrop Grumman Corporation.

Mr. Merington was appointed Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing on September 17, 2007. From
2005 to 2007, he was the Chief Operating Officer of Ace Bayou, a furniture and pet products corporation in
Kenner, Louisiana. From 2003 to 2005, Mr. Merington was the Vice President of Business Development at
New York Environmental Services, a medical waste company. After the terrorist attack on the United States
on September 11, 2001, he was called to active duty for one year as a commander in the U.S. Air Force in
Afghanistan. From 1996-2001, he served in various senior management roles at Browning-Ferris Industries
before becoming president of its Gas Services Division.

On November 1, 2007, Mr. de Lauréal was appointed Senior Vice President of Corporate Development and
Investor Relations. He joined the Company in 1977 and has held numerous management positions, including
serving as Vice President of Corporate Development in the 1990s.

Since December 2005, Ms. Winningkoff has served as Vice President and Senior Administrative Officer.

From December 2004 to December 2005, she served as the Company’s Compensation and Benefits Director.

From July 2002 through December 2004, she served as the Director of Compliance. She joined the Company
in June 1991 and held several financial and accounting positions, including Assistant Treasurer and Director of
Financial Reporting.

Mr. Derbes has served as Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer since May 2005. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Derbes served as Chief Financial Officer of Conrad Industries, a publicly-traded company
engaged in the construction and repair of government and commercial marine vessels, from 2002 through 2004
and as Operations Manager of Kirschman’s LLC, a fumiture retailer, from late 2004 until joining the

Company.

On July 10, 2006, Ms. Lacour was appointed Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer. She joined the Company in February 1997, and has served in a variety of financial and accounting
positions including as Director of Financial Reporting and, most recently, as Assistant Corporate Controller
since March 2001. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Lacour was an auditor with KPMG LLP for four years.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

Our Class A common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol STEL. On
November 30, 2007, the closing sale price as reported by the NASDAQ Stock Market was $8.20. The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low sale prices, as reported by the NASDAQ Stock
Market. As of November 30, 2007, there were 1,130 record holders of our Class A common stock. Record holders
include persons holding Class A common stock on behalf of one or more beneficial owners who are not holders of
record.

High Low

Fiscal Year 2007

Fourth QUATET ........cieeveiereieiiniesesssssseesrsrsssrsssssssnssssreresessst s s ssscasssssens $§ 913 $ 625

Third QUAIET....eeeveere e rerine e r e crre e e se e s e ssmese st e nanearesnns 8.43 6.79

SeCONd QUANET ...t e s seetre e e as e 8.50 7.05

First QUarter ... et e 7.18 5.88
Fiscal Year 2006 :

FOUrth QUATET .....ccvvveierreirierisesresessssenesrresssesnssmssensesassesrecessenetesstssssasasas $ 640 $ 507

THIFD QUATET ... ettt et et et b s ess et rarer e sn e naenran 6.09 4.96

Second QUATTET ...c.covi ittt e 6.04 4.87

FAESE QUATTET ..vvveveeircinrerereriniresssssesessssesesessasassersssresesesssneseresssnsasssssonsasas 5.93 4.78

There is no established public trading market for our Class B common stock. As of November 30, 2007,
our Chairman, Frank B. Stewart, Jr., was the record hoider of all of our shares of Class B common stock. Our Class
A and Class B common stock are substantially identical, except that holders of Class A common stock are entitled to
one vote per share, and holders of Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes perf share. Each share of Class B

"common stock is automatically converted into one share of Class A common stock upon transfer to persons other
than certain affiliates of Frank B. Stewart, Jr. As of October 31, 2007, by virtue of his beneficial ownership of
outstanding Class A and Class B common shares, Mr. Stewart controlled approximately 33 percent of our total
voting power and held approximately 11 percent of our outstanding equity.

Dividends

The Company has paid a quarterly cash dividend of two and one-half cents per share of common stock
since April 2005. Although we intend to pay regular quarterly cash dividends for the foreseeable future, the
declaration and payment of future dividends are discretionary and will be subject to determination by the Board of
Directors each quarter after its review of our financial performance. Our ability to pay dividends is subject to
restrictions confained in our secured senior credit facility. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8. ' '

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
As indicated by the table below, there were no purchases made by or on behalf of us, or of any “affiliated

purchaser” as defined in SEC rules, of our equity securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act,
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total number of Maximum approximate
shares purchased as dollar value of shares
Total number Average price part of publicly that may yet be
of shares paid per announced purchased under the
Period purchased share plans or programs™ plans or programs
August 1, 2007 through
August 31, 2007.....ccvveincnnne — $ — : — b —
September |, 2007 through '
September 30, 2007 ................. - $ — = $ —
October 1, 2007 through I
October 31,2007 ...cocvvvvviimnene — $ — — $ —
Total....ooeeececerrreeeernes — $ — — 3 —

™ On September 19, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors had authorized a new $25.0 million stock

repurchase program. Repurchases under the program are limited to our Class A commen stock, and are made in
the open market or in privately negotiated transactions at such times and in such amounts as management
deemed appropriate, depending upon market conditions and other factors. No repurchases were made during
the fourth quarter of 2007, As of December 20, 2007, we had repurchased 1.4 million shares for $11.4 million
at an average price of $8.14 per share under this program. On December 20, 2007, we announced a $25.0
million increase in this program.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Reclassifications

The following selected consolidated financial data for.the fiscal years ended October 31, 2003 through
October 31, 2007 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements, as reclassified., The data for fiscal
years 2003 through 2006 have been reclassified to reflect certain businesses as discontinued operations under the
provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No.
144™), as discussed in footnote 1 to the table below and in Note 2(w) to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8. The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thercto included in Item 8 and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of  Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included in Item 7.

Comparability of Information in Selected Consolidated Financial Data Table

As ‘discussed in’ more detail in the footnotes to the table below and in the related footnotes to the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8, the following are the main factors that materially affect the
comparability of the revenues, gross profits and.assets reflected in the selected financial data:

o In fiscal year 2004, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation 46R, *Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities™ (*FIN 46R™),
In fiscal year 2005, we changed our method of accounting for preneed selling costs.
In fiscal year 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”).
All businesses sold in fiscal years 2003 through 2007 that met the criteria for discontinued operatlons under
SFAS No. 144 have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented.
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts}

Year Ended October 31, "

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Earnlngs Data:
Total revenues.. [RREOIU. . 7.7.R. ] ¥ $ 514,230 $ 488,909 $ 489,626 $ 473,534
Total gross proﬁt 112,430 114,613 101,479 114,349 97,563
Eamings from continuing operations........ $ 39314 . § 37,580 $ 8303 $ 30,575 $ 1,034
Eamings (loss) from discontinued
operations ... . reerernennte 499 13 1,551 6,117 (19,066)

Cumulative effect of changc in
accounting principle (net of $101,061

income tax benefit in 2005).... — —_ (153,180 — —
Net €arnings (1088) coveverveocsserssircncresenennnns §_39,813 DRS¢ 37 593 ORI §(143,326) § 36,692 T g (18,032)0D

Per Share Data;
Basic eamings (loss) per common share:
Eamings from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle .o $ 38 $ 35 $ .08 $ 28 s 01
Eamings (loss) from discontinued- :
operations... .01 — .01 .06 (.18)
Cumulative effect of changc in ’
accounting principle.... — (1.40) -— —
Net earnings (loss).......... 3 35 OB g () 3])T00CR g 34 00 g (e
Diluted eamings (loss) per common
share:
Earnings from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of cha.nge
in accounting principle ...t $ .38 $ 35 $ .08 $ 28 $ 01
Earnings (loss) from dlscontmucd
operations... 01 — 01 .06 (.18)
Cumulative eﬁ'ect of change in
accounting pnncuple —_ — (1.40) — —
Net earnings (108).....c...... e $ .39 ORS¢ 35 PR g (1.31) $ 34 O g (17) WY
Dividends declared per common sharc .8 .10 - $ 10 $ 075 3 — 3 —

Year Ended October 31, ®

2004 2003
Pro forma amounts assuming 2005 change in accounting principle for preneed selling costs
was applied retroactively:

Net earnings (IOS8)..ciiminiriiisiiin s s e ren s e s ks s $ 30,739 8 {24,721)

Basic earnings {10ss) per common share..........oovceee s e 3 28 & (23)

Diluted camnings (10ss) per commen SHare...........ovcorinenenerermasires s 3 28 8 (.23)

October 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance Sheet Data :
ASBSELS 1ovvvererereeeresessies e e nseenrerenses e rnerens $ 2438974 % 2380577 § 2335609 § 2,511,508 3 2,504,161
Long-term debt, less current maturities........... 450,115 374,020 406,859 415,080 488,180
Shareholders” equUity ...coovviiemevcenesisinicsenns 423,318 446,893 439,453 587,978 552,731
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Selected Consolidated Operating Data

Year Ended October k) M

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Operating Data:
Funeral homes in operation at end of period .. 221 229 231 242 295
At-need funerals performed.............cccoomininns 38,072 38,937 39,264 42,542 48,544
Prearranged funerals performed ..................... 21,275 21,799 22,076 23,891 22,538

Total funerals performed ........coocevcreenrne 59,347 60,736 61,340 66,433 71,082
Prearranged funerals sold .........cccovenenrinenes 29,953 30,738 28,967 29,296 28,563
Backlog of prearranged funerals at end of
PERIOA... oot e 329,617 333,592 326,672 337,879 347,185
Cemeteries in operation at end of peried ........ 139 143 144 147 148
Interments performed ....coovevvvrvvnnreeenncnncnne 49,283 52,255 52,436 53,149 53,830

)

)

)

1),

Effective November 1, 2004, we changed our method of accounting for selling costs incurred related to new
preneed funeral and cemetery service and merchandise sales to expense them as incurred, which resulted in a
$254.2 million (3153.2 million after tax, or $1.40 per diluted share) charge for the cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle. For additional information, see Note 3(b) to the consolidated financtal
statements included in Item 8.

Effective April 30, 2004, we implemented FIN 46R which resulted in the consolidation of our preneed funeral
and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and our cemetery perpetual care trusts. Our financial statements
were not restated to reflect the implementation of FIN 46R. Accordingly, the implementation of FIN 46R is
reflected in our fiscal year 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 financial statements, but not in our financial statements
for fiscal year 2003. The implementation of FIN 46R affects classifications within the balance sheet, statement
of earnings and statement of cash flows, but has no material effect on shareholders’ equity, net cash flow or the
recognition and reporting of revenues or net earnings. For a more detailed discussion, see Notes 2(k) and 4
through 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

Effective November [, 2005, we implemented SFAS No. 123R, using the modified prospective application
transition method. Our financial statements were not restated to reflect this implementation. Accordingly, the
implementation of SFAS No. 123R is reflected in our fiscal year 2007 and 2006 financial statements but not in
our financial statements for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003. For additional information, see Note 18 to the
consolidated financial stateinents included in Item 8.

All businesses sold in fiscal years 2003 through 2007 that met the criteria for discontinued operations under
SFAS No. 144 have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The operating data
presented represents activity related to our total operations for the respective year. See Note 2(w) to the
consolidated financial staternents included in Item 8.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2007, we recorded a charge for the loss on early extinguishment of debt of
$0.7 mullion as a result of our senior convertible debt transaction.

In fiscal year 2006, we recorded $3.2 million in business interruption insurance proceeds in funeral and
cemetery revenne related to Hurricane Katrina, which struck the New Orleans metropolitan area and Mississippi
and Alabama Gulf Coasts on August 29, 2005. In fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, we alsc recorded $(2.5)
million, $1.6 million and ($9.4) million, respectively, in net recoveries (expenses) related to Hurricane Katrina,
See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

During fiscal years 2007 and 2006, we recorded $0.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively, in separation

charges related to separation pay of former executive officers and additional reorganization costs for the 2005
restructuring of the divisions. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we restructured our operating divisions and
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incurred $1.5 million in related severance charges. During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, we incurred $3.4 million
and $2.5 million, respectively, in separation charges related to severance and other costs associated with
workforce reductions announced in December 2003 and related to separation pay for former executive officers.
Sec Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

®Y In fiscal year 2003, we incurred charges for the impairment of certain long-lived assets related to our divestiture
plan of $9.6 million in continuing operations and $22.2 million in discontinued operations In fiscal year 2004,
we recorded gains on dispositions, net of impairment losses, of ($0.2) million in continuing operations and $2.4
million in discontinued operations. In fiscal year 2005, we recorded gains on dispositions, net of impairment
losses, of $1.3 million in continuing operations and $1.1 million in discontinued operations. In fiscal year 2006,
we recorded gains on dispositions, net of impairment losses, of ($0.2) million in continuing operations. In fiscal
year 2007, we have closed on the sale of 11 businesses. See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8.

® .In the first quarter of fiscal year 2005, we completed the refinancing of our senior secured credit facility and
recorded a charge for early extinguishment of debt of $2.7 million to write off fees associated with the previous
credit facility. In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, we completed the private offering of our 6.25 percent
senior notes and recorded a charge for early extinguishment of debt of $30.0 million representing the bond
tender premium, related fees and expenses and the write-off of unamortized fees related to our 10.75 percent
senior subordinated notes. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2005, we recorded a charge for early
extinguishment of debt of $0.1 million representing the call premium and write-off of remaining unamortized
fees on the 10.75 percent senior subordinated notes. For additional information, see Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8. .

™ In the third quarter of 2003, we incurred an $11.3 million charge related to the redemption of our Remarketable
Or Redeemable Securities (“ROARS”).

®  The pro forma data presented for fiscal years 2003 and 2004 is reportcd as if the fiscal year 2005 change in
accounting principle had occurred at the beginning of fiscal year 2003.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We sell cemetery property and funeral and cemetery products and services both at the time of need and on a
preneed basis. Our revenues in each period are derived primarily from at-need sales, preneed sales delivered out of
our backlog during the period (including the accumulated trust fund eamings or build-up in the face value of
insurance contracts related to these preneed deliveries), preneed cemetery property sales and other items such as
perpetual care trust earnings and finance charges. We also eamn commissions on the sale of insurance-funded
preneed funeral contracts that will be funded by life insurance or annuity contracts issued by third party insurers
when we act as an agent on the sale.

Overview of Fiscal Year 2007

For fiscal year 2007, we had net eamings of $39.8 million compared to a $37.6 million for fiscal year 2006.
Fiscal year 2007 earnings from continuing operations increased by $1.7 million to $39.3 million compared to $37.6
million for fiscal year 2006.

Funeral revenue decreased $0.9 million from $280.2 million in fiscal year 2006 to $279.3 million in fiscal
year 2007. During fiscal year 2006 we recorded an increase of $1.6 million in funeral revenue related to an out of
period adjustment and $2.8 million of business interruption insurance proceeds related to the 2005 hurricanes.
During 2007, our same-store funeral operations experienced an increase in the average revenue per traditional
funeral service of 3.4 percent and an increase in average revenue per cremation service of 7.4 percent. The increase
in the average revenue per traditional funeral and cremation service were partially offset by a shift in mix to lower-
priced cremation services resulting in an overall increase in the same-store average revenue per funeral service of
3.5 percent. We also experienced a decrease in same-store funeral services performed of 2.2 percent. The cremation
rate for our same-store operations was 39.3 percent for fiscal year 2007 compared to 38.6 percent for fiscal year
2006.
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Cemetery revenue increased 39.5 million from $234.0 million in fiscal year 2006 to $243.5 million in fiscal
year 2007 due to increases in construction during the period on various cemetery projects and an increase in gross
cemetery property sales. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in merchandise delivery revenue due in
part to a decrease in interments and an increase in the reserve for cancellations, which was due in large part to an
improvement in the reserve for cancellations in the prior year following Hurricane Katrina.

Funeral gross profit decreased $2.3 million due primarily to the decrease in revenue discussed above and a
$1.4 million increase in expenses. The increase in expenses is primarily due to an increase in property, casualty and
general liability insurance costs along with a $0.7 million impairment charge related to funeral licenses in the state
of Maryland. Cemetery gross profit increased $0.1 million.

There was a $4.1 million increase in hurricane related charges in 2007 over 2006. We recorded a $2.5
million charge for net hurricane related costs in 2007 compared to a $1.6 million recovery in 2006. Interest expense
decreased $4.5 million due to a 282 basis-point decrease in the average rate during the year. The decrease in the
average rate is primarily due to additional interest incurred in fiscal year 2006 on the Company’s 6.25 percent senior
notes as a result of the Company’s inability to timely complete a required exchange offer and due in part to the
reduction in interest resulting from the issuance of $250.0 million of senior convertible notes. In June 2007, we
issued $125.0 million of 3.125 percent senior convertible notes and $125.0 million of 3.375 percent senior
convertible notes, and we prepaid our Term Loan B. As a result of this transaction, we recorded a charge for the
loss of early extinguishment of debt of $0.7 million. We recognized tax expenses and benefits during fiscal year
2007. The largest of these was a $4.2 million income tax benefit due to the utilization of a capital loss carry forward
and the completion of an audit in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, resulting in a lower effective tax rate of 31.5
percent for fiscal year 2007 compared to 36.0 percent for fiscal year 2006.

Cash flow from operations decreased from $90.1 million for the year ended October 31, 2006 to $81.9
million for the year ended October 31, 2007, due primarily to $14.8 million in unusual trust withdrawals received
during fiscal year 2006 associated with the deferred revenue project compared to $2.1 million in 2007. In addition,
we made net tax payments of $9.3 million during 2007 compared to $4.2 million in 2006 due to a net operating loss
carryforward utilized in fiscal year 2006. There were also $1.3 million of net cash inflows recorded related to
Hurricane Katrina in 2007 compared to $3.8 million of cash outflows in 2006. Lastly, we received $2.1 million due
to the execution of a lease of our mineral rights at one of our cemeteries to an outside third-party.

During fiscal year 2007, we repurchased 7,698,000 shares of our Class A common stock in connection with
the June 2007 senior convertible debt transaction for $64.2 million and paid $10.2 million, or $0.10 per share, in
dividends. In addition, in September 2007, the Board approved a new $25.0 million stock repurchase program, and
in December 2007 increased the program by an additional $25.0 million.

For fiscal year 2007, we experienced a 6.2 percent increase in ¢cemetery property sales and a 1.1 percent
decrease in preneed funeral sales.

Reconstruction of our largest funeral operation in New Orleans began in eariy fiscal year 2007 and was
completed in November 2007. Our second largest funeral home in New Orleans reopened in the second quarter of
2007.

We discovered certain adjustments that relate to prior accounting periods while preparing our quarterly
report for the three months ended July 31, 2006 and our annual report for the year ended October 31, 2006, which
are reflected in this annual report. See Note 2(v) to the consolidated financial statements included in item 8. We do
not believe these adjustments were quantitatively or qualitatively material to our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows for the year ended October 31, 2006 or to any of our prior annual or quarterly financial
statements. As a result, we did not restate any prior period amounts.
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Preneed — Backlog, Trust Portfolio and Cash Impact of Sales

Overview

We believe that prenced funeral and cemetery property sales are two of the primary drivers of sustainable
long-term growth in the number of families served by our funeral homes and cemeteries. Our preneed funeral
service and merchandise sales and preneed cemetery service and merchandise sales are deferred into our backlog
while our preneed cemetery property sales are recognized currently in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” (“SFAS No. 66”). For a detailed
discussion of our revenue recognition policies and how we account for our at-need sales, preneed sales and trust
earnings, see Notes 2(i), 2(j), 2(k), and Notes 4 through 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

Backlog

We estimate that as of October 31, 2007 the future value of our preneed funeral and cemetery services and
merchandise backlog represented approximately $2.0 billion of revenue to be recognized in the future as these
prepaid products and services are delivered. This represents the face value of the backlog plus the earnings that are
projected on the funds held in trust and the estimated build-up in the face value of insurance contracts. It assumes
no future preneed sales and assumes maturities each year consistent with our experience, with the majority of
existing contracts expected to mature over the next 15 years. As of October 31, 2007, the value of the preneed
backlog, excluding any future earnings on the funds held in trust and any build-up in the face value of insurance
contracts, but including unrealized earnings and losses on the funds held in trust and realized earnings and losses on
the funds held in trust not yet recognized as revenue, was approximately $1.7 billion.

Trust Portfolio

We maintain three types of trusts and escrow accounts: (1) preneed funeral merchandise and services, (2)
prenced cemetery merchandise and services and (3) cemetery perpetual carc. Because a portion of the funds we
receive from preneed sales are deposited into the trusts and invested in a variety of debt and equity securities and
other investments, the performance of the trusts’ investments can affect our current and future revenue streams. We
recognize earnings and losses realized by preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts at the time
of delivery of underlying products and services. We recognize all earnings and losses realized by our cemetery
perpetual care trusts currently, including capital gains and losses in those jurisdictions where capital gains can be
withdrawn and used for cemetery maintenance. Because approximately 59 percent of our total trust portfolio is
currently invested in a diversified group of equity securities, we would generally expect our portfolio performance to
improve if the performance of the overall stock market improves, but we would also expect its performance to
deteriorate over time if the overall stock market declines.

The following table presents the overall annual realized return in our domestic trusts.

1991-1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

8-9% 5.8% 6.3% 4.3% 4.8% 2.6% 4.3% 5.1% 4.8%

These returns represent interest, dividends and realized capital gains or losses but not unrealized capital gains or
losses. Unrealized gains or losses include temporary and other than temporary gains and losses. For fiscal year
2007, including realized and unrealized gains and losses, we achieved an 8.2 percent return on our funeral and
cemetery merchandise and services trusts and a 6.3 percent return on our perpetual care trusts, compared to 12.7
percent and 11.0 percent, respectively, for fiscal year 2006. For the last three fiscal years ended October 31, 2007,
our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts experienced an average annual retumn of 9.2
percent, and our perpetual care trusts experienced an average annual return of 6.9 percent.

We mark our trust portfolio to market value each quarter. Changes in the market value of the trusts are
recorded by increasing or decreasing trust assets included in the preneed funeral and cemetery receivables and trust
investments line items on the balance sheet, with a corresponding increase or decrease in the deferred preneed
revenue and non-controlling interest line items on the balance sheet. Therefore, there is no effect on current period
net income. '
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We determine whether or not the investment portfolio has an other than temporary impairment on a
security-by-security basis. A loss is considered other than temporary if the sccurity has a reduction in market value
compared with its cost basis of 20 percent or more for a period of six months or longer. In addition, we periodically
review our investment portfolio to determine if any of the temporarily impaired assets should be designated as other
than temporarily impaired due to changes in market conditions or concerns specific to the issuer of the securities. If
a loss is other than temporary, the cost basis of the security is adjusted downward to its. market value, which is
allocated to the non-controlling interests in the trusts. This affects our footnote disclosure but does not have an
effect on our financial statements, since the trust portfolio is already marked to market value each quarter. The
footnotes disclose the adjusted cost basis and how much of the losses are considered other than temporary.
Accordingly, unrealized gains and losses reflected in the tables in Notes 4, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 are temporary as the cost basis in these tables have already been adjusted to reflect the
other than temporary unrealized losses. Our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and
escrow accounts had other than temporary declines of $74.3 million and $40.9 million, respectively, as of October
31, 2007, from their original cost basis. They had net unrealized appreciation of $20.7 million and $8.4 million,
respectively, as of October 31, 2007 resulting from temporary unrealized gains and losses. See Notes 4 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements included in [tem 8.  ~

Our cemetery perpetual care trust accounts had other than temporary declines of $32.8 million as of
QOctober 31, 2007; from their original cost basis, They had net unrealized appreciation of $13.2 million as of
October 31, 2007 resulting from temporary unrealized gains and losses. See Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements inclided in Item 8. Unrealized gains and losses in the cemetery perpetual care trusts and escrow
accounts do not affect current carnings but unrealized losses could limit the capital gains available to us and could
cventually result in lower returns and lower revenues than we have historically achieved from these trusts.

Aggregate unrealized losses for twelve months or longer for temporarily impaired investments totaled
$19.8 million at October 31, 2007, up from $11.2 million at October 31, 2006, White the loss has increased, based
on review of the individual securities and the criteria the Company uses to determine impairment of 20 percent or
more for a period of six months or longer, we do not believe these securities are other than temporarily impaired. Of
the $19.8 million, approximately 49 percent, or $9.6 million, were generated by preferred stock investments and 47
percent, or $9.3 million, were generated by common stock investments. The common stocks are represented by
assets in 30 companies of which 28 are included in the Standard and Poor’s 500 Index (“S&P 500 Index™). The
market value of these securities represents approximately 10 percent of the market value of the securities in our trust
portfolio. The preferred stocks are primarily in the financial services sector which has experienced a decline in
market value due to increasing mortgage rates, softening of the housing market and losses in the subprime mortgage
market, The vast majority of these companies are rated A or better by S&P, Moody’s or Fitch, and all continue to
pay dividends demonstrating their financial stability. Although we cannot predict future stock prices, our
management expects that the financial services sector and the S&P 500 Index will continue to recover and that these
stocks may recover along with the overall Index. We also have the ability and intent to hold these investments for
the forecasted recovery period.

Whether or not we classify an investment as temporarily impaired or other than temporarily impaired has
no effect on our basic consolidated financial statements (i.e., balance sheet, statement of earnings, statement of cash
flows and statement of shareholders’ equity) because the investments are marked to market value each quarter and
are included in the financial statements at current market value in accordance with our accounting under Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretations Number 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN
46R”). The classification only affects the footnote presentation. The cost basis of investments classified as other
than temporarily impatred is reduced to market value in the “Adjusted Cost Basis” column in Notes 4, 5 and 6,
whereas other investments are included in that column at their actual cost basis.

We perforrn a separate analysis to determine whether our preneed contracts are in a loss position, which
would necessitate a charge to earnings. For this analysis, we determine which trusts are in a net loss position by
comparing the aggregate market value of the trust’s investments with the aggrepate actual cost basis of the
investments. 1f the aggregate cost basis exceeds the aggregate market value of the investments, the trust is
considered to be in a net loss position. For trusts in a net loss position, we add the sales prices of the underlying
contracts and net realized earnings, then subtract net unrealized losses to derive the net amount of proceeds for
contracts associated with the trusts in question as of that particular balance sheet date. We look at unrealized gains
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and losses based on current market prices quoted for the investments, but we do not include future expected returns
on the investments in our analysis. We compare the amount of proceeds to the estimated costs to deliver the
contracts, which consist primarily of merchandise costs. If a deficiency were to exist, we would record a charge to
earnings and a corresponding liability for the expected loss on the delivery of those contracts from our backlog. Due
to the margins of our:preneed contracts and the trust portfolio returns we have enjoyed, there is currently substantial
capacity for additional market depreciation before a contract loss would result.

Cash Impact of Preneed Sales

The impact of preneed sales on near-term cash flow depends primarily on the commissions paid on the sale,
the timing of the tax payments on the sale, the portion of the sale required to be placed into trust and the terms of the
particular contract (such as the size of the down payment required and the length of the contract). We generally pay
commissions to our preneed sales counselors based on a percentage of the total preneed contract price, but only to
the extent cash is paid by the customer. If the initial cash installment paid by the customer is not suffictent to cover
the entire commission, the remaining commission is paid from subsequent customer installments. However, because
we are required to place a portion of each cash installment paid by the customer into trust, we may be required to use
our own cash to cover a portion of the commission due on the installment from the customer. Accordingly, preneed
sales are generally cash flow negative initially but become cash flow positive at varying times over the life of the
contract, depending upon the trusting requirements and the terms of the particular contract.

Commissions related to preneed funeral and preneed cemetery services and merchandise sales are expensed
as incurred. See Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements included in Item & for a discussion of the change
in accounting for preneed selling costs in fiscal year 2005.

Overview of Critical Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require us to make estimates and assumptions (see Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8). We believe that of our significant accounting policies
(discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8), the following are both most
important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require management’s most
difficult, subjective or complex judgment.

Deferred Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Funeral revenue is recognized when funeral services are performed. Our funeral receivables included in
current receivables primarily consist of amounts due for funeral services already performed. We sell price-
guaranteed prearranged funeral contracts through various programs providing for future funeral services at prices
prevailing when the agreements are signed. Revenues associated with sales of prearranged funeral contracts, which
include accumulated trust eamnings and increasing insurance benefits, are deferred until such time that the funeral
services are performed (see Note 2(i) to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8).

Revenue associated with cemetery merchandise and services is recognized when the service is performed
or merchandise is delivered. Revenue associated with preneed cemetery property interment rights is recognized in
accordance with the retail land sales provision of SFAS No. 66. Under SFAS No. 66, revenue from constructed
cemetery property is not recognized until a minimum percentage (10 percent) of the sales price has been collected.
Revenue related to the preneed sale of cemetery property prior to its construction is recognized on a percentage of
completion method of accounting. Revenue associated with sales of prenced merchandise and services is not
recognized until the merchandise is delivered or the services are performed (see Note 2(j) to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8).

We defer all dividends and interest earned and net capital gains and losses realized by preneed funeral trust
and prenced cemetery merchandise trust accounts until the underlying service or the merchandise is delivered.
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Variable Interest Entities

We consolidate our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and our cemetery
perpetual care trusts. For a more detailed discussion of our accounting policies after the implementation of FIN
46R, see Notes 2(k) and 4 through 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Cancellations

Management must make estimates of the uncollectibility of our accounts receivable. We establish a reserve
for uncollectible installment contracts and trade accounts based on a range of percentages applied to accounts
receivable aging categories. These percentages are based on an analysis of historical collection and write-off
experience. In addition, we establish a reserve for sales cancellations for cemetery property sales based on historical
cancellations and recent write-off activity. This reserve is recorded as a reduction in cemetery revenue. We also
establish an allowance for cancellations of insurance commissions based on historical experience for cancellations
of insurance contracts within the period of refundability. These estimates are impacted by a number of factors,
including changes in the economy and demographic or competitive changes in our areas of operation. If
circumstances change, our estimates of the recoverability of amounts due to us could change by a material amount.

Depreciation of Long-Lived Assets

Buildings .and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives,
primarily using the straight-line method. Buildings and building improvement items are generally depreciated over
a period ranging from 10 to 40 y¢ars. Equipment (including computer equipment, light equipment, heavy equipment
and crematory equipment) is generally depreciated over periods ranging from three to 20 years. Vehicles are
generally depreciated over five to seven years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the term
of the lease or the life of the asset. These estimates of the useful lives may be affected by such factors as changes in
regulatory requirements or changing market conditions.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

We review the carrying value of our long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. This review is based on our projections of anticipated undiscounted future
cash flows and compares the estimated undiscounted future cash flows to be generated by those assets to the
carrying amount of those assets. The net carrying value of any assets not fully recoverable would be reduced to fair
value. While we believe that our estimates of undiscounted future cash flows are reasonable, different assumptions
regarding such cash flows and comparable sales values could materially affect our evaluations.

Valuation of Goodwill

In our determination of reporting units for goodwill impairment testing purposes, both qualitative and
quantitative characteristics are evaluated. Gross margins are analyzed for purposes of determining whether or not
our operating divisions are considered economically similar. Our division presidents also review a variety of
metrics when assessing the performance of our regions. Qualitative factors include the nature of our products and
services, consistency of products and services and the delivering of those products and services in our funeral homes
and cemeteries, the similarity of class of customers across all locations and regulations in different jurisdictions.
Baséd on our evaluation, we have 13 reporting units. See Note 2(g) to the consolidated financial statements
inciuded in Item 8 for additional information.

Goodwill of a reporting unit must be tested for impairment on at least an annual basis, We conduct our
annual goodwill impairment analysis during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. In addition to an annual review,
we assess the impairment of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of goodwill may be greater than its fair value. Factors we consider important that could trigger an impairment
review include significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, significant
changes in the manner of the use of our assets or the strategy for our overall business and significant nepative
industry or economic trends.
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In reviewing goodwill for impairment, we first compare the fair value of each of our reporting units with
their carrying amounts (including goodwill). If the carrying amount of a reporting unit (including goodwill) exceeds
its fair value, we then measure the amount of impairment of the reporting unit’s goodwill by comparing the implied
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The implied fair value of a
reporting unit's goodwill is determined in a manner similar to the amount of goodwill determined in a business
combination. That is, we allocate the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit as
if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the
price paid to acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned
to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment charge is recorded when the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

Our goodwill impairment test involves estimates and management judgment using a discounted cash flow
valuation methodology. Step two of our impairment test involves determining estimates of the fair values of our
assets and liabilities. We may obtain assistance from third parties in assessing the fair value of certain of our assets,
primarily real estate, in performing our step two analysis. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in
the future, we may be required to record further impairment charges for these assets. Goodwill amounted to $273.3
million and $271.3 million as of October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Accounting for Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our
income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current
tax expense together with assessing temporary differences resulting from the different treatment of items, such as
deferred revenue, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which are included in our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax
assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we
establish a valuation allowance. The following items are reviewed to determine if a valuation allowance is required:
net operating losses (federal, state and U.S. possessions), capital loss carry forwards and deferred tax assets (federal,
state and U.S. possessions). To the extent we establish a valuation allowance or increase this allowance in 2 period,
we include an expense within the tax provision in the statement of earnings.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, deferred tax
assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets. In the event that
actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods, we may need to change our
allowance, which could materially impact our financial condition and results of operations.

Preneed Selling Costs

On May 31, 2005, we changed our method of accounting for preneed selling costs incurred related to the
acquisition of new prearranged funeral and cemetery service and merchandise sales to expense these costs as
incurred instead of deferring and amortizing these costs, We have applied this change in accounting principle
effective November 1, 2004. Prior to this change, commissions and other costs that varied with and were primarily
related to the acquisition of new prearranged funeral and cemetery service sales and prearranged funeral and
cemetery merchandise sales were deferred and amortized in proportion to the preneed revenue recognized in the
period in a manner consistent with SFAS No. 60, “Accounting and Reporting for Insurance Companies.” We
decided to change our accounting for preneed selling costs to expense such costs as incurred. We concluded that
expensing these costs as they are incurred would be preferable to the old method because it will make our reported
results more comparable with other public death care companies, better align the costs of obtaining preneed
contracts with the cash outflows associated with obtaining such contracts and eliminate the burden of maintaining
deferred selling cost records.

Estimated Insurance Loss Liabilities

We purchase comprehensive general liability, automobile liability and workers compensation insurance
coverages structured within a large deductible/self-insured retention premium rating program. This program results
in the Company being primarily self-insured for claims and associated costs and losses covered by these policies.
Historical insurance industry experience indicates some degree of inherent variability in assessing the ultimate
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amount of losses associated with the types of claims covered by the program. This is especially true due to the
extended period of time that transpires between when the claim might occur and the full settlement of such claim,
often many years. We continually evaluate the receivables due from our insurance carriers as well as loss estimates
associated with claims and losses related to these insurance coverages with information obtained from our primary
insurer.

With respect to health insurance that covers substantially all of our employees, we purchase individual and
agpregate stop loss coverage with a large deductible. This program results in the-Company being primarily self-
insured for claims and associated costs up to the amount of the deductible, with claims in excess of the deductible
amount being covered by insurance. Expected claims are based on actuarial estimates; actual claims may differ
from those estimates. We continually evaluate our claims experience refated to this coverage with information
obtained from our insurer.

Assumptions used in preparing these estimates are based on factors such as claim settlement patterns, claim
development trends, claim frequency and severity patterns, inflationary trends and data reasonableness. Together
these factors will generally affect the analysis and determination of the “best estimate” of the projected ultimate
claim losses. The results of these evaluations are used to assess the reasonableness of our insurance loss liability.

The estimated liability on the uninsured litigation and employment-related claims are established by
management based upon the recommendations of professionals who perform a review of both reported claims and
estimate a liability for incurred but not teported claims. These liabilities include the estimated settlement costs.
Although management believes éstimated liabilities related to uninsured claims are adequately recorded, it is
possible that actual results could significantly differ from the recorded liabilities.

We also have insurance coverage related to property damage, incremental costs and property operating
expenses we incurred due to damage caused by Hurricane Katrina. OQur policy is to record such amounts when
recovery is probable which generally means we have reached an agreement with the insurance company. For
additional information, see Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

We accrue for legat costs related to loss contingencies as the services are provided. If a settlement is
determined to be probable, then an estimate is recorded for the settlement at that time,

Results of Operations

The following discussion segregates the financial results of our continuing operations into our various
segments, grouped by our funeral and cemetery cperations. For a discussion of discontinued operations, see Note 12
to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. For a discussion of our segments, see Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. As there have been no material acquisitions or construction of
new locations in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, results from continuing operations reflect those of same-store locations.
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Comparison of Fiscal Year 2007 to Fiscal Year 2006

Year Ended October 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended October 31, 2006—Continuing Operations

Funeral Operations Year Ended October 31, Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
(In millions)
Funeral Revenue:
Eastern DIvISION ....cccevvivvrnerceneciicnncsreseseneceees 9 117.1 $ 116.3 $ .8
Western DiviSion .......c.ccoeoceeeeveveinieerinesieeeeenas 143.8 146.1 (2.3)
Corporate Trust Management @ .............cc...cee.... 18.4 17.8 .6
Total Funeral Revenue........ooeercccnnncnccicceian. $ 279.3 3 280.2 3 (9
Funeral Costs:
Eastern DiviSion .......coiiiiieeee e eeeeeeee $ 99.3 $ 97.9 $ 1.4
Western DiviSiOn .......cceeveveeesivirieeevnssnenens 116.4 116.6 {(2)
Corporate Trust Management )................cco........ N 5 2
Total Funeral Costs.........coeeemiiccirisreinsreemsrsreions $ 216.4 $ 215.0 $ . 1.4
Funeral Gross Profit:
Eastern DiviSiOn ...oocecececececececc e nenenes 3 17.8 $ 18.4 5 )
Western DIVISION ...oceeeeeereeriircccceece e 274 29.5 @
Corporate Trust Management L S 17.7 . 17.3 4
Total Funeral Gross Profit...........cocooooieeene. $ 62.9 3 65.2 $ (2.3)
Change in Same-
Change in Average Store Funeral Same-Store
Same-Store Analysis Revenue Per Call Services Cremation Rate
2007 2006
Eastern Division ............... 2.4% (1.3)% 35.1% 33.3%
Western Division..............  4.1% (2.8)% 42.5% 42.5%
Total ..o, 3.5% (" (2.2Y% 39.3% 38.6%

' Corporate trust management consists of the trust management fees and funeral merchandise and service trust
earnings recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered during the period. Trust management fees are
established by us at rates consistent with industry norms and are paid by the trusts to our subsidiary, Investor’s
Trust, Inc. The trust eamings represent earnings realized over the life of the preneed contracts delivered during
the relevant periods. See Notes 4 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item § for
information regarding the cost basis and market value of the trust assets and current performance of the trusts
{i.e. current realized gains and losses, interest income and dividends). Trust management fees included in
funeral revenue for 2007 and 2006 were $5.9 million and $5.5 million, respectively. As corporate trust
management is considered a separate operating segment, trust earnings are included in total average revenue per
call presented, but not in the Eastern and Western divisions’ average revenue per call. Funeral trust earnings
recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered included in funcral revenue for 2007 and 2006 were
$12.5 million and $12.3 million, respectively.

Consolidated Operations—Funeral

Total funeral revenue from continuing operations decreased $0.9 million, or 0.3 percent, for the year ended
October 31, 2007, compared to the corresponding period in 2006. Our same-store businesses achieved a 3.4 percent
increase in the average revenue per traditional funeral service and a 7.4 percent increase in the average revenue per
cremation service. The increase in the average revenue per traditional funeral and cremation service were partially
offset by a shift in mix to lower-priced cremation services. This resulted in an overall 3.5 percent increase in the
average revenue per funeral service in our same-store businesses. The cremation rate for our same-store operations
was 39.3 percent for the year ended October 31, 2007 compared to 38.6 percent for the year ended October 31,
2006. We also recorded $1.6 million in funeral revenue related to an out of period adjustment and $2.8 million in
business interruption insurance proceeds related to the 2005 hurricanes for the year ended October 31, 2006, We
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experienced a 2.2 percent decrease in the number of funeral services performed by our same-store businesses, or
1,304 events out of the 58,631 total same-store events performed. We believe the primary factors contributing to the
increases in our average revenue per traditional and cremation service were normal inflationary price increases,
more effective merchandising and packaging, and our focus on training and personalization.

Funeral gross profit from continuing operations decreased from $65.2 million in the year ended October 31,
2006 to $62.9 million in the year ended October 31, 2007 due primarily to the decreases in revenue discussed above
and a $1.4 million increase in expenses. The increase in expenses is primarily due to an increase in property,
casualty and general liability insurance costs, along with a $0.7 million impairment charge related to funeral licenses
in the state of Maryland. Prior to October 2007, funeral licenses in the state of Maryland were restricted to a
specific number that had previously been limited under Maryland law. The law changed in October 2007, and these
restrictions are no longer in place; therefore, the value of these assets has been impaired, and an irnpainnent charge
was recorded.

Segment Discussion—Funeral

Funeral revenue in the Eastern division funeral segment increased primarily due to an increase in the same-
store average revenue per funeral service of 2.4 percent. The increase in average revenue is partially offset by a 1.3
percent decrease in the number of funeral services performed by our same-store businesses. For fiscal year 2006,
funeral revenue in the Western division segment was increased by a $1.1 million out of period adjustment and $2.8
million in business interruption insurance proceeds related to the 2005 hurricanes, The Western division
experienced a 2.8 percent decrease in the number of funeral services performed by our same-store businesses,
partially offset by an increase in the same-store average revenue per funeral service of 4.1 percent. Funeral revenue
in the corporate trust management segment increased $0.6 million primarily due to an increase of $0.4 million in
trust management fees and $0.2 million in funeral trust earnings.

Funeral gross profit for the Eastern division funeral segment decreased primarily due to an increase in
expenses. The increase in expenses is primarily due to an increase in property, casualty and general liability
insurance costs along with a $0.7 million impairment charge for funeral licenses in the state of Maryland, as
described above. Funeral gross profit for the Western division funeral segment decreased primarily due to the
decrease in revenue as discussed above without a corresponding decrease in expenses. Expenses for-the Western
division funeral segment would have decreased more significantly were it not for an increase in property, casualty
and general liability insurance.

As demonstrated in the table above, the same-store cremation rate increased for the Eastern division funeral
segments and was flat for the Western division funeral segment.

Cemetery Operations Year Ended October 31, Increase

2007 2006 (Decrease)
{In millions)

Cemetery Revenue:

Eastern DiviSION ..o sssesms e esesenes 3 143.2 3 1368 % 6.4

Western Division........coeniecncnnnnnesseesncneneninnes %04 87.8 2.6

Corporate Trust Management ) .............coooovrvnnns 9.9 94 5

Total Cemetery Revenue ..............ococvvvvereennnrnneneinnn, 5 2435 3 2340 % 5.5
Cemetery Costs:

Eastern DivVISION .....cocveveececeeercaesrseeeeeeeees s sesrssnsneans $ 122.2 5 112.8 $ 9.4

Western Division............oceeveeeverevecnnnens e 71.2 71.3 (. 1)

Corporate Trust Management V...............coooooevnnnnen. .6 .5

Total Cemetery COStS ...covnreerereeeceereeceeevereeerirerenens $ 1940 § 1846 % 9 4
Cemetery Gross Profit: "

Eastern DiviSion .......c.c.occeveiiminiveieceeceeerers $ 210 5 240 b (3.0)

Western Division............. 19.2 16.5 27

Corporate Trust Managcmem O i, 9.3 8.9 4

Total Cemetery Gross Profit..........ccceivccnnininninnne $ 49.5 $ 49.4 3 .1
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' Corporate trust management consists of the trust management fees and cemetery merchandise and service trust
earnings recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered during the period. Trust management fees are
established by us at rates consistent with industry norms and are paid by the trusts to our subsidiary, Investor’s
Trust, Inc. The trust eamings represent earnings realized over the life of the preneed contracts delivered during
the relevant periods. See Notes 5 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 for
information regarding the cost basis and market value of the trust assets and current performance of the trusts
(i.e. current realized gains and losses, interest income and dividends). Trust management fees included in
cemetery revenue for 2007 and 2006 were $5.3 million and $4.9 million and cemetery trust earnings recognized
with respect to preneed contracts delivered included in cemetery revenue for 2007 and 2006 were $4.6 million
and $4.5 million, respectively. Perpetual care trust eamnings are included in the revenues and gross profit of the
related geographic segment.

Consolidated Operations—Cemetery

Cemetery revenue from continuing operations increased $9.5 million, or 4.1 percent, for the year ended
October 31, 2007, compared to the corresponding period in 2006, primarily due to an increase in construction during
the period on various cemetery projects and an increase in gross cemetery property sales. The increase is due in part
to serving customers interested in large cemetery property purchases such as private estates. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease in merchandise delivery revenues due in part to a decrease in interments and an
increase in the reserve for cancellations, which was due in part to an improvement in the reserve for cancellations in
the prior year following Hurricane Katrina. Gross cemetery property sales increased 6.2 percent for the year ended
October 31, 2007 compared to the year ended October 31, 2006 from $107.7 million to $114.4 million and represent
the aggregate contract price of cemetery property sale contracts entered into during the period. Gross cemetery
property sales are deferred until either ten percent is collected or if construction occurs. Cemetery gross profit from
continuing operations increased $0.1 million from $49.4 million in fiscal year 2006 to $49.5 million in fiscal year
2007.

We experienced an average return, excluding unrealized gains and losses, of 4.4 percent in our perpetual
care trusts for the year ended October 31, 2007 resulting in revenue of $10.2 million, compared to 4.6 percent for the
corresponding period in 2006 resulting in revenue of $10.1 million. Perpetual care trust earnings are included in the
geographic segments’ revenue and gross profit. See Note 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8 for information regarding the cost basis and market value of those trust assets and the current performance
of the trusts (i.e. current realized gains and losses, interest income and dividends).

Segment Discussion—Cemetery

Cemetery revenue in the Eastern division cemetery segment increased primarily due to an increase in
construction during the year on various cemetery projects, partially offset by a decrease in merchandise delivery
revenue. Cemetery revenue in the Western division cemetery segment increased primarily’ due to increases in
cemetery property sales, partially offset by a decrease in merchandise delivery revenue. Cemetery revenue in the
corporate trust management segment increased $0.5 million primarily due to a $0.4 million increase in trust
management fees and a $0.1 million increase in trust eamings recognized upon the delivery of preneed cemetery
merchandise and services.

Cemetery gross profit for the Eastern division decreased primarily due to an increase in expenses associated
with the increase in revenue and due to an increase in property, casualty and general liability insurance costs.
Cemetery gross profit for the Western division increased due to increases in revenue noted above and due to out of
period adjustments in fiscal year 2007 which had a $1.3 million positive impact to gross profit.

Discontinued Operations

Included in discontinued operations for the year ended October 31, 2007 were gains on dispositions, net of
impairment losses, of $0.6 million compared to $(0.2) million recognized for the year ended October 31, 2006.
Revenues for fiscal year 2007 were $2.8 million compared to $3.9 million in fiscal year 2006. The effective tax rate
for our discontinued operations for the year ended October 31, 2007 was a 38.2 percent expense compared to a
116.3 percent benefit for the same period in 2006. For additional information, see Notes 12 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.
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Other

For the year ended October 31, 2007, hurricane related charges, net of recoveries, increased $4.1 million
from net recoveries of $1.6 million in fiscal year 2006 to net charges of $2.5 million in fiscal year 2007. These
charges were due to repairs at locations damaged by Hurricane Katrina. The timing of the receipt of insurance
proceeds is not in line with the timing of cash spending related to Hurricane Katrina. We could incur immaterial
hurricane related charges in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, but do not expect any material hurricane related
charges after that. For addittonal information, see Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item
8.

Interest expense decreased $4.5 million to $25.1 million for the year ended October 31, 2007 compared to
$29.6 million for the same period in 2006 due primarily to a 282 basis-point decrease in the average interest rate
during the year. The decrease in the average rate is primarily due to additional interest incurred in fiscal year 2006
on the Company’s 6.25 percent senior notes as a result of the Company’s inability to timely complete a required
exchange offer and due in part to the reduction in interest resulting from the issuance of $250.0 million of senior
convertible notes.

The effective tax rate for our continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2007 was 31.5 percent
compared to 36.0 percent for the year ended October 31, 2006. The reduced rate in fiscal year 2007 was primarily
caused by a tax benefit of $3.4 million attributable to the utilization of a capital loss carryforward, coupled with a
tax benefit of $0.8 million attributable to the completion and settlement of an audit by the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico for tax periods 1999, 2000 and 2001. For additional information, see Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8.

We experienced an $11.9 million decrease in current receivables and a $8.3 increase in long-term
receivables from October 31, 2006 to October 31, 2007. The decrease in current receivables is primarily due to
declines in insurance receivables. We recorded $10.0 million in insurance proceeds receivable related to Hurricane
Katrina at October 31, 2006 and received the entire amount during the first quarter of 2007. The increase in long-
term receivables is due in part to a $2.4 million increase in tax receivables and an increase in installment receivables
associated with preneed cemetery property sales.

The $18.9 miilion increase in long-term deferred tax assets is primarily due to the $21.0 million tax benefit
resulting from the senior convertible debt transaction and related purchase of call options.

The $4.2 million increase in other assets is primarily related to a change in deferred charges related to the
senior convertible debt transaction.

The $7.2 million increase in accounts payable is primarily due to improved management of the payables
process due in part to the implementation of the Oracle financial software system.

As of October 31, 2007, our outstanding debt totaled $450.3 million. On June 27, 2007, we issued $125.0
million aggregate principal amount of 3.125 percent senior convertible notes due 2014 and $125.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 3.375 perceat senior convertible notes due 2016. As part of this debt transaction, we prepaid the
remaining balance of our Term Loan B for $164.0 million, sold commen stock warrants and purchased call options
resulting in a net cash outflow of $16.2 million and recorded debt issuance costs of $6.2 million. We had net debt
proceeds of $73.5 million (8250.0 million in proceeds of long-term debt and $176.5 million in repayments of long-
term debt). Also, as part of this debt transaction, we repurchased approximately 7.7 million shares of our Class A
common stock for $64.2 million in negotiated transactions which reduced our shareholder’s equity.

Preneed Sales into and Deliveries out of the Backlog
Preneed funeral sales decreased 1.1 percent for the year ended October 31, 2007 compared to the same

period in 2006. This decrease is primarily due to a decline in preneed funeral sales in our Eastern division due to the
selection of a new preneed insurance vendor and increased regulatory requirements for licensing.

35




The revenues from our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and service sales are deferred into our
backlog and are not included in our operating results presented above, We added $179.2 million in gross preneed
sales to our funeral and cemetery merchandise and services backlog (including $76.9 million related to insurance-
funded preneed funeral contracts) during the year ended October 31, 2007 to be recognized in the future (net of
cancellations) as these prepaid products and services are delivered, compared to gross sales of $182.5 million
(including $74.5 million related to insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts) for the corresponding period in
2006. Deliveries out of our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services backlog, including accumulated
trust earnings related to these preneed deliveries, amounted to $145.2 million for the year ended October 31, 2007,
compared to $151.8 million for the corresponding period in 2006, resulting in net increases in the backlog of $34.0
million and $30.7 million for the years ended QOctober 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Comparison of Fiscal Year 2006 to Fiscal Year 2005

Overview of Fiscal Year 2006

For fiscal year 2006, we had net earnings of $37.6 million compared to a net loss of $143.3 million for
fiscal year 2005. Contributing to the net loss in 2005 was an after-tax charge of $153.2 million for the cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle related to the change in our method of accounting for preneed seiling costs
effective November 1, 2004, Fiscal year 2006 earnings from continuing operations increased by $29.3 million to
$37.6 million compared to $8.3 million for fiscal year 2005. Contributing to the increase were charges for the loss
on early extinguishment of debt in 2005 of $32.8 million related to the refinancing of our senior secured credit
facility and our 10.25 percent senior subordinated notes. Funeral gross profit increased $4.0 million, and cemetery
gross profit increased $9.1 million. Corporate general and administrative expenses increased $12.3 million in 2006
due primarily to a $3.6 million increase in professional fees associated with our defense of class action litigation, a
$2.5 million increase in professional fees related to the amended SEC filings, a $1.5 million increase in expenses
related to expanded and improved training and a $1.2 million increase due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. We
also recorded a $1.6 million recovery for net hurricane-related costs compared to a $9.4 million charge in 2005.
Further discussion of the effect of the 2005 hurricanes can be found below in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8.

Funeral revenue increased $9.5 million from $270.7 million in fiscal year 2005 to $280.2 million in fiscal
year 2006 primarily due to an increase in average revenue per call of 1.9 percent and business interruption insurance
proceeds of $2.8 million offset by a 0.2 percent decrease in funeral services performed by same-store businesses.
Same-store results include the three funeral homes impacted by Hurricane Katrina. Excluding these funeral homes,
average revenue per call increased 1.7 percent and same-store funeral call growth increased 0.3 percent. Cemetery
revenue increased $15.8 million from $218.2 million in fiscal year 2005 to $234.0 million in fiscal year 2006 due to
increases in revenue from the sale of cemetery property, increases in merchandise deliveries, increases in perpetual
care trust earnings and decreases in the reserve for cancellations, offset by a decrease in construction during the year
on various cemetery projects.

For fiscal year 2006, we achieved a 13.5 percent increase in preneed funeral sales. We also experienced a
7.6 percent increase in cemetery property sales.

As of October 31, 2006, we had achieved our lowest net debt level in over ten years. During fiscal 2006,
we used $33.2 million to reduce our debt, including $30.0 million in unscheduled principal payments on our Term
Loan B. We initiated a quarterly cash dividend of two and one-half cents per share of common stock in the second
fiscal quarter of 2005, and in fiscal year 2006 paid $10.7 million in dividends on our common stock. In addition, we
used $22.0 million to repurchase shares of our Class A common stock pursuant to our recently completed $30.0
million stock repurchase program.

We discovered certain adjustments that relate to prior accounting periods while preparing our quarterly
report for the three months ended July 31, 2006 and our annual report for the year ended October 31, 2006, which
are reflected in this annual report. See Note 2(v) to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. We do
not believe these adjustments are quantitatively or qualitatively material to our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows for the year ended October 31, 2006 or to any of our prior annual or quarterly financial
statements. As a result, we have not restated any prior period amounts.
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Year Ended October 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended October 31, 2005—Continuing Operations

Year-Ended October 31, Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
(In millions)
Funeral Revenue:
Eastern Division :.........ccooviiennininnevrsneiveneinns 3 116.3 3 113.0 $ 33
Western DiviSion ........covvevvcrnninecncnnenerrnnieenen 146.1 138.8 7.3
Corporate Trust Management "V .............c.co..conreren. 17.8 18.9 (1.1)
Total Funeral ReVenue. .......c..covcveeevinnverccnnnsvisininne. 8 280.2 3 270.7 $ 9.5
Funeral Costs:
Eastern DiviSION ......ccococnvrvcriccrrsvsesrersrirnninsncnenens 9 979 % 945 5 34
Westem DivISION .....coevreerrrreiresriresee e rseevsanseeseaes 116.6 114.5 2.1
Corporate Trust Management (V.............c....ccooennnaen. 5 S5 —
Total Funeral CostS.......coorvireviveriiiriensesereinnnns $ 215.0 3 209.5 $ 5.5
Funeral Gross Profit: :
Eastern Division ....cooneinicnmceininscieneneeeesineeeenee. 0 18.4 $ 18.5 3 &)
Western DiviSion ....coceieeereceeeeee e ceer s 29.5 243 5.2
Corporate Trust Management ) ................ccoooveernene. 173 18.4 (L.1)
Total Funeral Gross Profit...........cocooevvvveieoceccnn. 3 652 8§ 612 § 4.0
Change in Same- :
Change in Average Store Funeral - Same-Store
Same-Store Analysis % Revenue Per Call Services Cremation Rate
. 2006 2005
Eastern Division............... 3.3% (% 333% 31.1%
Western Division.............. 2.0% 1.0% 42.5% 42.0%

1

@)

Total oo, 1.9% (& ()% 18.6% 37.3%

Corporate trust management consists of the trust management fees and funeral merchandise and service trust
earnings recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered during the period. Trust management fees are
established by us at rates consistent with industry norms and are paid by the trusts to our subsidiary, Investor's
Trust, Inc. The trust earnings represent eamings realized over the life of the preneed contracts delivered during
the relevant periods. See Notes 4 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 for
information regarding the cost basis and market value of the trust assets and current performance of the trusts
(i.e. current realized gains and losses, interest income and dividends). Trust management fees included in
funerai revenue for 2006 and 2005 were $5.5 million and $5.4 million, respectively. As corporate trust
management is considered a separate operating segment, trust earnings are included in the total average revenue
per call presented, not in the Eastern or Western divisions’ average revenue per call. Funeral trust eamings
recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered included in funeral revenue for 2006 and 2005 were
$12.3 million and $13.5 million, respectively.

On August 29, 2005, Huiricane Katrina struck the New Orleans metropolitan area and severely damaged three
of our funeral homes located in that area, which is part of our Western division. This same-store analysis

-includes these three funeral homes which had revenue of $10.2 million and $8.1 million for fiscal years 2006

and 2005, respectively, and performed 1,575 and 1,726 funeral services in 2006 and 20085, respectively.
Excluding these three funeral homes, the increase in average revenue per call for the Western division and the
Company was 1.7 percent and 1.7 percent, respectively, and the change in same-store funeral services for the
Western division and the Company was 1.5 percent and 0.3 percent, respectively.
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Consolidated Operations-——Funeral

Total funeral revenue from continuing operations increased $9.5 million, or 3.5 percent, for the year ended
QOctober 31, 2006, compared to the corresponding period in 2005. Our same-store businesses achieved a 3.8 percent
increase in the average revenue per traditional funeral service and a 1.5 percent increase in the average revenue per
cremation service. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in trust earnings recognized upon the delivery
of preneed funerals. This resulted in an overall 1.9 percent increase in the average revenue per funeral service for
our same-store businesses. We also recorded $2.8 million in business interruption insurance proceeds related to the
2005 hurricanes. We experienced a 0.2 percent decrease in the number of funeral services performed by our same-
store businesses, or 123 events out of the 59,968 total same-store events performed, which includes the impact of
Hurricane Katrina on our New Orleans funeral homes. Excluding these three funeral homes, same-store funeral
services increased 0.3 percent. We believe a number of factors contributed to the increases in our average revenue
per traditional and cremation service. We believe the primary factors were normal inflationary price increases, more
effective merchandising and packaging, our focus on training, customized funeral planning and personalization and
the funeral call incentive compensation program.

Funeral gross profit from continuing operations increased $4.0 million from $61.2 million in the year ended
Qctober 31, 2005 to $65.2 million in the year ended October 31, 2006 due primarily to the increases in revenues
described above. The cremation rate for our same-store operations was 38.6 percent for the year ended October 31,
2006 compared to 37.3 percent for the year ended October 31, 2005.

Segment Discussion—Funeral

Funeral revenue in the Eastern division funeral segment increased primarily due to an increase in the
average revenue per funeral service in the same-store businesses of 3.3 percent, partially offset by a 0.7 percent
decrease in the number of funeral services performed by the same-store businesses. Funeral revenue in the Western
division segment increased primarily due to $2.8 million in business interruption insurance proceeds and due to
increases in the average revenue per funeral service and the number of funeral services performed by the same-store
businesses of 2.0 percent and 1.0 percent, respectively, which includes the impact of Hurricane Katrina on our New
Otleans funeral homes. Excluding these funeral homes, average revenue per same-store funeral service and same-
store funeral services increased 1.7 percent and 1.5 percent, respectively, for the Western division funeral segment.
Funeral revenue in the corporate trust management segment decreased due primarily to a decrease in trust earnings
recognized upon the delivery of preneed funerals of $1.2 million, partially offset by an increase in trust management
fees of $0.1 million.

Funeral gross profit for the Eastern division funeral segment decreased primarily due to increased general
and administrative expenses. Direct funeral costs (which primarily include salaries and wages, merchandise costs,
selling costs and maintenance) also increased. Funeral gross profit for the Western division funeral segment
increased due to the increases in revenue discussed above.

. As demonstrated in the table above, the same-store cremation rate increased for both the Eastern and
Western division funeral segments.
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Cemetery Operations Year Ended October 31, Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
(In millions)

Cemetery Revenue: . .
Eastern DiviSion ........cvccccrvecinmecieenrorecrencre s b3 1368 % 1274 % 94

Western Division ... 87.8 79.6 8.2
Corporate Trust Management .............c...cooevvevcnnne. 9.4 11.2 (1.8)
Total Cemetery Revenue ..........ccoocievncvvccvesciven. 3 2340 § 2182 - % 15.8
Cemetery Costs:
Eastern DiviSion .......ccccovvnniirinnisiesscrm e 3 112.8 $ 111.7 5 1.1
Western Division... 71.3 65.7 5.6
Corporate Trust Management (” S5 5 —
Total Cemetery COstS ....oovrmivevviereinnimrereinererrneennas 3 184.6 $ 177.9 3 6.7
Cemetery Gross Profit:
Eastern DIVISION .ceccvoeovomcrmrreeeeeiesreeeecsnsvevnenrerns $ 240 % 157 % 83
Western Division ............ 16.5 13.9 2.6
Corporate Trust Management( ) 8.9 10.7 (1.8)
Total Cemetery Gross Profit...........c.cooeeeevvrencnccnnnns 3 494 8 403 % 9.1

() Corporate trust management consists of the trust management fees and cemetery merchandise and service trust
earnings recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered during the period. Trust management fees are
established by us at rates consistent with industry norms and are paid by the trusts to our subsidiary, Investor’s
Trust, Inc. The trust earnings represent earnings realized over the life of the preneed contracts delivered during
the relevant periods. See Notes 5 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 for
information regarding the cost basis and market value of the trust asscts and current performance of the trusts
(i.e. current realized gains and losses, interest income and dividends). Trust management fees included in
cemetery revenue for 2006 and 2005 were $4.9 million and cemetery trust earnings recognized with respect to
preneed contracts delivered included in cemetery revenue for 2006 and 2005 were $4.5 million and $6.3
million, respectively. Perpetual care trust eamings are included in the revenues and gross profit of the related
geographic segment.

Consolidated Operations—Cemetery

Cemetery revenue from continuing operations increased $15.8 nullion, or 7.2 percent, for the year ended
October 31, 2006, compared to the corresponding period in 2005, pnmanly due to increases in revenue from the sale
of cemetery property, an increase in merchandise delivery revenue, an increase in perpetual care trust earnings and a
decrease in the reserve for cancellations, offset by a decrease in construction during the year on various cemetery
projects. Revenue related to the sale of cemetery property prior to its construction is recognized on a percentage of
completion method of accounting as construction occurs. In 2005, we recorded approximately $1.6 million of
increased reserve for cancellations related to the areas affected by Hurricane Katrina. Gross cemetery property sales
increased 7.6 percent for the year ended October 31, 2006 compared to the year ended October 31, 2005 from
$100.1 million to $107.7 million. Gross cemetery property sales represent the aggregate contract price of cemetery
property sale contracts entered into during the period.

We experienced an average return, excluding unrealized gains and losses, of 4.6 percent in our perpetual
care trusts for the year ended October 31, 2006 resulting in revenue of $10.1 miilion, compared to 3.8 percent for the
corresponding period in 2005 resulting in revenue of $8.2 million. Perpetual care trust earnings are included in the
geographic segments’ revenue and gross profit. See Note 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8 for information regarding the cost basis and market value of those trust assets and the current performance
of the trusts (i.e. current realized gains and losses, interest income and dividends).

Cemetery gross profit from continuing operations increased $9.1 million from $40.3 million in the year
ended October 31, 2005 to $49.4 million in the year ended October 31, 2006. The increase is due to the increase in
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revenue described above partially offset by increased costs. Due to the high fixed-cost nature of the cemetery
business, increases in revenue can result in a disproportionate increase in gross profit.

' )

Segment Discussion—Cemetery

Cemetery revenue in the Eastern division cemetery segment increased primarily due to increases in
cemetery property sales, merchandise deliveries, perpetual care trust eamings and a decrease in the reserve for
cancellations, offset by a decrease in construction during the year on various cemetery projects. Cemetery revenue
in the Western division cemetery segment increased primarily due to increases in cemetery property sales and sales
and construction revenue and a decrease in the reserve for cancellations. Cemetery revenue in the corporate trust
management segment decreased due to a $1.8 million decrease in trust eammgs recognized upon the delivery of
preneed cemetery merchandise and services,

Cemetery gross profit for the Western division and Eastern division cemetery segments increased due to the
revenue increascs discussed above partially offset by increased costs. Due to the high fixed-cost nature of the
cemetery business, increases in revenue can result in a disproportionate increase in gross profit.

Discontinued Operations

Included in discontinued operations for the year ended October 31, 2006 were gains on dispositions, net of
impairment losses, of less than $(0.2) million compared to $1.1 million that was recognized for the year ended
October 31, 2005. Revenues for fiscal year 2006 were $3.9 million compared to $5.7 million in fiscal year 2005.
The effective tax rate for our discontinued operations for the year ended October 31, 2006 was a 116.3 percent
benefit compared to a 13.9 percent expense for the same peried in 2005. For additional information, see Notes 12
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. :

Other

Corporate general and administrative expenses for the year ended October 31, 2006 increased $12.3 million
compared to the same period in 2005 primarily due to a $3.6 million increase in professional fees associated with the
class action lawsuits, a $2.5 millien increase in professional fees related to the amended SEC filings and a $1.5
million increase in -expenses related to expanded and improved training. We also recorded $1.2 million in share-
based compensation costs for the year ended October 31, 2006 due to the adopnon of SFAS No. 123R as discussed
in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

As of October 31, 2006 and 2005, we had recorded net recoveries (charges) of $1.6 million and (39.4)
million, respectively, related to Hurricane Katrina. For additional information, see Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item §,

We reported losses on dispositions of ($0.1) million in continuing operations for the year ended October

31, 2006. In 2005, we recorded $1.3 million in gains on dispositions, net of impairment losses. For additional
information, see Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. The charges are presented in
the “Gains on dispositions and impairment (losses), net” line item in the consolidated statement of earnings.
“Interest expense decreased $0.9 million to $29.6 million for the year ended October 31, 2006 compared to
$30.5 million for the same peried in 2005 due primarily to a $24.5 million decrease in average debt outstanding
partially offset by a 12 basis-point increase in the average interest rate. Approximately $1.7 million of additional
interest was incurred in fiscal year 2006 on our 6.25 percent sentor notes due to our inability to timely complete a
required exchange offer. - The additional interest was eliminated in connection with the expiration of the exchange
offer on June 5, 2006.

Other operating income, net, was $1.3 million and $1.4 million for the years ended October 31, 2006 and

2005, respectively, and primarily included net gains on the sale of assets which were not included in our businesses
classified as held for sale.
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Investment and other income increased $3.0 million from $0.7 million in fiscal year 2005 to $3.7 million in
fiscal year 2006. This is primarily due to a $25.2 million increase in the average cash balance, an increase in the
average rate earned on our cash balances from 2.5 percent in fiscal year 2005 to 3.8 percent in fiscal year 2006 and
$1.0 million of interest income receivable from the internal Revenue Service.

The effective tax rate for our continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2006 was 36.0 percent
compared to 26.4 percent for the year ended Qctober 31, 2005, The reduced rate in 2005 was primarily due to.the
greater impact of the dividend exclusion on a reduced level of book income caused by increased costs associated
with the early extinguishment of debt and hurricane recovery costs. For additional information, see Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

On May 31, 2005, we changed our method of accounting for selling costs incurred related to new preneed
funeral and cemetery service and merchandise sales, effective November 1, 2004. As of November 1, 2004, we
recorded a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of $254.2 million ($153.2 million after tax, or $1.40
per diluted share), which represents the cumulative balance of deferred preneed selling costs in the deferred charges
line in the condensed consolidated balance shect at the time of the change. See Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements for additional information.

As of October 31, 2006, our outstanding debt totaled $376.9 million. Of the total debt outstanding as of
October 31, 2006, approximately 53 percent was subject to fixed rates averaging 6.2 percent, and 47 percent was
subject to short-term variable rates averaging approximately 7.2 percent. On November 19, 2004, we completed the
refinancing of our senior secured credit facility and recorded a charge for early extinguishment of debt of $2.7
million ($1.7 million after tax, or $.02 per share) to write off fees associated with the previous credit facility. On
February 11, 2005, we completed the private offering of $200.0 million principal amount of our 6.25 percent senior
notes due 2013. We also borrowed $130.0 million in additional term loan debt under our senior secured credit
facility. We used the net proceeds from these transactions, together with a portion of our available cash, to
repurchase $298.2 million in aggregate principal amount of our 10.75 percent senior subordinated notes due 2008
and to pay related tender premiums, fees, expenses and accrued interest of $28.9 million. In the second quarter of
fiscal year 2005, we recorded a charge for early extinguishment of debt of $30.0 million ($19.2 million after tax, or
-$.18 per share) representing the tender premium, related fees and expenses and the write-off of unamortized fees, In
the third quarter of fiscal year 2005, the remaining 10.75 percent senior subordinated notes were redeemed. We
recorded a charge for early extinguishment of debt of $0.1 million representing the call premium and write-off of
remaining unamortized fees on the 10.75 percent senior subordinated notes. See Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 for additional information.

Preneed Sales into and Deliveries out of the Backlog

We achieved a 13.5 percent increase in preneed funeral sales for the year ended October 31, 2006
compared to the same period in 2005.

The revenues from our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and service sales are deferred into our
backlog and are not included in our operating results presented above. We added $182.5 million in gross preneed
sales to our funeral and cemetery merchandise and services backlog {including $74.5 million related to insurance-
funded preneed funeral contracts) during the year ended October 31, 2006 to be recognized in the future (net of
cancellations) as these prepaid products and services are delivered, compared to gross sales of $169.5 million
{including $71.4 millicn related to insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts) for the comesponding period in
2005. Deliveries out of our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services backlog, including accumulated
trust eamings related to these preneed deliveries, amounted to $151.8 million for the year ended October 31, 2006,
compared to $146.5 million for the corresponding period in 2005, resulting in net increases in the backlog of $30.7
million and $23.0 million for the years ended October 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flow
Comparison of Fiscal Year 2007 to Fiscal Year 2006

QOur operations provided cash of $81.9 million for the year ended October 31, 2007, compared to providing
cash of $90.1 million for the corresponding period in 2006. The change in operating cash flow is due to cash
inflows of $2.1 million of extraordinary trust withdrawals in 2007 compared to cash inflows of $14.8 million for
trust withdrawals in 2006 related to the deferred revenue project. Also, $9.3 million of tax payments (net of
refunds) were made during the year ended October 31, 2007 compared to $4.2 million of tax payments (net of
refunds) for the comparable period in 2006 due to a net operating loss carryforward utilized in fiscal year 2006.
There were $1.3 million of net cash inflows recorded related to Hurricane Katrina in 2007 compared to $3.8 million
of cash outflows in 2006. The timing of receipt of insurance proceeds does not match the timing of cash spending
related to Hurricane Katrina. Lastly, we received $2.1 million due to the execution of a lease of our mineral rights at
one of our cemeteries to an outside third-party.

Our investing activities resulted in a net cash outflew of $34.2 million for the year ended October 31, 2007,
compared to a net cash outflow of $21.4 million for the comparable period in 2006. For the year ended October 31,
2007, capital expenditures amounted to $35.3 million, which included $18.9 million for maintenance capital
expenditures, $3.5 million for growth initiatives, $8.4 million related to Hurricane Katrina and $4.5 million related
to the implementation of two new business systems. For the year ended October 31, 2006, capital expenditures
amounted to $28.9 million, which included 3$20.7 million for maintenance capital expenditures, $2.9 million for
growth initiatives and $5.3 million related to Hurricane Katrina. We also purchased several properties in fiscal year
2007 resulting in a net cash outflow of $5.2 million. For the year ended October 31, 2007, there was a net cash
inflow of $2.5 million for insurance proceeds related to hurricane damaged properties compared to $6.0 million as of
QOctober 31, 2006,

Our financing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of $20.1 million for the year ended October 31, 2007,
compared to a net cash outflow of $65.4 million for the comparable period in 2006. This change is primarily due to
net debt proceeds of $73.5 million ($250.0 million in proceeds of long-term debt and $176.5 million in repayments
of long-term debt) in fiscal year 2007 compared to $33.2 million of debt repayments in fiscal year 2006. A $30.0
million unscheduled Term Loan B payment was made during the second quarter of 2006, In June 2007, we issued
$250.0 million in senior convertible notes as described in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8. As part of this debt transaction, we prepaid the remaining balance of our Term Loan B for $164.0 million,
sold common stock warrants and purchased call options resulting in a net cash outflow of $16.2 million and
recorded debt issuance costs of $6.2 million. Also, as part of this debt transaction, we repurchased approximately
7.7 million shares of our Class A common stock for $64.2 million, compared to $22.0 million in stock repurchases
for the same period in 2006 under our stock repurchase program in effect at that time.

Comparison of Fiscal Year 2006 to Fiscal Year 2005

Our operations provided cash of $90.1 million for the year ended October 31, 2006, compared to providing
cash of $52.8 million for the corresponding period in 2005. For the year ended October 31, 2005, we recorded $25.5
million for premiums paid for the early extinguishment of debt related to the debt refinancings in 2005. The
remaining increase is primarily due to a reduction in interest payments of $6.8 million primarily due to a change in
the timing of interest payment dates. These increases in cash flow were partially offset by $3.8 million of cash
outflows in excess of insurance proceeds recorded related to Hurricane Katrina compared to $2.5 million in 2005,
and cash inflows of $14.8 miilion for trust withdrawals associated with the deferred revenue project during the year
ended October 31, 2006 compared to $18.7 million for the same period in 2005, The timing of receipt of insurance
proceeds does not match the timing of cash spending related to Hurricane Katrina.

Cur investing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of $21.4 million for the year ended October 31, 2006,

compared to a net cash outflow of $12.4 million for the comparable period in 2005. In 2006, there was a net cash
inflow of $6.0 million for insurance proceeds related to hurricane damaged properties. Net asset sale proceeds were
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$1.2 million for the year ended October 31, 2006 compared to $10.0 million for the same period in 2005. For the
year ended October 31, 2006, capital expenditures amounted to $28.9 million compared to $22.6 million in the same
period in 2005. The increase in capital expenditures was due primarily to capital expenditures related to Hurricane
Katrina.

Our financing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of $65.4 million for the year ended October 31, 2006,
compared to a net cash outflow of $21.4 million for the comparable period in 2005. The change was due primarity
to debt repayments of $33.2 million in the year ended October 31, 2006 {(a $30.0 million unscheduled payment on
our Term Loan B was made in the second quarter of 2006) compared to net repayments of $6.8 million in the
comparable period of 2005 ($440.0 million in proceeds of long-term debt and $446.8 million in repayments of long-
term debt). Stock option exercises in fiscal year 2005 resulting in issuances of common stock amounted to $13.6
million compared to $0.4 million in fiscal year 2006. Stock repurchases under our stock repurchase program then in
effect amounted to $22.0 million and $13.7 million for the year ended October 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We
also reinstated our dividend program in the second quarter of 2005, therefore, fiscal year 2006 contains four quarters
of dividend payments for a total of $10.7 million compared to only three quarters in fiscal year 2005 for a total of
$8.2 million.

Stock Repurchase Plan

On September 19, 2007, we announced a new stock repurchase program, authorizing the investment of up
to $25.0 million in the repurchase of our common stock. Repurchases under the program are limited to our Class A
common stock, and will be made in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions at such times and in such
amounts as management deerns appropriate, depending upon market conditions and other factors. These
repurchases reduce the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period: Since the
inception of the new program through October 31, 2007, we had not repurchased any shares of our Class A
Common Stock under this program. As of December 20, 2007, we had repurchased 1,400,000 shares for $11.4
million under the program at an average price of $8.14 per share. On December 20, 2007, we announced a $25.0
million increase in this program.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

On June 27, 2007, we issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.125 percent senior convertible
notes due 2014 and $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.375 percent senior convertible notes due 2016
and prepaid the remaining balance of our Term Loan B. For additional information, see Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 and “Liquidity and Capital Resources - Cash Flow™ above.
+ As of October 31, 2007, our outstanding debt balance totaled $450.3 million. The following table details
our known future cash payments (in millions) related to various contractual obligations as of October 31, 2007.

Payments Due by Period
Fiscal Year Fiscal Years Fiscal Years
Contractual Obligations Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereafter
Long-term debt obligations ".................... $ 4503 § 2 % - 3 — 3 4501
Interest on long-term debt @..............coceoo 134.3 21.0 413 413 30.7
Operating lease agreements @ ............. . 319 4.3 7.0 3.7 16.9
Non-competition and other agreements (4) ] 27 1.7 _ Y 3 —

$ 6192 8 272 % 490 §$ 453 'S 4977

) See below for a breakdown of future scheduled principhl payments and maturities of our long-term debt by type
as of October 31, 2007.

@ Includes contractual interest payments for our senior convertible notes, senior notes and third-party debt.

& QOur nonc:;ncellable operating leases are primarily for land and buildings and expire over the next 1 to 15 years,
except for six leases that expire between 2032 and 2039, Our future minimum lease payments as of October 31,
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2007 were $4.3 million, $3.9 mitlion, $3.1 million, $2.1 million, $1.6 million and $16.9 million for the years
ending October 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and later years, respectively.

4  We have entered into non-competition agreements with prior owners and key employees of acquired
subsidiaries that expire at various times through 2012. During fiscal year 2001, we decided to relieve some of
the prior owners and key employees of their obligations not to compete; however, we will continue to make the
payments in accordance with the contract terms. This category also includes separation pay related to former
executive officers.

As of October 31, 2007, our outstanding, debt balance was $450.3 million, consisting of $250.0 million in
senior convertible notes, $200.0 million of 6.25 percent senior notes and $0.3 million of other debt. There were no
amounts drawn on the revolving credit facility. The following table reflects future scheduled principal payments
and maturities of our long-term debt (in millions) as of October 31, 2007,

Other
Principally
Seller
Revolving Senior ' . Financing of

Fiscal Year Ending Credit Convertible Acquired
October 31, Facility Notes Senior Notes Operations Total
2008 ... e 3 - $ — 3 — b 2 $ 2
2009 ... — — — — -
2000 . — - — — —
2011 i — — —_ — _
2012 — — — .= -—
Thereafter.......c..ccocermviinvinacniinnne — 250.0 200.0 .1 450.1
Totat long-term debt .................. $ — $ 2500 $ 2000 $ .3 $ 4503

We also had $13.0 million of outstanding letters of credit as of October 31, 2007, and we are required to
maintain a bond to guarantee our obligations relating to funds we withdrew in fiscal year 2001 from our preneed
funeral trusts in Florida. We substituted a bond to guarantee performance under certain preneed funeral contracts
and agreed to maintain unused credit facilities in an amount that will equal or exceed the bond amount. The surety
company has the right to terminate the bond at any time, and if that were to occur and we were not able to obtain a
replacement, we would be required to fund the trusts with cash equal to the bond amount. As of October 31, 2007,
the balance of the Florida bond was $30.8 million. We believe that cash flow from operations will be sufficient to
cover our estimated cost of providing the related prearranged services and products in the future.

As of October 31, 2007, there were no amounts drawn on our $125.0 million revolving credit facility. As
of October 31, 2007, our availability under the revolving credit facility, after giving consideration to the
aforementioned letters of credit and bond obligation, was $81.2 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Our off-balance sheet arrangements as of October 31, 2007 consist of the following two items:

() the $30.8 million bond we are required to maintain to guarantee our obligations relating to funds we
withdrew in fiscal year 2001 from our preneed funeral trusts in Florida, which is discussed in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8; and

(2) the insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts, which will be funded by life insurance or annuity contracts

issued by third-party insurers, are not reflected in our consolidated balance sheets, and are discussed in
Note 2(j) to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.
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Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges was as follows:

Years ended October 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
-3.050 2.839 1.34 ©X9 1.97% 1.07 ®

' Pretax earnings for fiscal year 2007 include a charge of $2.5 million related to Hurricane Katrina, a charge of
$0.6 million for separation charges primarily related to separation pay of a former executive officer who retired
in the first quarter of 2007 and $0.7 million for the loss on early extinguishment of debt related to the June 2007
senior convertible debt transaction. '

@ Pretax earnings for fiscal vear 2006 includes a net recovery of $1.6 million related to Hurricane Katrina,
business interruption proceeds of $3.2 million related to Hurricane Katrina, a charge of $1.0 million for
separation charges related to July 2005 restructuring of our divisions and the retirement of an executive officer
and gains on dispositions, net of impairment losses of ($0.2) million,

© Pretax earnings for fiscal year 2005 include a charge of $9.4 million for expenses related to Hurricane Katrina, a
charge of $1.5 million for separation charges related to the July 2005 restructuring of our divisions, $1.3 million
of gains on disposition, net of impairment losses and $32.8 million for the loss on early extinguishment of debt
related to the 2005 debt refinancings.

@ Excludes the cumulative effect of change in accounting principles.

G} Pretax earnings for fiscal year 2004 include charges of $3.4 million for severance and other costs relating to the
workforce reductions announced in December 2003 and separation payments to a former executive officer and
($0.2) million in gains on dispositions, net of impairment losses

©  Pretax eamings for fiscal year 2003 include a charge of $11.3 million for the loss on early extinguishment of
debt in connection with redemption of the ROARS, a noncash charge of $9.6 million for long-lived asset
impairment and a charge of $2.5 million for separation payments to former executive officers.

For purposes of computing the ratio of eamings to fixed charges, eamings consist of pretax earnings from
continuing operations plus fixed charges (excluding interest capitalized during the period). Fixed charges consist of
interest expense, capitalized interest, amortization of debt expense and discount or premium relating to any
indebtedness and the portion of rental expense that management believes to be representative of the interest
component of rental expense.

Effect of Recent Accounting Standards

For additional information on changes in accounting principles and new accounting principles, see Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a significant impact on our operations over the past three years, nor is it expected to
have a significant impact irr the foreseeable future.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The market risk inherent in our market risk sensitive instruments and positions is the potential change
arising from increases or decreases in the prices of marketable equity securities and interest rates as discussed
below. Generally, our market risk sensitive instruments and positions are characterized as “other than trading.” Our
exposure to market risk as discussed below includes forward-looking statements and represents an estimate of
possible changes in fair value or future earnings that would occur assuming hypothetical future movements in equity
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markets or interest rates. Qur views on market risk are not necessarily indicative of actual results that may occur,
and do not represent the maximum possible gains and losses that may occur. Actual gains and losses, fluctuations in
equity markets, interest rates and the timing of transactions, may differ from those estimated.

On June 27, 2007, we issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.125 percent senior convertible
notes due 2014 and $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.375 perceat senior convertible notes due 2016.
As part of this transaction, we sold common stock warrants and purchased call options. Such transactions were
entered into to mitigate the potential dilutive effect of the conversion feature of the senior convertible notes on our
commen stock, For additional inforiation about these transactions, see Note 14 to our consolidated financial
statements included in Item §.

Marketable Equity Securities

As of October 31, 2007 and 2006, our marketable equity securities subject to market risk consisted
principally of investments held by our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and our
cemetery perpetual care trusts and escrow accounts and had fair values of $598.0 million and $613.2 million,
respectively, which were determined using final sale prices quoted on stock exchanges. Each 10 percent change in
the average market prices of the equity securities held in such accounts would result in a change of approximately
$59.8 million and $61.3 million, respectively, in the fair value of such accounts.

Our prenced funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and our cemetery perpetual care trusts
and escrow accounts, all of which are managed by ITI, are further discussed in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis” in Item 7, and in Notes 4, 5 and 6 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 ITI
operates pursuant to a formal investment policy as discussed in “Operations” included in Item 1.

Interest

We have entered into various fixed- and variable-rate debt obligations, which are detailed in Note 14 to our
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

As of October 31, 2007, our long-term fixed-rate debt consists of our $200.0 million 6.25 percent senior
notes, $125.0 million 3.125 percent senior convertible notes, $125.0 million 3.375 percent senior convertible notes
and our third-party debt. On June 27, 2007 we issued the $250.0 million of senior.convertible notes. This
transaction is further discussed in Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. As of
October 31, 2007 and 2006, the carrying values of our long-term fixed-rate debt, including accrued interest, were
approximately $455.7 million and $203.6 million, respectively, compared to fair values of $457.1 million and
$191.6 million, respectively. Fair values were determined using quoted market prices. Each approximate 10
percent change in the average interest rates applicable to determine the fair value of such debt, 50 basis points for
2007 and 75 basis points for 2006 would result in changes of approximately $13.3 million and $7.3 million,
respectively, in the fair values of these instruments. If these instruments are held to maturity, no change in fair value
will be realized.

In June 2007, we prepaid the remaining balance of our variable-rate Term Loan B using proceeds from the
issuance of the senior convertible notes. As of Gctober 31, 2006, the carrying value of our Term Loan B was $178.1
million compared to a fair value of $177.9 million. Fair value was determined using quoted market prices. Each
approximate 10 percent change in the average interest rate applicable to this debt, 75 basis points for 2006, would
have resulted in a change of approximately $1.1 million in our pretax earnings. As of October 31, 2007 and 2006,
there were no amounts drawn on the revolving credit facility.

We monitor our mix of fixed- and variable-rate debt obligations in light of changing market conditions and
from time to time may alter that mix by, for example, refinancing balances outstanding under our variable-rate
senior secured credit facility with fixed-rate debt or by entering into interest rate swaps.

As of October 31, 2007 and 2006, our fixed-income securities subject to market risk consisted principally

of investments in our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and our cemetery perpetual care
trusts and escrow accounts and had aggregate quoted market values of $159.0 million and $103.1 million,
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respectively. Each 10 percent change in interest rates on these fixed-income securities would result in changes of
approximately $3.8 million and $2.4 million, respectively, in the fair values of such securities based on discounted
expected future cash flows. [f these securities are held to maturity, no change in fair value will be realized.

As of October 31, 2007 and 2006, our money market and other short-term investments subject to market
risk, including amounts held in preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts, and in our cemetery
perpetual care trusts, had carrying values approximating their fair values of $171.1 million and $180.8 million,
respectively. Under our current accounting methods, a change in the average interest rate earned by our preneed
funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts would not result in a change in our current pretax earnings.
As such, as of October 31, 2007 and 2006, only $27.1 million and $30.2 million, respectively, of these short-term
investments, which includes amounts in the cemetery perpetual care trusts and other short-term investments not held
in trust, were subject to changes in interest rates. Each 10 percent change in average interest rates applicable to such
investments, 10 basis points for 2007 and 2006, would result in changes of less than $0.1 million for 2007 and 2006
in our pretax earnings. _

The fixed-income securities, money market and other short-term investments owned by us are principally
invested in our preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts and our cemetery perpetual care trusts
and escrow accounts, which are managed by ITL ITI operates pursuant to a formal investment policy as discussed
above.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Stewart Enterprises, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Stewart Enterprises, Inc. and its subsidiaries at October 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2007 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our
opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of October 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Jaternal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Company's
management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial staternent schedule, and on
the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Qur audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemnal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 3(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the method of accounting
for share-based compensation effective November 1, 2005. As discussed in Note 3(b} to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for preneed selling costs incurred related to the
acquisitions of new prearranged funeral and cemetery service and merchandise sales effective as of November 1,
2004,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairty reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements,
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
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inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New Orleans, Louisiana
December 21, 2007
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended October 31,

2007 2006 2005
Revenues:
FUNCTAL ..ot cenn e rpree ey e sem o s snsessasmassasrasas 279,330 280,237 $ 270,713
Cemetery 243,487 233,993 218,196
522,817 514,230 488,909
Costs and expenses: ’
FUDETAL ....o.oo i s snn s 216,375 215,042 209,523
CRIMELENY oottt e st st et sss b bbb sas b i 194,012 184,575 177,907
- : 410,387 399,617 387,430
Gross Profit . 112,430 114,613 101,479
Corporate general and administrative expenses (31,143) (31,739 (19,440)
Hurricane related recoveries (charges), net.................. (2,533) 1,628 {9,366)
Separation ChAIZES ...t e e (580) (991) (1,507)
Gains on dispositions and impairment (losses), NEL ..........ccovivernvirsrerinnns {44) (153) 1,31)
Other operating inCome, Net..........coveceeevneercnecnereeneens 1,651 1,333 1,373
Operating Camings ... 79,781 84,691 73,850
TNEETESt EXPEISE. e rvosetemiunee e temnere e et e e seessenmse et sas s rrass (25,065) (29,633) (30,460)
Loss on carly extinguishment of debt........c.c.oovcvennienne, (677) — (32,822)
Investment and other INCOME, NEL.....cuimisirmrcinireresimssiismss e seeens 3,374 3,676 713
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........ocevinnne. 57,413 58,734 11,281
INCOMIE tAXES ..vvvcriremremrmresrrsrares rsrssireres s rsnercrneamssnnre s sasmeresas s sasasesssnssenes 18,099 21,154 2,978
Earnings from continuing-operations before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle.............coocociveercnceicnc e 39,314 37,580 8,303
Discontinued operations:
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes ..... 807 (80) 1,802
Income tax expense (Benefit) ..., 308 (93} 25]
Earnings from discontinued operations..........cc..coccccnerimncnncnnsniiinin 499 13 1,551
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle...... 39813 37,593 9,854
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (net of :
$101,061 income tax benefit in 2005) ..o — — (153,180)
Net arnings (LOSS) ....ooveeeeee e b 39,813 37,593 $  (143,326)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
Eamnings from continuing operations before cumutative effect
of change in accounting prnciple ..o cverrvrrrrssinecens 38 35 b .08
Earnings from discontinued operations .01 — .01
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle —_ — (1.40)
et earNiNGS (F0S5) -.cererrererececcrraresenressoriersrssmnsssseassssemsseseesressencenins 39 35 $ (1.31)
Dituted earnings (loss) per commeon share:
Earnings from continuing operations before cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle ....... 38 35 § .08
Earnings from discontinued operations Ot — .01
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — _(1.40)
Net €arnings (J055) ..oovvcrvereerviimnirisenrmeienersrereesensssessenes 39 35 § (1.3
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in thousands):
BASIC .o e e s 102,584 106,855 109,040
DHIULE ..ocevee et e srsas e sns e s 102,737 106,900 109,205
Dividends declared per common Share ..........c.c.ceeeveeeereeesrcensicecesniensanes $ 10 $ .10 $ 075

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

October 31,
ASSETS 2007 2006
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ............ccccooimoreieceieiceee s $ 71,545 3 43,870
Marketable SECUMEIES ... .oeerrvreeiririrrrirrresaresienr e renarersesnrssesrassrarasarsisans 262 239
Receivables, net of alloWANCES ......coevicriveirienrirnes s essee i sessnese et et 60,615 72,554
Inventortes... 36,061 36,252
Prepaid expenses 6,355 , 6,428
Deferred income taxes net ....................................................................... 8,621 10,502
Assets held for sale........ocoveeiiereevvce e rerereresnsnreeerrreneranne — 349
Total current assets .. 183,459 170,194
Receivables due beyond one year net of allowances ................................... 83,608 75,350
Preneed funeral receivables and trust investments ......c..occooveevvivcrnnnirevninnnns 515,053 513,695
Preneed cemetery receivables and trust investments.........ccoveecceinrerccniniennnns 255,679 257,930
Goodwill... 273,286 271,342
Cemetery property, at cosl ............................................................................ 374,800 370,280

Property and equipment, at cost: _ ‘ .
87V T rearev e . 43,767 41,185
BUIlINGS ..ot s e s 310,968 290,874
Equipment and other......... ..o 164,246 149,067
518,981 481,126
Less accumutated depreciation...........cocineveiieenienececineieneseinsesseseanas 213,063 - 188,826
Net property and eQUIPIMENT .....c.orreierirvimiirisissrsisssesresiscs e e 305,918 292,300
Deferred income taxes, NEt ... 192,859 173,983
Cemetery perpetual care trust inVeStMENTS ........cocceeeeeerernrnrneseererereseesernrnnnes 236,503 228,648
Non-current assets held for sale ...ttt — ' 13,265
L0211 1=) g 10 1T 17,809 13,590
TOAY BSSELS .veereeeririiiierieecreeeecaesre it ernreraerteeseressessaesssensesnsrereeressesarasans g 2,438,974 3 2,380,577

{continued)
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

October 31,
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 2007 2006
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt..........coocvovrorrerrcnvrene e reererneres $ 198 $ 2,839
AcCOUNts payable ... 26,606 19,375
Accrued payroll and other benefits...........ccooo 16,316 17,353
ACCIUEd INSUFANCE ... vvvieerecereesiiies s raease et asssssesesssntesassteenirssarnesssrerraranyanens 21,252 21,803
ACCTUEH INTELESE. .. covvviieivrereerresiresirieres vt aesrsssssrsisasssssssnsssserssesrrerssrensrrrns 5,576 5,822
Other cUITent HADIHEIES . ...vvvee vt i cre e rers st st sesssrree e s e srennesanerns 17,958 18,141
Income taxes payable ... 4,177 3,703
Total current abilities ........cceeiiv i s rsssanee s 92,083 89,036
Long-term debt, less current maturities ...........oeeverevrevevscsesiese e seccenens 450,115 374,020
Deferred preneed funeral revenue..........ciininiiiiiinnn, 256,603 270,267
Deferred preneed cemetery revenue . . 284,507 296,324
Non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts ................................ 683,052 653,814
Non-current liabilities associated with assets held for sale........ccoocvvevcrirnns — 8,833
Other long-term Habilities. ..o ssssssn e s 13,869 12,410
Total Habilties ..o.ooveeeeee e ee e enaes 1,780,229 1,704,704
Commitments and contingencies (NOte 1)t e
Non-controlling interest in perpetual care trusts.. 235,427 227,141
Non-controlling interest in perpetual care trusts ass:mated w1th assets held
0] =Y =S U S TS — 1,839
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares
authorized; N0 Shares ISSUE........ccveerveeeeriie i vre s raesaeas — —
Common stock, $1.00 stated value:
Class A authonized 150,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 94,865,387 and 101,408,227 shares at
October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively ......cccovniriricinininsecnnnnes 94 865 101,408
Class B authorized 5,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 3,555,020 shares at October 31, 2007 and
2006; 10 votes per share convertible mto anh equal
number of Class A shares... 3,555 3,555
Additional paid-in capital.... 583,789 640,648
Accumulated deficit .. “ (258,902) (298,715)
Accumulated other comprehenswe income (loss)
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments .............c.c.... 11 3)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (10S8) .....ccocvvivnees 11 (3)
Total shareholders’ eqUIty ......cvvevevrvrvecreriricsierrireec s 423,318 446,893
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ..........ccccocveeiiiinveicrcsisinnees $ 2,438,974 $ 2,380,577

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Balance October 31, 2004..................

Comprehensive income (loss):
NEtJOSS.......ece st

Other comprehensive income {loss):
Unrealized depreciation of
investments, net of deferred tax
expense of ($2) oo
Unrealized appreciation on
derivative instrument designated
and qualifying as a cash flow
hedging instrument, net of
deferred tax expense of ($204) ...
Total other comprehensive income
(loss).
Total comprehensive income {loss)....

Restricted stock activity
Issuance of common stock ..
Stock options exercised
Tax benefit associated with stock
options exercised...........oorveunee,
Purchase and retirement of common
SOCK ...oveenee s b
Dividends ($.075 per share)
Balance October 31, 2005...

Derivative
Usearned Unreslized Financisl
Additional Restricted Depreciation Instrument Total
Common Paid-In Accumulated Stock of Gains Sharcholders’
Sitock Capital Deficit Compensation Investments (Losses) Equity
$107,885 $ 673,630 $ (192,982) $ {222) $ - $ {333) $ 581978
— — (143,326) —_— — — (143,326)
- - -~ - ® - ®
— — — — — 333 333
_ — — — [€) 13 330
— —_ {143,326) — (€3] 3313 (142,996}
155 936 — (347) — - 744
7 358 — — — - 235
2,654 10,513 — — —_ — 13,167
- 1,993 — — - — 1,993
(2,100) {11,585) — — — — (13,685)
— (8,183) — — — — (8,183)
$ 108,670 § 667,661 5 (336,308} 3 {569) 3 (1) H — $ 439,453
{continued)
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Unearned
Additional Restricted Unrealized Total
Common Paid-In Accumulated Stock Depreciation Sharcholders’
Stock Capital Deficit Compensation of lnvestments Equity
Balance October 31,2005.........ccccceccco.. 108,670 $ 667,663 $ (336,308) $ (569) $ (3) § 439453
Comprehensive income: net eamnings.... —_ — 37,593 — — 37,593
Adoption of SFAS No. 123R ..c..oeveeics —_ {569) — 569 — —_
Restricted stock activity........ 6 327 — _ — 333
Issuance of common stock 150 648 — —_ — 798
Stock options exercised.....ooonvivieenirinens 33 149 — —_ — 182
Share-based compensation............ewens — 1,203 — -— — 1,203
Purchase and retirement-of common
SEOCK o vvrareenecerresuntesnmeemesmenenenererens (3,896) (18,100} — — — (21,996)
Dividends ($.10 per share) ......cccccveeenne — (10,673} —_— — — (10,673)
Balance October 31, 2006 ..o § 104,963 $ 640,648 $ (298,715) b — $ (3) § 446,893
Unrealized
Appreciation Total
Common Additional Paid-In Accumulated (Depreciation) Shareholders’
Stock Capital Deflcit of Investments Equity
Balance October 31, 2006......cccccvvvveeeee. $ 104,963 b3 640,648 $ (298,715 $ 3) $ 446,893
Comprehensive income: ,
Net 2amings. ..o envin s —_ — 19,813 —_ 39,813
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized appreciation of
investments, net of deferred tax
expense of ($8) .. cccccrimrecvarirenen — — — 14 14
Total other comprehensive income....... — — — 14 14
" Total comprehensive income ......c.vv.oo... — — 39,813 14 39,827
Restricted stock activity ..... 531 (144) -—_ — . 387
Issuance of common stock . 213 1,249 —_— — 1,462
Stock options exercised...... 411 2,221 — — 2,632
Share-based compensation.......covuines — 1,576 — — 1,576
Tax benefit associated with stock
OpHoNs exercised. ..., —_ 76 — — 76
Purchase and retirement of common '
SEOCK .ovceciarsriseencnsacsaresrresesransraresareer (7,698} (56,503) — —_ {64,201)
Purchase of call options, net of tax
benefit of $21,000 ....ccccorcreeeiriaee — (39,000) _ — (39,000)
Sale of common stock warrants . — 43,850 — — 43,850
Dividends ($.1¢ per share).................... — (10,184) — — {10,184)
Balance October 31, 2007 .....ococoveeeee. § 98,420 ] 583,789 $ (258902) $ 11 $ 423,318

M Amount includes shares of Class A common stock with a stated value of $1 per share, and includes 3,555 shares (in thousands) of Class B

common stock.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

. Year Ended October 31,
2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
INEE CAITHNES (10S8).u. e rereerermeaensssnsssirsssssssseseesssesssmessasecsas e e sesnsessasty s cnson . 3 39813 % 37,593 s (143,326)
Adjustments to reconcile net carnings (loss) to nut cash pm» 1ded by operating
. activities:
| Cumulative effect of change in accounting prnciple ..o e essaceeeneennnen. — — 153,180
{Gains) on dispositions and IMPaimMEnt 10SSEs, RET .....cvwucureeceerveenrrecuserscesnsererses {565) 3z7 (2,401}
’ Impairment of hurricane damaged properties.... s — — 11,661
! Loss on carly extinguishment of debt " 677 L 32,822
Premiums paid on early extinguishment of debt . — — (25,461)
Depreciation and amMOTHZAUOM. ....uervrireciecrnisenc st s emsssmssonsaseses . 27,638 25,666 25,709
Provision for doubtful accounts......... — 9,756 6,795 10,077
Share-based compensation........n 1,576 1,203 —
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements (153) (n —
Tax benefit on stock options exercised.. . - — 1,993
Provision {benefit) for deferred inCOME taXES...ovvvverveeverevererenas T 4337 14,281 (543)
OHRET....se e ecveaine s erssesesassasas 4 sRasd S8 sk s bre e s e msesssas eena e sastansebas et antatasbtms sunnrean 2,019 337 518
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables...... (7,795) (22,256) {14,155}
(lncmsc) decrease in inventories B.nd cema:tery property . (4,365) (4,193) 1,246
Increase in accounts payable and accrued eXpenses....c..ccveecvevercververeereenrreaas 1,741 10,454 7,018
Net effect of preneed funeral production and maturities:
Decrease in preneed funeral receivables and trust investments ................... 4,167 4,567 4,141
Decrease in deferred preneed fureral revenue............ (15,435) (15,375) (13,628)
Increase in funeral non-controlling intetest............ 10,867 5,058 2,449
Net effect of preneed cemetery production and deliveries:
Decrease in prenced cemetery receivables and trust investments ........vv.n. 5,042 3479 1,192
Increase (decrease) in deferred prenced <emetery revenue ........... {11,807 10,235 (8,313)
[ncrease in cemetery non-controlling interest............ 11,681 11,686 12,368
Increase (decrease) in Other . mvveceeevvucsonren 2,747 (2,779) (3,703)
Net cash provided by operating activities 81,941 90,101 52,842
Cash flows from investing activities: .
Proceeds from sales of marketable SECUMIBES ....vvvvvvenimnsssanieinnes : . — — 16
Proceeds from sale of assets, net......covvreveneas 3,750 1,218 10,007
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired.............. (5,203) — _
Insurance proceeds related to hurricane damaged pmpcmcs 2,529 6,000 —
Additions to property and equipment . {35,310) (28,907) (22,569)
OREr .o e ssreesamserass 48 249 149
Net cash used in investing activities {34,186) (21,440) {12,397)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from MR-t GEbl.... .o rece et srescemecrsearssrasssssssmsasessassssssessrassrsass 250,000 — 440,0000
Repayments of long-term debt.. [ S (176,547} (33,168) ) {446,778)
Debt issue costs [ 6,217) — - {6,257)
Proceeds from sale of common smck warrants .. 43,850 — —
Issuance of common stock .. " . s ——— 3,065 o8 13,602
Purchase and retirement of COmmON SIOCK ......v v vuervirrvsserenssssmsreaes (64,201) (21,996) {13,685)
Purchase of call options ........ {60,000) — -
DAVIAENAS «..e.eeeeeeceecerr vt semstrerras srssssssssss ssbssssasssbas s st abasan (10,184) (10,673) (8,183)
Excess tax benefits from share-based PayMen! AMANZEMENLS. ... ocueremerreetmsreenreessrenes 153 11 —
Other — 62 (53)
Net cash used in financing acuvms (20,080) {65,396) (21,354)
Net increase in cash b AR S S bbb s e bems e 27,675 3,265 19,091
Cash and cash equivalents, bcgmmng OF YEAL ..o erecscenaresevseveas eemaressensrrasenrassens 43,870 40,605 21,514
Cash and cash equivalents, end of YEaT.....u it iemecnseaecreseeseemsensessesreenes $ 71,545 % 43870 § 40,605
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes.......... 9,300 3 4,200 $ 2,000
INterest....ocoi s 24,800 $ 27,600 $ 34,400
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of common stock to executive officers and directors ..o s 1,028 § 612 $ -
Issuance of restricted stock, net of fOrfEIUTES ..o . B 4,136 $ 35 $ 1,090

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(1) The Company

Stewart Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company™) is a provider of funeral and cemetery products and services in
the death care industry in the United States. Through its subsidiaries, the Company offers a complete range of
funeral merchandise and services, along with cemetery property, merchandise and services, both at the time of need
and on a preneed basis. As of October 31, 2007, the Company owned and operated 221 funeral homes and 139
cemeteries in 24 states within the United States and Puerto Rico. The Company has five operating and reportable
segments consisting of a corporate trust management segment and a funeral and cemetery segment for each of two
geographic areas: Western and Eastern, Additional information on segments can be found in Note 20.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Company and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. A discussion of discontinued operations,
assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale can be found in Note 12.

(b) Use of Estimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and these differences could be material.

(¢c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Estimated fair value amounts have been determined using available market information and the valuation
methodologies described below. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop
estimates of fair value. The use of different market assumptions or valuation methodologies could have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. The Company deposits its cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions. Such balances
typically exceed applicable FDIC insurance limits. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and current
receivables approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The carrying amount of
receivables due beyond one year approximates fair value because they bear interest at rates currently offered by the
Company for receivables with similar terms and maturities,

The carrying amounts of marketable securities and marketable securities included in preneed funeral trust
investments, preneed cemetery trust investments and cemetery perpetual care trust investments are stated at fair
value as they are classified as available for sale under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“SFAS No. 1157).

Any investment with a fair market value that has been less than its cost basis by 20 percent or greater for
more than six months as of the respective balance sheet reporting date is considered other than temporarily impaired.
In addition, the Company periodically 'reviews its investment portfolio to determine if any of the temporarily
impaired assets should be designated as other than temporarily impaired. This evaluation includes determining if the
Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments for its forecasted recovery peried and determining if
there have been any changes in market conditions or concerns specific to the issuer of the securities. Otherwise, an
investment with a fair market value that is less than its cost basis is considered to be temporarily impaired. This
evaluation of impairment with respect to the Company’s trust portfolio is performed each quarter using quoted
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

market prices. If a loss is ‘other than temporary, the cost basis of the security is adjusted downward to its market
value. This is reflected in the Company’s footnote disclosure, but does not otherwise have an effect on the financial

- statements, since the trust portfolio amount as reported in the consolidated balance sheet is already marked to market
value each quarter.

The fair value of the Company’s long-term variable-rate and fixed-rate debt is estimated using quoted
market prices, where applicable, or future cash flows discounted at rates for similar types of borrowing
arrangements as discussed in Note 14.

Pursuant to Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 90-19, “Convertible Bonds with Issuer Option
to Settle for Cash upon Conversion,” (“EITF 90-19™), EITF Issue No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial
Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock,” (“EITF 00-19"), and EITF Issue No.
01-06, “The Meaning of Indexed to a Company’s Own Stock” (“EITF 01-067), the senior convertible notes are
accounted for as a liability with a carrying amount equal to their principal amount in the consolidated balance sheet
and the embedded conversion option in the senior convertible notes has not been accounted for as a separate
derivative.

The call options purchased and warrants sold contemporanecusly with the sale of the senior convertible
notes are equity contracts that mect the paragraph 11(a) scope exception of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and hence do not need to be marked-to-market through earnings.
In addition, since the call option and warrant transactions are accounted for as equity transactions, the payment
associated with the purchase of the call options and the proceeds received from the issuance of the warrants were
recorded in additional paid-in capital in stockholders’ equity as separate equity transactions.

(d) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (average cost and first-in, first-out methods} or net realizable
value. The portion of developed cemetery property that management estimates will be used in the next twelve
months is included in inventories. Such estimates are based on the Company’s historical experience or results. The
Company allocates costs of construction projects to the number of units in the respective project.

{e) Buildings and Equipment

Buildings and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives,
primarily using the straight-line method. Building and building improvement items are-generally depreciated over a
period ranging from 10 to 40 years. Equipment (including computer equipment, light equipment, heavy equipment
and crematory equipment) is generally depreciated over a period ranging from three to 20 years. Vehicles are
depreciated over five to seven years. Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the
lease or the life of the asset. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense whereas renewals and major
replacements that extend the assets’ useful lives are capitalized. For the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, depreciation expense totaled $25,146, $22,841 and $21,424, respectively. -

The Company reviews for continued appropriateness the carrying value of its long-lived assets whenever
events and circumstances indicate a potential impairment. This review is based on its projections of anticipated
undiscounted future cash flows. If indicators of impairment are present, the Company evaluates the undiscounted
future cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets compared to the carrying amount of those assets. The
net carrying value of assets not recoverable are reduced to fair value. While the Company believes that its estimates
of undiscounted future cash flows are reasonable, different assumptions regardmg such cash flows and comparable
sales values could materially affect its evaluations.
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STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)
(f) Preneed Selling Costs

Preneed selling costs related to the acquisition of new prearranged funeral and cemetery service and
merchandise sales are charged to expense as incurred. Prenced selling costs related to the acquisition of new
prearranged cemetery property sales are deferred in accordance with SFAS No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real
Estate” (“SFAS No. 66”).

(g) Goodwill

The Company’s evaluation of the goodwill of its operations consists of 13 reporting units. Those reporting
units include; corporate trust management; the Western division funeral operating segment comprised of two
reporting units (Western-North and Western-South regions aggregated and Midwestern, Southern and Southwestern
regions aggregated); the Western division cemetery operating segment comprised of three reporting units (Western- |
North region, Western-South region and Midwestern, Southern and Southwestern regions aggregated); the Eastern
division funeral operating segment comprised of four reporting units (Southern region, Puerto Rico region, Northem
region and Central region); and the Eastern division cemetery operating segment comprised of three reporting units
(Puerto Rico region, Southern region and Northern and Central regions aggregated).

The Company’s goodwill impairment test involves estimates and management judgment and was
.performed using a discounted cash flow valuation methodology. Step two of the impairment test involves
determining estimates of fair values of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The Company may obtain assistance
from third parties in assessing the fair value of certain of its assets, primarily real estate, in performing the step two
analysis.

conducts its annual goodwill impairment analysis during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. In addition to an

annual review, the Company assesses the impairment of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying value may be greater than fair value. Factors the Company considers important that could

trigger an impairment review include significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future |
operating results, significant changes in the manner of the use of the Company’s assets or the strategy for its overall

business and significant negative industry or economic trends. :

| Goodwill of a reporting unit must be tested for impairment on at least an annual basis. The Company
|
|

In reviewing goodwill for impairment, the Company first compares the fair value of each of its reporting
units with its carrying amount (including goodwill). If the carrying amount of a reporting unit (including goodwill)
exceeds its fair value, the Company then measures the amount of impairment of the reporting unit’s goedwill by
comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The
implied fair value of a reporting unit’s goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of goodwill
recognized in a business combination is determined. That is, the Company allocates the fair value of the reporting
unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination
and the fair value of the reporting unit was the price paid to acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value
of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An
impairment . charge is recorded when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. The
Company’s annual goodwill assessment for the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 resulted in no
goodwill impairment charge.

Goodwill in excess of net assets of companies acquired totaled $273,286 and $271,342 as of October 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. Accumulated amortization in goodwill was $62,197 as of October 31, 2007 and 2006.
The Company has approximately $50,562 of tax deductible goodwill which is being amortized over fifteen years for
tax purposes.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)
(h} Stock-Based Compensation

Effective November 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No.
123R”), using the modified prospective application transition method. Under this transition method, compensation
cost for the period includes the portion vesting in the period for (1) all share-based compensation arrangements
granted prior to, but not vested as of November 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”) and
(2) all share-based compensation arrangements granted subsequent to November 1, 2005, based on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. See Notes 3(a) and 18 for additional
informaticn on SFAS No. 123R and the policy for periods prior to 2006. .

Prior to November 1, 2005, no stock-based employee compensation cost related to stock options was
reflected in net eamnings, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to or greater than the
market value of the underlying common stock or the grant date. Accordingly, share-based compensation related to
stock options was only included as a pro forma disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

(iy Funeral Revenue

The Company setls price-guaranteed prearranged funeral services and merchandise under contracts that
provide for delivery of the services and merchandise at the time of death. Prearranged funeral services are recorded
as funeral revenue in the period the funeral is performed.. Prearranged funeral merchandise is recognized as revenue
upon delivery.. Prior to performing the funeral or delivering of the merchandise, such sales are deferred. Funeral
services and merchandise sold at the time of need are recorded as funera! revenue in the period the funeral is
performed or the merchandise is delivered. The Company records cash advance items such as public transportation
and obituary notices which are arranged on behaif of a customer on a net basis. Discounts are also recorded on a net
basis in revenue. The Company presents all taxes assessed by governmental authorities on its revenue-producing
transactions (i.e., sales taxes)} as well as the recoveries from its customers from these taxes on a net basis in its
consolidated financial statements.

Because preneed services or merchandise will not be provided until the future, most states require that all
or a portion of the customer payments under these contracts be protected for the benefit of the customers pursuant to
applicable law. Some or all of the funds may be required to be placed into trust accounts (“trust-funded preneed
funeral contracts”). Alternatively, where allowed, customers may purchase a life insurance or annuity policy from
third-party insurance companies to fund their preneed funeral contracts (“insurance-funded preneed funeral
contracts™). The funeral goods and services selected at the time of contract origination will be funded by the
insurance policy proceeds, which include increasing insurance benefits. Under either customer funding option, the
Company enters into a preneed funeral contract with the customer to provide funeral services in the future.

When a trust-funded preneed funeral contract is entered into, the Company records an asset (included in
preneed funeral receivables and trust investments) and a corresponding liability (included in deferred preneed
funeral revenues) for the contract price. Principal amounts deposited in the trust or escrow accounts generally range
from 70 percent to 90 percent of each installment received. The sale of caskets is treated in some jurisdictions in the
same manner as the sale of cemetery merchandise and in some jurisdictions as the sale of funeral services: for
trusting purposes. As the customer makes payments on the contract prior to performance by the Company, the
Company deposits into the related trust the required portion of the payment and reclassifies the corresponding
amount from deferred preneed funeral revenues into non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts.

The Company defers all dividends and interest earned and net capital gains and losses realized by preneed
funeral trust or escrow accounts until the underlying service or merchandise is delivered.
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{2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

Deferred preneed funeral revenue represents future funeral contract revenues. In addition to amounts
receivable from customers and amounts not required to be trusted, this includes distributed and distributable trust
investment earnings associated with unperformed trust-funded preneed funeral contracts where the related cash or
investments are not held in trust accounts (generally because the Company was permitted to withdraw the cash from
the trust before performance of the service or delivery of the merchandise). Future funeral contract revenues and
non-distributable net trust investment earnings where the related cash or investments are held in trust accounts are
included in non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts.

Upon cancellation of a trust-funded preneed funeral contract, a customer is generally entitled to receive a
refund of the funds held in trust. In many jurisdictions, the Company may be obligated to fund any shortfall if the
amounts deposited by the customer exceed the funds in trust including investment income at the time of
cancellation. If the fair market value of the trusts were to decline below the estimated costs to deliver the underlying
products and services, the Company would record a charge to earnings to record a liability for the expected loss on
the delivery of contracts in the Company’s backlog. Based upon this assessment, no loss amounts have been
required to be recognized for the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Insurance-funded preneed funeral contracts that will be funded by life insurance or annuity contracts issued
by third-party insurers are not reflected in the consolidated balance sheet. The net amount of these contracts that
have not been fulfilled as of October 31, 2007 and 2006 was $455,312 and $416,990, respectively. With insurance-
funded preneed funeral contracts, the Company earns a commission if it acts as an agent on the sale of the policies.
Customer payments of premiums on the insurance policies are sent directly to the insurance company, and the
insurance premium receivables and related customer payments are not recorded on the Company’s financial
statements. Insurance commissions are recognized as revenue as ¢arned, net of an allowance for cancellations. The
costs related to the commissions are expensed as incurred. Proceeds of these policies may be used by customers for
other purposes and are portable to other funeral service providers or for compietely separate purposes. Nothing
more is recorded until the contracted service or merchandise is delivered. At that time, the face amount of the
contract and the build-up in the face value of the contract (i.e., the policy proceeds) are recorded as funeral revenue,
and the related expenses are recorded. A receivable from the insurance company for the policy proceeds is recorded
as a funeral recetvable.

(j) Cemetery Revenue

The Company sells price-guaranteed preneed cemetery merchandise and services under contracts that
provide for delivery of the merchandise and services at the time of need. Prenced cemetery merchandise and service
sales are recorded as cemetery revenue in the period the merchandise is delivered or service is performed. Prior to
that time, such sales are deferred. Cemetery merchandise and services sold at the time of need are recorded as
cemetery revenue in the period the service is performed or the merchandise is delivered. Discounts are recorded on
a net basis in revenue. The Company presents all taxes assessed by governmental authorities on its revenue-
producing transactions (i.e., sales taxes) as well as the recoveries from its customers from these taxes on a net basis
in its consolidated financial statements.

Some or all of the funds received under preneed cemetery contracts for merchandise or services may be
required to be placed into trust accounts, pursuant to applicable state law. With respect to the preneed sale of
cemetery merchandise, the Company is generally required to place in trust 30 percent to 50 percent of each
installment received. With respect to the preneed sale of cemetery services, the Company is generally required to
place in trust 70 percent to 90 percent of each installment received. When a trust-funded preneed cemetery contract
is entered into, the Company records an asset (included in preneed cemetery receivables and trust investments) and a
corresponding liability (included in deferred preneed cemetery revenues) for the contract price. As the customer
makes payments on the contract prior to performance by the Company, the Company deposits into the related trust
the required portion of the payment and reclassifies the corresponding amount from deferred preneed cemetery
revenues into non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts.
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2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

Deferred preneed cemetery revenue represents future preneed cemetery revenues to be recognized upon
delivery of merchandise or performance of services. In addition to the amounts receivable from customers and
amounts not required to be trusted, this includes distributed and distributable trust investment earnings associated
with unperformed prenced cemetery services or undelivered preneed cemetery merchandise where the related cash
or investments are not held in trust accounts (generaily because the Company was permitted to withdraw the cash
from the trust before performance of the service or delivery of the merchandise). Future contract revenues and non-
distributable net trust investment earnings where the related cash or investments are held in trust accounts. are
included in non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts.

The Company defers all dividends and interest earned and net capital gains and losses realized by preneed
cemetery merchandise and services trust or escrow accounts until the underlying merchandise or service is
delivered. Principal and eamings are withdrawn only as the merchandise or services are delivered or contracts are
cancelled, except in jurisdictions that permit earnings to be withdrawn currently and in unregulated jurisdictions
where escrow accounts are used.

The Company sells price-guaranteed cemetery contracts providing for property interment rights. For
preneed sales of interment rights (cemetery property), the associated revenue and all costs to acquire the sale are
recognized in accordance with the retail land sales provisions of SFAS No. 66. Under SFAS No. 66, recognition of
revenue and costs must be deferred until 10 percent of the property sale price has been collected. Until the 10
percent has been collected, the Company records all payments received as deposits, does not record receivables and
continues to report the inventory in its financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 66. As of October 31,
2007 and 2006, the amount of inventory included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets on which the 10
percent collection requirement has not been met was $1,662 and $2,132, respectively. Revenue related to the
preneed sale of cemetery property prior to its construction is recognized on a percentage of completion method of
accounting as construction occurs. The Company measures the percentage of completion by taking the costs
incurred to date and dividing that number by the total projected cost of the project.

Pursuant to cemetery perpetval care contracts and laws, a portion, generally 10 percent, of the proceeds
from cemetery property sales is deposited into perpetual care trusts. The income from these trusts, which have been
established in most jurisdictions in which the Company operates cemeteries, is used for maintenance of those
cemeteries, but principal, including in some jurisdictions net realized capital gains, must generally be held in
perpetuity. As payments are received, the Company generally funds the perpetual care trust in the same proportion
as the payment bears to the contract amount. For example, if the Company receives 20 percent of the contract price,
it places in trust 20 percent of the total amount to be placed in trust for that contract. The Company currently
recognizes and withdraws all dividend and interest income earmed and, where permitted, capital gains realized by
cemetery perpetual care funds.

Some of the Company’s sales of cemetery property and merchandise are made under installment contracts
bearing interest at prevailing rates. Interest rates on cemetery property contracts range from 4.9 percent to 15.0
percent and have a weighted average interest rate of 9.0 percent. Finance charges are recognized as cemetery
revenue under the effective interest method over the terms of the related installment receivables.

(k) Preneed Funeral and Cemetery Merchandise and Services Trusts and Cemetery Perpetual Care Trusts

The Company implemented Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”) as of April 30, 2004, which resulted in the consolidation
of the Company’s preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and service trusts and the Company’s cemetery
perpetual care trusts. The implementation of FIN 46R affected certain line items in the consolidated balance sheet
and statement of eamings as described below, but had no impact on net eamings. Also, the implementation of FIN
46K did not result in any net changes to the Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows, but does require
disclosure of certain financing and investing activities. See Notes 4, 5 and 6.
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Although FIN 46R required consolidation of the preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and service
trusts and cemetery perpetual care trusts, it did not change the legal relationships among the trusts, the Company and
its customers. In the case of preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts, the customers are the
legal beneficiaries. In the case of cemetery perpetual care trusts, the Company does not have a legal right to the
cemetery perpetual care trust assets. For these reasons, upon consolidation of the trusts, the Company recognized
non-controlling interests in its financial statements to reflect third-party interests in these trusts in accordance with
SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.”
The Company classifies deposits to the funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts as non-controlling
liability interests and classifies deposits to the cemetery perpetual care trusts as non-controlling interests outside of
liabilities.

All of these trusts hold investments in marketable securities, which have been classified as available-for-
sale and are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from eamings and initially reported as
a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 115. Unrealized gains and losses attributable to the non-controlling
interest holders are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income or loss to non-controlling interest in
funeral and cemetery trusts and perpetual care trusts in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Unrealized gatns
and losses attributable to the Company, but that have not been eamed through the performance of services or
delivery of merchandise are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income or loss to non-controlling
interest in funeral and cemetery trusts or non-controlling interest in cemetery perpetual care trusts.

The Company recognizes realized eamings of the preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services
trusts and cemetery perpetual care trusts within investment and other income, net (with a corresponding debit to the
related trust asset). The Company then recognizes a corresponding expense within investment and other income,
net, representing the realized earnings of these trusts attributable to the non-controlling interest holders (with a
corresponding credit to non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts or non-controlling interest in cemetery
perpetual care trusts, as the case may be). The Company also simultaneously recognizes a similar expense for
realized earnings of the trusts attributable to the Company (with a corresponding credit to deferred preneed funeral
or cemetery revenue), when such earnings have not been eamed by the Company through the performance of
services or delivery of merchandise. The net effect is an increase by the amount of the realized earnings in both the
trust asset and the related non-controlling interest and deferred revenue; there is no effect on net earnings. In the
case of preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts, the Company recognizes as revenues amounts
attributed to the non-controlling interest holders and the Company upon the performance of services and delivery of
merchandise, including realized earnings accumulated in these trusts {with corresponding debits to non-controlling
interest in funeral and cemetery trusts and to deferred preneed funeral revenues or deferred preneed cemetery
revenues, as the case may be). In the case of cemetery perpetual care trusts, the Company recognizes investment
earnings in cemetery revenues when such earnings are realized and permitted to be legally withdrawn by the
Company (with a corresponding debit to non-controlling interest in cemetery perpetual care trusts). These earnings
and related funds are intended to defray cemetery maintenance costs.

The end result of FIN 46R is that the Company’s trust assets are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet
at their market value and included in preneed receivables and trust investments with corresponding credits to
deferred preneed revenue and non-controlling interest in the trusts. The realized earnings on these trust assets under
FIN 46R flow into and out of the statement of earnings through investment and other income, net with no net effect
on revenue or net eamings. Both prior to and after the adoption of FIN 46R, accumulated trust eamings from the
preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services trusts are recognized as revenue when the related
merchandise and services are delivered, and cemetery perpetual care trust earnings are recognized as revenue as they
are realized in the trust and permitted to be legally withdrawn by the Company.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-—(Continued)

Cash flows from prenced funeral, cemetery merchandise and cemetery perpetual care service and
merchandise contracts are presented as operating cash flows in the Company’s consolidated statements of cash
flows.

() Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Cancellations

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on a range of percentages applied to
accounts receivable aging categories. These percentages are based on historical collection and write-off experience.
The Company establishes a reserve for cancellations for cemetery property sales based on historical cancellations
and recent write-off activity. This reserve is recorded as a reduction of cemetery revenue. The Company also
establishes an allowance for cancellations for insurance commissions based on historical experience for
cancellations of insurance contracts within the period of refundability.

(m) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method under which deferred income taxes are
recognized for the tax consequences of “temporary differences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to
future years to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and
liabilities. The effect on deferred taxes for a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes
the enactment date. Management provides a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset for amounts which
are not considered more likely than not to be realized. The valuation allowance is attributed to state and Puerto Rico
net operating loss carryforwards. For additional information see Note 17.

For the purpose of calculating income taxes for discontinued operations, earnings (loss) from discontinued
operations i3 segregated into two categories: operating results and gain or loss on dispositions. Operating results are
tax effected in the ordinary manner (i.e., income tax expense on net operating income, income tax benefit on net
operating loss).

(n) Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per common share is computed by dividing net
earnings by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the number of additional common
shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential common shares had been issued during each period
as discussed in Note 16.

For purposes of calculating the effect of the Company’s senior convertible notes on diluted earnings per
share, any shares issuable upon conversion are accounted for under the net share settlement method. The effect of
the net share settlement method is that the shares potentially issuable upon conversion of the senior convertible notes
are only included in the calculation of earnings per share to the extent the conversion value of the senior convertible
notes exceeds their principal amount. In this case, the Company would include in diluted shares the number of
shares of Class A common stock necessary to settle the conversion if it occurred at that time. The warrants are
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share to the extent the effect is dilutive using the treasury stock
method. The call options are not considered in the dituted carnings per share calculation,

{0) Purchase and Retirement of Common Stock
Share repurchases are recorded at stated value with the amount in excess of stated value recorded as a

reduction to additional paid-in capital. Share repurchases reduce the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period.
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On September 19, 2007, the Company announced a new stock repurchase program, authorizing the
investrent of up to $25,000 in the repurchase of the Company’s common stock. Repurchases under the program are
limited to the Company’s Class A common stock, and can be made in the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions at such times and in such amounts as management deems appropriate, depending upon market
conditions and other factors. These repurchases reduce the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during each period. Through December 20, 2007, the Company has repurchased 1,400,000 shares of its Class A
common stock for $11,400 at an average price of $8.14 per share under this program.

(p) Derivatives

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”). The Company had no derivative financial
instruments accounted for under SFAS No. 133 during the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

(q) Estimated Insurance Loss Liabilities

The Company purchases comprehensive general liability, automobile liability and workers compensation
insurance coverages structured within a large deductible/self-insured retention premium rating program. This
program results in the Company being primarily self-insured for claims and associated costs and losses covered by
these policies. Historical insurance industry experience indicates some degree of inherent variability in assessing the
ultimate amount of losses associated with the types of claims covered by the program. This is especially true due to
the extended period of time that transpires between when the claim might occur and the full settlement of such
claim, often many years. The Company continually evaluates the receivables due from its insurance carriers as well
as loss estimates associated with claims and losses related to these insurance coverages with information obtained
from its primary insurer.

With respect to health insurance that covers substantially all of the Company’s employees, the Company
purchases individual and aggregate stop loss coverage with a large deductible. This program results in the Company
being primarily self-insured for claims and associated costs up to the amount of the deductible, with claims in excess
of the deductible amount being covered by insurance. Expected claims are based on actuarial estimates; actual
claims may differ from those estimates. The Company continually evaluates its claims experience related to this
coverage with information obtained from its insurer.

Assumptions used in preparing these estimates are based on factors such as claim settlement patterns, claim
development trends, claim frequency and severity patterns, inflationary trends and data reasonableness. Together
these factors will generally affect the analysis and determination of the “best estimate” of the projected ultimate
claim losses. The results of these evaluations are used to assess the reasonableness of the Company’s insurance loss
liability.

The estimated liability on the uninsured litigation and employment-related claims are established by
management based upon the recommendations of professionals who perform a review of both reported claims and
estimate a liability for incurred but not reported claims. These liabilities include the estimated settlement costs.
Although management believes estimated liabilities related to uninsured claims are adequately recorded, it is
possible that actual results could significantly differ from the recorded liabilities.

The Company also has insurance coverage related to property damage, incremental costs and property
operating expenses it incurred due to damage caused by Hurricane Katrina. The Company’s policy is to record such
amounts when recovery is probable, which generally means it has reached an agreement with the insurance
company.
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The Company accrues for legal costs related to loss contingencies as the services are provided. If a
settlement is determined to be probable, then an estimate is recorded for the settlement at that time.

(r) Dividends

On March 28, 2005, the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved the initiation of a
quarterly cash dividend of two and one-half cents per share of Class A and B common stock. Although the
Company intends to pay regular quarterly cash dividends for the foreseeable future, the declaration and payment of
future dividends are discretionary and will be subject to determination by the Board of Directors each quarter after
its review of the Company’s financial performance. For the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company paid $10,184, $10,673 and $8,183, respectively, in dividends.

(s) Leases

The Company has noncancellable operating leases, primarily for land and buildings, that expire over the
next 1 to 15 years, with the exception of six leases that expire between 2032 and 2039. As of October 31, 2007,
approximately 76 percent of the Company’s 221 funeral locations were owned by the Company’s subsidiaries and
approximately 24 percent were held under operating leases. The Company records operating lease expense for
leases with escalating rents on a straight-ling basis over the life of the lease, including reasonably assured lease
renewals. The Company amottizes leasehold improvements in an operating lease over the shorter of their economic
lives or the lease term, including reasonably assured lease renewals,

() Business Interruption Insurance

The Company has insurance policies that provide coverage for interruption to the business, including lost
profits. For the fiscal year 2006, the Company recorded $3,169 in business interruption insurance proceeds related
to hurricane damaged properties based on information received from its insurance carrier. This amount is reflected
in the funeral and cemetery revenue line items in the consolidated statements of earnings for the year ended October
31, 2006 and in current receivables, net of allowances in the consolidated balance sheet as of October 31, 2006. See
Note 22 for additional information.

(u} Computer Software

In fiscal year 2006, the Company began implementing two new computer software systems. Concurrently
with the implementation of the new systems, the Company began disposing of the three original software systems.
In 2006, the Company revisited the original useful life set for the original software systems based on the fact the
Company decided to purchase externally developed software. The Company recorded the change in life of the
original software systems as a change in accounting estimate and accounted for the change on a prospective basis.
The decision to purchase the software was approved by the Board of Directors in September 2006 with
implementation to begin in October 2006. Accordingly, the Company recorded one month of accelerated
depreciation in October 2006. Prior to the end of fiscal year 2007, the original software was fully depreciated. In the
third quarter of fiscal year 2007, the Company completed the implementation of its Oracle financial software
system.

{v) Out of Period Adjustments

In 2007 and 2006, the Company discovered adjustments that related to prior accounting periods. The
Company does not believe these adjustments were quantitatively or qualitatively material to-its financial position,
results of operations and cash flows for the years ended October 31, 2007 and 2006 or to any of its prior annual or
quarterly financial statements. As a result, the Company did not restate any prior period financial statements. The
net impact of the adjustments in 2007 is an increase in gross profit of $1,247 and an increase to net eamnings of $843,
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almost all attributable to the Western division cemetery segment. The errors for 2006 primarily related to the
following and the impact on the 2006 financial statements is shown below:

(M

)

3)
4)

()
(6)

The Company overstated deferred revenue primarily at the time of adoption of Staff Accounting
Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” in fiscal year 2001. The
correction of this item resulted in additional cemetery revenue in fiscal year 2006.

The Company understated accounts payable as of October 31, 2005 because the Company failed to
accrue for individually immaterial expenses incurred at the individual funeral home and cemetery
locations. The Company protocol was designed to record expenses for a twelve month period and
failed to consider the impact of period end cutoff.

The Company misapplied its accounting policies related to the capitalization of certain fixed assets
primarily related to periods prior to 2004 and the depreciable lives used for certain fixed assets.

The Company incorrectly calculated its estimate of the reserve for cancellations of preneed insurance
sales. The reserve is recorded to reflect the estimated effect on commissions recorded for future
cancellations of these sales. The Company determined there was an error in this reserve and the
correction of this error resulted in an increase to funeral revenue.

The Company incorrectly calculated its non-compete amortization.

The Company also had other immaterial miscellaneous adjustments.
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Year Ended
QOctober 31, 2006
Out of Period
Adjustments
Increase (Decrease)
Revenue:
Funeral: : '
"Western diVISIO. . e reerin e esssneresnsesassarassessaneas it eeeteebereteet e e en e sae s nae s e e eanane 3 1,083
Eastern division ........cooeerveroreeereerennnns. erereebee e ettt b et 514
Total funeral TEVEIBE L. e rcra et sras s b e et e nnneanns 1,597
Cemetery: )
WESTEIM AIVISION. .1 ieireecieciicr e reesn e srs e ses e e e b s et s e sae b son e eenner e ae s senenassannnnas 636
BaStern diVESION .o.coooe et st ste e e meas e resee e rrar s s sresrsarareres b ubbee s et emeaar e smnannsarannas 611
TOtal CEMELETY TEVEIUE ... rrrrtererriassrererameerassansantearsstssssessssnsrassersrsrsecensessasensansars S 1,247
TOMAl TEVEIIUIES .c.veer v cecrrecuerairerrassreressensarssasceseamrmrresseressentensressass seensrssrassenseseasanerassasassnasessssssaseres 2,844
Costs and expenses:
Funeral:
WESTEIT QIVISION. oot srseeans ettt tem e ensemeeg s arass e s emaraesaraesd s b bam s et ems neeassasanmsnneres 247
BaSEEITE QIVEBIOM et ectrciecietieceeteieresersibessoceteetenseasensensesaesesaaenesasersonrensebeeaesasans sonnssam s s nms nms ams nr s 3,108
Total funeral COSLS AN EXPEIISEE 1..uveiruseeeesceceeeeresrarsartrssresssisssenssrsestraantriesas et sesassessessssanseras 5,576
Cemetery:
WESLEIT QIVISION. c.creiriurieeceeieeentessitarca e cat s sas et ear et sr e enm b e s s et sbabarabes et ombsnton s e srennesensnsarssnas 705
Eastern diviSIon ..ot en it e e e (972}
Total cemetery costs and EXPENEES ... ... ccieiviiiieiiiarier et eee et e eeeeea et sisesssae e b ss st st sb senaraes (267)
Total COStS AN EXPEIEES ..viieietiee e crres ettt e bbbt et b e b e s b o b o s b b e e et eme b 5,309
Gross profit:
Funeral:
AV ESIRIT QIVAS 0N et criaeteer i reern e ser s sstas e s e reaerasresesben b e e e s e eeeassaea e ananseneniaeresrasateserasranarrnen (1,388)
EaStEIn iVISION cuvitiiiiiiiiiiiiitet e et eaeceas e stras s bt beat et ettbmtamsamseas s smesnseseamt bt bbb babteb b sttt bt ens et on (2,591)
Total funeral GrOSS PrOfit. ... oottt e em e e e st s (3,979
Cemetery:
WESIEITI AIVESION. 1v.veveuireiresenirminnsiasesisesae s cerecraereaererasseussesnstvas e sassesenssasaessesreneassasressrenneronsrens (69
St dIVISION .evvevtiseimtitten et et et e b st s bt s be s e bbbt ee e e e e s emeeoeemeemt st eetestssbssbssbrsbssbesbsstons 1,583
Total cemetery EroSS PrOfIt ..ottt ettt e sa et st st 1,514
Total BIOSS POt .ottt e bbbt (2,465)
Corporate general and administrative eXPenSes. .......ccuvmisimrisisirmsessee st nesessssssss s ssseasens (104)
OPEIAHNE CATMINES v eercrvsirstrirnirsisrvaressrases s s onssms s ssss et s er s s e s eas s ot se e bbb es st am st emsnas (2,569)
Investment and Other INCOME, NBL.......c.viivivirvrrrierierreranre s ree s s esreseas e e s resbes s s s e aerresseseesseesneensn 281
Earnings from continuing operations before inCoOmMe taXeS......uee oo (2,288)
IIICOITIE LAXES ..cuveuereerereraeereerassensontreesessnssasassnerscosesrarontsasassuessesessesensensessanssensesscnsensassecencssasestrassavsase (833)
INEE BAITINES ....cvevrececristrtrerimsirssbnese e sesmssaueasosemnsessh b e et b e iR b shee s seer s e et emesmanasssnssspranssnsrstsratoere $ (1,455)

(W) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements. All
businesses sold in fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007 that met the criteria for discontinued operations under SFAS No. -
144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144™), have been classified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. Results associated with real estate sold or intended to be sold as
part of the divestiture plan have been included in continuing operations for all periods. See Note 12 for a discussion
of discontinued operations.
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2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

In the quarter ended January 31, 2007, the Company changed its presentation of activities related to its
preneed funeral and cemetery trusts within the consolidated statements of cash flows. Previously, all funcral and
cemetery trust activities were included in the “net effect of preneed funeral production and maturities™ and “net
effect of preneed: cemetery production and deliveries” line items. The Company now presents separate components
of the funeral and cemetery trust activities within the following line items: “changes in preneed receivables and trust
investments” and “changes in deferred preneed revenue and changes in non-controlling interest.” This new
presentation has no effect on operating cash flows.

The foregoing reclassifications in themselves had no effect on the Company’s total net income or loss, total
shareholders’ equity or the net increase or decrease in cash.

3 Change in Accounting Principles and New Accounting Principles
(a) Stock-Based Compensation

Effective November 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective
application transition method. Prior to November 1, 2005, the Company accounted for its stock-based employee
compensation plans under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and followed the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS
No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure - an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” No stock-based employee compensation cost related to stock options
was reflected in net earnings, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to or greater than
the market value of the underlying common stock on the grant date. Accordingly, share-based compensation related
to stock options was only included as a pro forma disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Under the modified prospective application transition method, compensation cost for the period includes
the portion vesting in the period for (1) all share-based compensation arrangements granted prior to, but not vested
as of November 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of
SFAS No. 123 and (2) all share-based compensation arrangements granted subsequent to November 1, 2005, based
on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Under this transition
method, no cumulative effect of change in accounting principle was required for the Company, and results for prior
periods have not been restated. SFAS No. 123R also requires that excess tax benefits be reported as a financing
cash inflow rather than an operating cash inflow,

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share if the Company had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation for the year ended
October 31, 20035.

Year Ended
October 31, 2005

N 1088 .. e itieeeeesessir e ssr et etessesaessessbesbe e b erae s s a1 b o hF S ensa s basTeR T pen e snemae e ea ke s s ae bR sb s e e na e e man b es 3 (143,326)
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net earnings, net of tax ..... 440
Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value-based method, . :

T oY 1 7. SO OO OO OO VUSSP (1,696)
PO fOIMA NEE LOSS ...t eesterete ettt sete e e rereesssesbs s e eeseemesernbne bbb stsbesessasssnsursssssransreseis B (144,582)
Net loss per common share:
BaSic - 85 TEPOMEW. ...curueerresirereerereeresnnes s sesesssssseseseres st s esesesbasssissbssasssnssrsnsnssssssinies 9 {1.31)
BAESIC - PIO fOITNA c..ceovrriceiiicntiectes s e s e bR $ {1.32)
Diluted - 85 TEPOTEE. ..eveuem et ettt e e bbb s e n TR e g SRS 3 {1.31)
DHIULE = PTO FOTINA ... veeerveeerereneresssrssesessnesrseerssessesasesasensesssaressessceseesssassssss i s st st snb s $ (1.32)
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3 Change in Accounting Principles and New Accounting Principles—(Continued)
(b) Preneed Selling Costs

On May 31, 2005 the Company changed its method of accounting for preneed selling costs incurred related
to the acquisition of new prearranged funeral and cemetery service and merchandise sales. The Company has
applied this change in accounting principle effective November 1, 2004. Prior to this change, commissions and
other costs that varied with and were primarily related to the acquisition of new prearranged funeral and cemetery
service and merchandise sales were deferred and included in deferred charges and amortized in proportion to
preneed revenue recognized during the period in a manner consistent with SFAS No. 60. The Company decided to
change its accounting for prenced selling costs to expense such costs as incurred. The Company concluded that
expensing these costs as they are incurred would be preferable to the old method because it makes its reported
results more comparable with other public death care companies, better aligns the costs of obtaining preneed
contracts with the cash outflows associated with obtaining such contracts and eliminates the burden of maintaining
deferred selling cost records.

As of November 1, 2004, the Company recorded a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of
$254,241 ($153,180 after tax, or $1.40 per diluted share), which represents the cumulative balance of deferred
preneed selling costs in the deferred charges line on the Company’s condensed consolidated balance sheet at the
time of the change. The effect of the change in accounting principles for the year ended October 31, 2005 in
addition to the cumulative effect was a decrease in net earnings of $4,957 or $.04 per share, which represents the
selling costs expensed in excess of what the amortization of preneed selling costs would have been had the
Company not changed its accounting method.

(c) Other Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
— an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting and disclosure for
uncertain tax positions in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This interpretation
requires companies to use a prescribed model for assessing the financial statement recognition and measurement of
all tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods, disclosure and transition. This interpretation is
effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2006, which corresponds
to the Company’s fiscal year beginning November 1, 2007. The estimated impact of the adoption of this statement
is to reduce the opening balance of retained earnings for fiscal year 2008 by an amount not expected to exceed
$1,000.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577,
which establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP") and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, This statement is effective for
financial assets and liabilities as well as for any assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis
in financial statements as of the beginning of the entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. In
November 2007, the FASB issued a one-year deferral for non-financial assets and liabilities to comply with SFAS
No. 157 which delayed the effective date for these items until November 15, 2008. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS No. 159™). This statement
permits entities to choose to measure many financial assets and liabilities and certain other items at fair value. The
objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported eamings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex
hedge accounting provisions. This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning
after November 15, 2007, which corresponds to the Company’s fiscal year beginning November 1, 2008. The
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3) Change in Accounting Principles and New Accounting Principles—(Continued)

Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on its consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations (FAS
141(R)).” FAS 141R states that all business combinations, whether full, partial, or step acquisitions, will result in all
assets and liabilities of an acquired business being recorded at their fair values at the acquisition date. In subsequent
periods, contingent liabilities will be measured at the higher of their acquisition date fair value or the estimated
amounts to be realized. FAS 141R applies to all transactions or other events in which an entity obtains control of
one or more businesses. This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning after
December 15, 2008, which corresponds to the Company’s fiscal year beginning November 1, 2009. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 141R will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statement—amendments of ARB No. 51 (FAS 160).” FAS 160 states that accounting and reporting for minority
interests will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. FAS 160
applies to all entities that prepare consolidated financial statements, except not-for-profit organizations, but will
affect only those entities that have an outstanding noncontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries or that
deconsolidate a subsidiary. This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning
after December 15, 2008, which corresponds to the Company’s fiscal year beginning November 1, 2009. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on its consolidated financial
staternents.

On August 31, 2007, the FASB issued an exposure draft reflecting proposed new rules that if adopted
would change the accounting for convertible debt instruments that permit cash settlement upon conversion, and
would apply to the Company’s senior convertible notes. The FASB is expected to begin redeliberations of the
guidance in the exposure draft in January 2008.

“) Preneed Funeral Activities
Preneed Funeral Receivables and Trust Investments
Preneed funeral receivables and trust investments represent trust assets and customer receivables related to

unperformed, price-guaranteed trust-funded preneed funeral contracts. The components of preneed funeral
receivables and trust investments in the consolidated balance sheet as of October 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

October 31, 2007 October 31, 2006
TTUSE ASSEES vvveverrereemeeiieititeresssseressessssssesseseenssseseesesseseesserasessesse 9 477,335 $ 463,721
Receivables from CUSIOMETS ........coccciviiiiiiiiiniiiceciciaisineninnsinnns 37,718 49,974

Preneed funera! receivables and trust investments.................... $ 515,053 $ 513,695

The cost and market values associated with preneed funeral merchandise and services trust assets as of
October 31, 2007 are detailed below. The adjusted cost basis of the funeral merchandise and services trust assets
below reflects an other than temporary decline in the trust assets of approximately $74,340 as of October 31, 2007
from their original cost basis. The Company believes the unrealized losses reflected below of $18,005 related to
trust investments are temporary in nature.
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C)] Preneed Funeral Activities—(Continued)

October 31, 2007
Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Market
Cash, money market and other short-
term INVESHMENES .....ocvveverevveereirrreins $ 39349 5 — b — $ 39,349
U.S. Government, agencies and
MUNICIPALLIES ..o 21,183 192 {(46) 21,329
Corporate bonds .......ccoveereeeincnrcrnnae 54,324 448 (1,255 53,517
Preferred Stocks........oovvecvvcvciniieeicecinens 68,652 243 (5,754) 63,141
Common StOCKS .....ocovveeeeeiie e cerseerarees 217,780 35,065 (10,801) 242,044
Mutual funds ......ccoveeeeererireerenrernrenrenes 34,165 2,630 (149) 36,646
Insurance contracts and other long-term
INVESTMENTS....oceieeeccrr e s 19,888 91 — 19,979
Trust iRVeStMENtS ....ccoeeevvvvveecenrevninneen. B 455,341 $ 38,669 $ (18,005) $ 476,005
Market value as a percentage of cost....... 104.5%
Accrued investment income............coev..... 1,330
TIUSE ASSELS ovevveeeeecemeeemie et ceceeneee e ene s 3 477,335

The estimated maturities and market values of debt securities included above are as follows:

October 31, 2007
DUE in 0N YEAT OF LSS .rvoviiiicc e ettt b ssn e 3 1,372
Due in 0Ne £0 fIVE YEATS ......ocviiisietiieetirtee e ee e eeeaeeee e e e v s e eb e vsre e v e s s ensreee e eseeneennen 31,794
Due In fIVE 10 tEN YEATS ...eiviie et eeeee et eie st te e se e sr e e ma s s ass et e e sne s eaesneree 41,390
THETEATIET .......oeeeeeer ettt s e s r b araentstese s eR b ebe b b arbenren 290
$ 74,846

The cost and market values associated with preneed funeral merchandise and services trust assets as of
October 31, 2006 are detailed below. The adjusted cost basis of the funeral merchandise and services trust assets
below reflects an other than temporary decline in the trust assets of approximately $79,356 as of October 31, 2006
from their original cost basis. The Company believes the unrealized losses reflected below of $5,229 related to trust
investments are temporary in nature.
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4) Preneed Funeral Activities—(Continued)

October 31, 2006
Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Market
Cash, money market and other short-
LEITI INVESTNENES ..ooeeeeerecaeceveee e $ 49708 3 — $ — $ 49,708
U.S. Government, agencies and
MUNICIPAlItES ..eevereeerrereee e 14,495 93 (135) 14,453
Corporate bonds .....ccoveveriiiiiiceeene 30,432 718 (195) 30,955
Preferred StockS .....coovvvvirrininereniivenressaenns 78,334 751 (1,125) 77,960
Common StocksS .....covvecvverrrrressrnrrrrrserasenns 219,065 24,142 (3,616) 239,591
Mutual funds ......ccoeceevmrrrrnnienenesnenns 32,558 902 (158) 33,302
Insurance contracts and other long-term
INVESIMENLS. .oeeenirrrrrrerreesrnnererersranerenees 19,443 140 — 19,583
Trust iNVESHMENES ..oovecvrreeerererceenernnssneens $ 444,035 $ 26,746 $ (5229 $ 465,552
Market value as a percentage of cost 104.8%
Accrued investment income .................... 2,525
Less trust investments of assets held for
SAlE v (4,356)
TIUSE SSELS vvvvevineeinenseerrrarrrssrenrrrsrsversanes $ 463,721

Activity related to preneed funeral trust investments is as follows:

Year Ended October 31,
2007 2006 2005

PUICRESES ..ot resrecs e sasssesssasssessnssenssensens $ 152,126 $ 149,504 $ 221,780
BAlES it e 148,309 159,106 152,417
Realized Gains.......cocooviiiimiiiiiciicc it 17,820 19,477 12,968
Realized losses 0n SaleS ......ovovervveereecnnearereeecsmeneeeecnens (297) (1,718) (7,256)
Other comprehensive income:

Reduction (increase) in net unrealized losses......... (853) 18,500 8,675

Reclassification to non-controlling interest ........... 853 (18,500) (8,675)

In addition, the Company deposited $32,120, $29,191 and $24,493 into and withdrew $44,433, $50,770
and $39,229 from preneed funeral trusts during the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the preneed funeral merchandise
and services trust investments with unrealized losses that are temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of
October 31, 2007 and 2006. A loss is considered other than temporary if the security has a reduction in market
value, compared with its cost basis, of 20 percent or more for a period of six months or longer.
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C)] Preneed Funeral Activities—(Continued)

Qctober 31, 2007

L ess than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value L.osses
U.S. Government, agencies and
municipalities .........cooooeeee $ — $ — 3 4,270 $ (46) b 4,270 $ (46)
Corporate bonds ........cccovvniirenn 20,546 (784) 7,373 (471) 27,919 (1,255)
Preferred stocks.......ccoovvvecrennneen. 19,427 (1,239) 33,413 (4,515) 52,840 (5,754)
Common StockS ....coeeeeevveceneernennee. 52,227 5,411 26,584 (5,390) 78,811 (10,801)
Mutual funds .- 4,886 (93) 2,180 (56) 7,066 {149)
Total oo e $ 97,086 $ (7,527 $ 73,820 $ (10,478) $ 170,906 $ (18,005)
October 31, 2006
Less than 11 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government, agencies and
municipalities ..., § 2,440 b3 (16) § 4845 $ (119 $ 7,285 3 (13%)
Corporate bonds ................ 2,824 20 5,865 (175) 8,680 (195)
Preferred stocks..........ccc... 4,892 (242) 34,909 (883) 39,801 (1,125)
Common stocks...... 17,869 (598) 52,710 (3,018) 70,579 (3,616)
Mutual funds .......... 2,196 (B8) 2,429 {70 4,625 (158)
LU -] UU $ 30221 3 (964)  § 100,758 3 (4,265) $ 130,979 $ (5,229)
(5) Preneed Cemetery Merchandise and Service Activities

Preneed Cemetery Receivables and Trust Investments

Prenced cemetery receivables and trust investments represent trust assets and customer receivables for
contracts sold in advance of when the merchandise or services are needed. The receivables related to the sale of
preneed property interment rights are included in the Company’s current and long-term receivables discussed in
Note 9. The components of preneed cemetery receivables and trust investments in the consolidated balance sheet as
of October 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

October 31, 2007 October 31, 2006
TTUSE ASSELS .. oveiuiiiiiririeceesie s st er i e eeears e eaceseeasemeseereeresnmseseenes $ 215,541 $ 201,701
Receivables from CUStOMETS .....covvevicveeeeeee e v e ererens 40,138 56,229
Preneed cemetery receivables and trust investments ................ $ 255,679 $ 257,930

The cost and market values associated with the preneed cemetery merchandise and services trust assets as
of October 31, 2007 are detailed below. The adjusted cost basis of the cemetery merchandise and services trust
assets below reflects an other than temporary decline in the trust assets of approximately $40,861 as of QOctober 31,
2007 from their original cost basis. The Company believes the unrealized losses reflected below of $8,734 related to
trust investments are temporary in nature.
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(3 Preneed Cemetery Merchandise and Service Activities—(Continued)

October 31, 2007
Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Market
Cash, money market and other short-
term investments ..........c.cocvvceecviereee. & 16,955 $ — $ — $ 16,955
U.S. Government, agencies and
municipalities ......ocovveeecieinnesiaiennnns 15,397 223 (13) 15,607
Corporate bonds ......c.coievvervreererverennnnns 11,451 211 (191) 11,471
Preferred StOCKS ...ovveeve e eeeanes 26,330 42 (2,209) 24,163
Common StockS ...o.ooeeinreireneeeciececeeee, 106,478 15,543 (6,284) 115,737
Mutual funds ..o 29,958 1,116 37 31,037
Insurance contracts and other long-term
IAVESTMENLS......ccovreerrrerireeneseesirreeneens 64 — — 64
Trust INVESEMNENES ..evvvveveervenrsrrsversrereserees $ 206,633 $ 17,135 $ (8,734) $ 215,034
Market value as a percentage of cost....... 104.1%
Accrued investment income .................... 507
TIUSE ASSELS ..o.ecuvevcrreresvererereaenrenrnssseeerens $ 215,541

The estimated maturities and market values of debt securities included above are as follows:

October 31, 2007
DUE I ONE YEAT OF 1855, 1.emeeeeeeecieeree e et sbs e s nnens $ 2,181
Due in One t0 fIVE YEAIS ...cc.covvveirererrre e e s e e e s e e 15,994
Due in five to ten years............. eeeteeesteteatesreceeseeestetessestetesteneetententetesasanebanetateneraesenanane 8,878
TEIEAT G ...t et cere et e tasaerera e essara e re re g mer e e s ansra s e emeee e e e eneameneane e e anenae 25
3 27,078

The cost and market values associated with the preneed cemetery merchandise and services trust assets as
of October 31, 2006 are detailed below. The adjusted cost basis of the cemetery merchandise and services trust
assets below reflect an other than temporary decline in the trust assets of approximately $42,871 as of October 31,
2006 from their original cost basis. The Company believes the unrealized losses reflected below of $2,958 related to
trust investments are temporary in nature.
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(5) Prenced Cemetery Merchandise and Service Activities—(Continued)

October 31, 2006
Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Market
Cash, money market and other short-
term investments .. SO T WX ¥ 3 — 3 — $§ 21,437
U.S. Government, agenc1es and '
MUNCIPAltIEs .....ovveevervicrererc e 13,348 66 (78) 13,336 °
Corporate bonds ..., 10,115 320 23 10,412
Preferred StockS ..o eevveeneeeini e 32,926 . 280 (494) 32,712
Common StOCKS.....oovvverrevrereerenesneresnnnens 89,091 9,426 (2,356) 96,161 .
Mutual funds .. v 25,721 309 3 26,027
Insurance contracts and other long-term
INVESHMENLS.....cvc et 571 — ) 567
TTust iNVESHMENLS ....vuvviivnesirainnisninnnans $ 193,209 $ 10,401 $ (2,958) $ 200,652
Market value as a percentage of cost....... 103.9%
Accrued investment income .. ceeeaneen 1,331
Less trust investments of assets held for .
SALE Lo e (282)
TIUSE ASSELS ..vveieeererrrerinrsiresrescarterssessreses $ 201,701

Activity related to preneed cemetery merchandise and services trust investments is as follows:

Year Ended October 31,

‘ . 2007 2006 2005
PULCRASES ..vveeeereeieeiiee e s essssssssssssssssssssnnrinas S 223,437 $ 115,257 $ 133,501
SALES....ceeerieererieuererrererareresrareseseersserrrr e e ene e e 218,808 131,166 110,342
Realized ZAIMS ...c.ecveecrcereietrcve e 12,705 11,090 9,260
Realized losses 0n Sales........cccreeerievenvecrcninnenserensnnnens (300) (1,593) (2,997)
Other comprehensive income: 7

Reduction in net unrealized 10SS€5...ovvennrenrresrinnn,s 958 7,873 1,136
Reclassification to non-controlling interest ........... (958) (7,873) - (1,136)

In addition, the Company deposited $18,185, $19,630 and $18,462 into and withdrew $20,844, $29,330
and $32,370 from preneed cemetery merchandise and service trust during the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the preneed cemetery merchandise
and services trust investments with unrealized losses that are temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual sccurities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of
October 31, 2007 and 2006. A loss is considered other than temporary if the security has a reduction in market
value, compared with its cost basis, of 20 percent or more for a period of six months or longer.
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(5) Preneed Cemetery Merchandise and Service Activities—{(Continued)

October 31, 2007
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
_ Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government, agencies and
municipalities ........cc.cceereenee. $ 199 $ (3) s 1,191 3 (10) $ 1,390 3 (13)
Corporate bonds ... 4,279 (176} 396 (15) 4,675 (191)
Preferred stocks 5,956 (361) 12,524 (1,848) 18,480 (2,209}
Common StockS .....vveivivseeieciniinns 38,118 3,647 12,088 (2,637 50,206 (6,284)
Mutual funds .....c.ccvvereeemrariennennens 3,053 31 2,662 {6) 5,715 (37
J (o] -1 AP RORO $ 51,605 5 (4,218) $ - 28,861 $ (4,516) § 80,466 $ (8,734)
October 31, 2006 .
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government, agencies and
municipalities ........cc.ceceoene $ 7,543 $ (38) $ 1,520 $ 40 $ 9,063 h) (78)
Corporate bonds ........ccvevnnnninn 745 (2) 692 1) 1,437 (23)
Preferred StoCKS .....oovvvveervieeceeene 552 {2) 14,079 (492) 14,631 (494)
Common stocks ........... 5,726 (162) 26,406 (2,194) 32,132 (2,356)
Mutual funds .......ccovevieieiieeens — — 2,463 (3) 2,463 3)
Insurance contracts and other
long-term investments ........... 15 4) — — 15 (4)
B0 7 ) U £ 14,581 3 (208) $ 45,160 $§ (2,750 % 59,741 $ (2,958)

(6) Cemetery Interment Rights and Perpetual Care Trusts

Earnings realized from cemetery perpetual care trust investments that the Company is legally permitted to
withdraw are recognized in current cemetery revenues and are used to defray cemetery maintenance costs which are
expensed as incurred. Recognized earnings related to these cemetery perpetual care trust investments were $10,164,
$10,079 and 38,106 for the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The cost and market values of the trust investments held by the cemetery perpetual care trusts as of October
31, 2007 are detailed below. The adjusted cost basis of the cemetery perpetual care trusts below reflects an other
than temporary decline in the trust assets of $32,812 as of October 31, 2007 from their original cost basis, The
Company believes the unrealized losses reflected below of $9,497 related to trust investments are temporary in

nature.
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(6} Cemetery Interment Rights and Perpetual Care Trusts——(Continued)

October 31, 2007
Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Market
Cash, money market and other short- ' ‘
term InVEStMENtS........ccveveveerrereerereenenns $ 11,752 3 — 5 — $ 11,752
U.S. Government, agencies and
MUOICIPALIES ...cvvvee v acanis 12,303 162 (82) 12,383
Corporate bonds .......cccoeeevrrmvnerineerecenne, 43,946 1,183 (460) 44,669
Preferred $tocks ..o, 62,349 621 (5,341) 57,629
Common StOCKS ...eereiocreecreeenrreeesaneennenns 80,191 18,626 (3,514) 95,303
Mutual funds ......ococcevcmmvnrerrrceninnnen 11,065 1,985 (85) 12,965
Insurance contracts and other long-term X
INVESLMENLS. ....coeeerererre e s secrannes - 817 166 {15} 968
Trust iNVESIMENLS ....ocvcvevevresrvrerervreseineas $222,423 $ 22,743 $ (9,497 $235,669
Market value as a percentage of cost....... : 106.0%
Accrued investment income..............o.. .. . 834
TIUSE SSELS cvvvreeereeeee e eeeeeverevreesnenns $236,503

The estimated maturities and market values of debt securities included above are as follows:

October 31, 2007
DUE IN 0N YEAT OF €85 ....cvrevererereneeeeinininie ettt e s s s s s st atntatas s a s rsterereras $ 2,106
DDUE N ONE E0 fIVE YEALS ..orereerrerervrre e intes e sa st s s s b s bbbt 27,616
DUe in fIVe 10 1BI1 YEAIS ....ovr et eb et 26,527
TRETEAMET.......cocvivitce et et e s r e s R03
' $ 57,052

The cost and market values of the trust investments held by the cemetery perpetual care trusts as of October
31, 2006 are detailed below. The adjusted cost basis of the cemetery perpetual care trusts below reflect an other
than temporary decline in the trust assets of $32,420 as of October 31, 2006 from their original cost basis. The
Company believes the unrealized losses reflected below of $4,461 related to trust investments are temporary in
nature.
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6 Cemetery Interment Rights and Perpetual Care Trusts—(Continued)

October 31, 2006
" Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Market
Cash, money market and other short-
term investments..........ceevvvvccrcvrvnrnee. 3 16,531 $ 2 3 (5 $ 16,528
U.S. Government, agenc1es and
municipalities ... 7,833 45 (127) 7,751
Corporate bonds ......cooooooviicecenriniccccns 24912 1,392 (66) 26,238
Preferred StockS..ovieeeeeciee v 71,603 1,338 (1,578) 71,363
Common StOCKS ....veeeveeeieeermcec e 83,839 14,135 (2,603) 95,371
Mutual funds .. . 10,681 574 (63) 11,192
Insurance contracts and other long-term
INVESHMENTS......ocvireicnrerrereerariersveesras 1,003 91 {(19) 1,075
Trust investments .................................... $216,402 § 17,577 $ (4461 $229518
Market value as a percentage of cost....... 106.1 %
Accrued investment income .. veevaeerres . 969
Less trust investments of assets he!d for .
T | U (1,839)
THUSE BSSEES ..vvvveerirrrerresreerenrersaesrasssarenane $228,648

Activity related to preneed cemetery perpetual care trust investments is as follows:

|
| Year Ended October 31,
- 2007 2006 2005
PUTCRASES ....cocviereriecrcesreinin e ctrvresnsnsnreseressssessnresesees 9 65,172 3 63,074 $ 111,349
SALES et s e bt e 57,921 54,450 98,774
Realized gains on Sales ........ccccoevvreinerervenceinenrirnonenns 4,756 4,853 5,578
Realized losses on Sales.......cccovvevivimvnminiennininienenns (1,334) (3,456) (2,017
Other comprehensive income:
Reduction (increase) in net unrealized losses ...... 130 ’ 10,299 (5,172)
Reclassification to non-controlling interest.......... (130) (10,299) 5,172

In addition, the Company deposited $8,158, $7,902 and $7,915 into and withdrew $10,536, $9,848 and
$9,203 from perpetual care trusts during the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

During the years ended October 31, 20‘07, 2006 and 20035, cemetery revenues were $243,487, $233,993 and
| $218,196, respectively, of which $7,748, $9,396 and $8,539, respectively, were required to be placed into perpetual
| care trust and were recorded as revenues and expenses.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the cemetery perpetual care trust
investments with unrealized losses that are temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment category and length of
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of October 31, 2007 and 2006.
A loss is considered other than temporary if the security has a reduction in market value, compared with its cost
basis, of 20 percent or more for a period of six months or longer. .
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(6) Cemetery Interment Rights and Perpetual Care Trusts—(Continued)

October 31, 2007
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
1.S. Government, agencies and
municipalities ......oorniieni § 523 $ N $ 1,919 $ (75 $ 2442 $ (82)
Corporate bonds .........coeiireenne. 13,594 (338) 2,407 (122) 16,001 : (460)
Preferred stocks .....o.ocvvviveecvrinnns 26,363 (2,052) 20,428 (3,289) 46,791 ) (5,341)
Common StOCKS ..cvemeencreenrcrncenan T 17,094 (2,256) 6,795 (1,258) 23 889 (3,514)
Mutual funds ........c.ccooovvevieneennns 1,434 (61} 339 (24) 1,773 (85)
Insurance contracts and other
long-term investments ........... 40 - (7} 99 (8) 139 (15)
TOLAL ..o v e $ 59048 $ @720 $ 31,987 3 (4,776) $ 91,035 $ (9,497
October 31, 2006
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Cash, money markets and other
shott-tetm investments ........ 3§ — 3 — 3 95 3 5 % 85 $ (&)
U.S. Government, agencies and

municipalities 1,875 (5) 2,867 (122) 4,742 (127
Corporate bonds ..........cue... 1,623 (13) 1,238 (53) 2,861 (66)
Preferred Stocks ..........cceuu 5,060 (118) 25,264 (1,460) 30,324 (1,578)
Common SLOCKS ......ccovvrearinscrenns 1,414 (114) 27,243 (2,489) 28,657 (2,603)
Mutual funds ........cooerveiiaicreenecns 772 (38) 642 (2%) 1,414 (63)
Insurance contracts and other : .
long-term investments ........... — — 87 (19) 87 (19)
TOtal e receease e 5 10,744 $ (288 $ 57436 $ (4173} $ 68,180 $ (4461
Y] Non-Controlling Interest in Funeral and Cemetery Trusts and in Perpetnal Care Trusts |

The components of non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts and non-controlling interest in
perpetual care trusts at October 31, 2007 are as follows:

Non-controlling Interest Non-controlling
. Enterest in
Preneed Preneed Perpetual
Funeral Cemetery Total Care Trusts
Trust assets at market value................ $ 477,335 $ 215541 ' $ 692,876 $ 236,503
Less: ' '
Pending withdrawals................... (9,551} (4,528) (14,079 (1,907)
Pending deposits.......c.cccoiiinnn 2,607 1,648 4,255 831
Non-controlling interest ............cc...... b 470,391 $ 212661 b 683,052 $ 235,427

The compdnents of non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts and non-controlling interest in
perpetual care trusts at October 31, 2006 are as follows:
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N Non-Controlling Interest in Funeral and Cemetery Trusts and in Perpetual Care Trusts —
(Continued)
Non-controlling Interest Non-controlling
Interest in
Preneed Preneed Perpetual
Furneral Cemetery Total Care Trusts
Trust assets at market value............. $ 463,721 $ 201,701 3 665,422 $ 228,648
Less:
Pending withdrawals................. (10,316) (5,174) (15,490 (2,300)
Pending deposits..........ocoueurenee 2,362 1,520 3,882 793
Non-controlling interest .................. $ 455,767 $ 198,047 $ 653,814 3 227,141

Investment and other income, net

The components of investment and other income, net in the consolidated statement of earnings for the years
ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are detailed below.

Year Ended October 31,
2007 2006 2005
Non-controlling interest: . .

' Realized gRINS.....ccccvmretcecmmrercr e reesneesveneens h) 35281 % 35420 - % 27,806
Realized 10SS€S .....cocrereerururemiireccee s (1,931) _ (6,767) (12,270)
Interest income, dividends and other ordinary

INCOMIE o ceeverreirtiarbetemcanenmsereesese e eneneansness 32,478 29,254 26,393
Trust expenses and iNCOME tAXES .......ovvvrvrermverene (11,253) (12,069) (12,020)
Net trust investment inCome.........oceeeininccinrnrnns 54,575 45,838 29,909
Non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery
trust investment INCOME ...........cceveeeercneenens (44,661) (37,761) (20,861)
Non-controlling interest in perpetual care trust
Investment iNCOME......c.oveevrrerievrneisennsessare (9,914) (8,077) {9,048)
Total non-controlling interest.............cecerermrrernnas —_ .. — —
Investment and other income, net "....o.coovveeo... 3,374 3,676 713
Total investment and other income, net ........occ...... $ 3,374 3 3,676 3 713

M Investment and other income, net is comprised of interest income primarily on the Company’s cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securnties not held in trust. For the year ended October 31, 2007, the balance
includes approximately $594 of interest income receivable from the Internal Revenue Service.

(8) Marketable Securities and Restricted Investments

The market value of marketable securities as of October 31, 2007 and 2006 was $1,262 and $1,239,
respectively, which included gross unrealized gains of $17 and $8 and gross unrealized losses of $0 and $8,
respectively, for fiscal years 2007 and 2006. Of the total marketable securities balances as of October 31, 2007 and
2006, $1,000 is classified as a long-term asset in the line item “Other assets” in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company is required by Texas statutes to maintain a minimal capital level of $1,000, of which 4¢ percent must
be in readily marketable investments.
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(&) Receivables
October 31,

Current receivables are summanzed as follows: 2007 2006
Instaliment contracts due within one year............o.occceveiiinienenseieine $ 44,070 $ 35,134
Income tax 1eCeiVaAbIES.........oeoveieeeee e 1,833 8,800
Receivable for hurricane related insurance proceeds.........c..corvvvererenvenene — 10,000
Trade and other receivables ..o eevienreiesriier e 15,114 16,830
Funeral receivables........cooivcciciecicrrecercs e 11,102 11,940
Allowance for doubtful accounts.. (8,142) (6,635)
Amounts to be collected for ¢ emetery perpetual care trusts .................... (3,362) (3,515)

Net current receivables..........ocovooeoeiie e 3 60,615 3 72,554

Long-term receivables are summarized as follows:

Instaliment contracts due beyond one year.........cocceceeeveeeerncninenioreenenns $ 90,453 b 85,904
Income tax receivables.... ... e e 10,880 8,485
Allowance for doubtful acCOUNES ..o e e e (10,824) (10,888)

. Amounts to be collected for cemetery perpetual care trusts ............oerven. {6,901) (8,151)
Net iong-term receivables........ reeenenae et sena $ 83,608 3 75,350

preneed cemetery property sales only. Receivables for preneed funeral and cemetery merchandise and services sales
are included in preneed funeral receivables and trust investments and preneed cemetery receivables and trust
investments as discussed in Notes 4 and 5.

Years ending October 31,

2008 ..ottt sesseets e ta s s s e st E e R R e R e A ea eSS e s n s $ 60,615
2009 sttt st b bRk et £ bRt e s n st e e 22,170
2. 12 O SO oSOV . 13,157
0BT oottt bkt s ket e e s et et r s 12,910
TREIEAITET o cee ettt ettt eee et c e ce e e e e e eseeen easeanseasnseisasaessebasasssasnansnssrnearnenranes 25,486
§ 144,223
(10) Inventories and Cemetery Property
Inventories are comprised of the following:
October 31,
2007 -+ 2006
Developed CEMELErY PIOPETLY c.covvessiinnriiimimss s sesssssaans 3 12,518 $ 13,274
Merchandise and SUPPLIES .......cocoieririeeeeeeecerereee e e 23,543 22,978
‘ $ ~ 36,061 3 36,252

STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Installment contracts due within one year and due beyond one year include receivables in the Company’s

The Company’s receivables as of October 31, 2007 are expected to be collected as follows:
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(10) Inventories and Cemetery Property—(Continued)

Cemetery property is comprised of the following:

October 31,
2007 2006
Developed cemetery PrOPErtY .........oceceererererecsmmmnesinieressesesemresesseressrasssssssnss 9 104,058 b 99,010
Undeveloped cemetery Property ... eriverivinesrsiesininssssssssssssssessseses 270,742 271,270
3 374,800 $ 370,280

The portion of developed cemetery property that management estimates will be used in the next twelve
months is included in inventories. Included in the non-current developed portion of cemetery property are $13,589
and 34,662 related to cemetery property under development as of October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, The
Company evaluates the recoverability of the cost of undeveloped cemetery property based on undiscounted expected
future cash flows.

(11) Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes

The following tables present the condensed conselidating historical financial statements as of October 31,
2007 and October 31, 2006 and for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, for the direct and
indirect domestic subsidiaries of the Company that serve as guarantors of the Company’s 6,25 percent senior notes
and its 3,125 percent and 3.375 percent senior convertible notes, and the financial results of the Company’s
subsidiaries that do not serve as guarantors. Non-guarantor subsidiaries of the 6.25 percent senior notes include the
Puerto Rican subsidiaries, Investors Trust, Inc. and certain immaterial domestic subsidiaries, which are prohibited
by law from guaranteeing the senior notes. The guarantor subsidiaries of the 6.25 percent senior notes are wholly-
owned directly or indirectly by the Company, except for three immaterial guarantor subsidiaries of which the
Company is the majority owner. The non-guarantor subsidiaries of the senior convertible notes are identical to the
6.25 percent senior notes but also include three immaterial non-wholly owned subsidiaries and any future non-
wholly owned subsidiaries. The guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several. In the statements
presented within this footnote, Tier 2 guarantor subsidiaries represent the three immaterial non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that do not guaranty the senior convertible notes but do guaranty the 6.25 percent senior notes. Non-
guarantor subsidiaries represent the identical non-guarantor subsidiaries of the 6.25 percent senior notes and senior
convertible notes. In the condensed consolidating statements of earnings and other comprehensive income,
corporate general and administrative expenses and interest expense of the parent are presented net of amounts
charged to the guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries.

The condensed consclidating balance sheet as of October 31, 2006 has been revised from the corresponding
balance sheet included in the Form 10-Q for the period ended July 31, 2007. The revisions relate to (1) the
reclassification of certain discontinued operations which occurred in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 and (2)
the correction of certain immaterial errors in classification between the columns. Correction of the classification
errors resulted in an increase to total assets for the Tier 2 guarantor subsidiaries of 8.0 percent with offsetting
changes to the other columns. These revisions had no impact on the consolidated totals in the Company's condensed
consolidating balance sheet as of October 31, 2006.
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{11) Condensed Conselidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Earnings and Other Comprehensive Income

Year Ended October 31, 2007

Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
2TV T | OO TOOOTOTORIOTOUS. — $ 257,783 § 1,558 8 19,989 § — § 279330
CEMELETY .v..ovvemsreserersessess st ssmsssemaesesssesans — 218,836 3,193 21,458 — 243,487
— 476,619 4,751 41,447 — 522817
Costs and expenses: ’ :
Funeral ... ranssaens — 202,721 1,036 12,618 — 216,375
COMELETY .o.ovvesrinssremrcssess e sss s ssamssesinsins — 175,070 2,492 16,450 — 194,012
— 377,791 3,528 29,068 — 410,387
Gross profit... — 98,828 1,223 12,379 — 112,430
Corporate gcneral and admlmstratwe
EXDEIISES ovvveormresensecsnssemsmsssssarsrsssesmieass osessss {31,143) — — — - (31,143)
Hurricane related charges, net 4 (965) (1,564) — — (2,533
Separation charges (384) (196) — — — (580)
Gains on dispositions and unpamncnt (losses) .
net.. 4 (45) — (3) — (44)
Other opemtmg mcome. net... 361 1,054 2 234 - 1,651
Operating earnings (loss).. (31.166) 98,676 (339) 12,610 —_ 79,781
INLETESt EXPENSE ..ccvvrvrreciraamiesrensrrmranasanss 3,718 (31,481) (189) (2,113) — (25,065)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt .............. 677) — — — — 677
Investment and other income, Net ......covvveriverne 3,266 94 — 14 — 3,374
Equity in subsidiaries ... 59,324 530 — - (59,854) -
Earnings {loss}) fmm commumg opcmtmns
before iNCOME tAXES ...cocverueeceererneeciane 39,465 67,819 (528) 10,511 (59,854) 57,413
Income tax expense (benefit).......... " {348) 16,041 (186) 2,562 — 18,099
Eamings {loss) from commumg operahons 39,813 51,778 (342) 7,919 (59,854 39,314
Discontinued operations:
Eamings from discontinued operations
before iNCOME tAXES ..o vriimrsrnsssnissessans — 807 — — —_ 807
Income taxes .. e — 308 — — — 308
Eamings from dlscontmued operatlons — 499 — — - 499
Net eamnings {loss) ... - 39813 52,277 (342) 7,919 (59.854) 39,813
Other comprehenswe income , nct 14 — — 14 (14) 14
Comprehensive income (loss) ... 39,827 % 52,277 $ (342) § 7933 §  (59,868) § 39,827
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(11) Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Earnings and Other Comprehensive Income

Year Ended October 31, 2006
Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiartes- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiaries Eliminatlons Consolidated
Revenues: : ’
FURCLAL ..ot ccevrserasrsr e nissses 3 - § 259673 % 1,321 § 19,243 § — § 280237
CRIMELEIY covvenerrrirrerrire s resvrvereesrvassranns — 213,343 3,091 17,559 — 233,993
) — 473,016 4412 36,802 — 514,230
Costs and expenses:
Funeral ..... — 201,744 815 12,483 — 215,042
CEMELETY .ottt b — 167,577 2,637 14,361 — 184,575
— 369,321 3,452 26,844 -— 399,617
: Gross profit......cec.... — 103,695 960 9,958 — 114,613
| Comorate geneml aud adrmmstranve
€XPEnses .. {31,739 — — — — (31,739)
Hurricane relatcd recoveries (chargcs) net ...... a2n 2,463 {708) — —_ 1,628
Separation charges........ueee - (807) (184) — — — (991)
Gains on d1sp051t1ons and lmpamnent (losses) .
net.., —_ (78) — {75) - (153)
Other opcrating income (cxpcnse), net.. . 36 1,048 (49) 298 — 1,333
Operating eamings (Ioss).................. (32,637) 106,944 203 10,181 — 84,691
Interest expense... " 9,173 (36,441) (417 (1,948) — (29,633)
Investment and or.her income, net 3,676 — —_ — — 3,676
Equity in subsidiaries ... - 48,652 591 — — (49.243) : —
Earnings (loss) fmm commumg opcratlons
before income taxes.. 28,864 71,094 (214) 8,233 (49.243) 58,734
Income tax expense (beneﬁt)....................... (8,729} 23,570 (58) 6,371 — 21,154
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 37,593 47,524 (156) 1,862 (49,243) 37,580
Discontinued operations:
Eamings {loss) from discontinued
operations before income taxes.............. — (418) — 338 - (80)
Income tax benefit ....omoeoeeceiene s — 93 — — — (93)
Eamings (loss) from discontinued
OPEIAtIONS.....cocontraerineirirmrir s mira e e {325) —_ 338 —_ ) 13
Net earnings (]oss) - 37,593 47,199 (156} 2,200 (49,243) 37,593
Cther comprchenswc mcome (]oss) nct — — — — _ —
Comprehensive income (058} ..oouvcrrceecernns S 37,593 § 47,199 § (156) § 2,200 $ (49,243) § 37,593
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(11) Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senier Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Earnings and Other Comprehensive Income

Year Ended October 31, 2005

Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Funeral .....comimmnn i — § 249291 $ 1,402 § 20,020 § — § 270,713
CEMELETY . ocvetaerrecssrretsirsimssssssenisarsssas seessasssans — 152,983 2,742 22,471 — 218,196
— 442,274 4,144 42,491 — 488,909
Costs and expenses: _
Funeral ... — 196,111 740 12,672 — 209,523
COMEBLEY .ot renecresisie e ecseneeteesriresamaracon —_ 159,500 2,505 15,902 — 177,907
— 355,611 3,245 28,574 — 387,430
GrOSS PTOIt 1vaorseceecerenercmsene e e rcorasmaeenne —_ 86,663 899 13,917 — 101,479
Corporate general and administrative
expenses... " (19,440) — — — — (19,440)
Hurricane relatcd charges net.. (2,562) (6,573) 231) — —_— (9,366)
Separation charges.... (1,049) {458) — — —_ (1,507)
Gains on dlsposmons and 1mpamnem (losse‘ .
Net..... — 965 — 346 — 1,311
Other operating income, ncl.. 187 683 3 500 — 1,373
Operating earnings (loss). (22,864) 81,280 671 14,763 —_— 73,850
INLETESt EAPEMNSE ovvcvrreccrrirerssms s e orasanean 53,814 (74,308) (974) (8,492) — {30,460)
Loss on garly cxtmgulshmem of debt ..... (32,822) — — — —— (32,822)
Investment and other income, net .. 713 — — — — 713
Equity (loss) in subsidianies ..........covrerceis (151,802) — — — 151,802 —
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accouming
principle....ocovciiiniinn (152,961) 6,472 (303) 6,271 151,802 11,281
Income tax expense (beneﬁt) (9,635) 3,244 (127) 4,496 — 2,978
Eatnings (loss) from commumg
operations before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle............... (143,326) (1,772) (t76) 1,775 151,802 8,303
Discontinued operations:
Earnings from discontinued operations
before income taxes.. . _ 439 — 1,313 -—_ 1,802
Income taxes .. - — 251 — — — 251
Earnings from dlscontmucd operatmns — 238 — 1,313 — 1,551
Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle.......covn. (143,326) (1,534) (176) 3,088 151,802 9,854
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle..... — (144,976) {300) (7,504) — {153,180)
INEL FOB5.cirnervesmrsnreare serssmersnsamcecenssesssmssstsnns (143,326) (146,510) (476) (4,816) 151,802 {143,326)
Other comprehens:ve INCOME, Net..mvviercrseere 330 -— — 3 (3) 330
Comprehensive 1088 ..o (142,996) § (146,510) § (476) $ (4,813) $ 151,799 § (142,996}

85




STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

an Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

October 31, 2007
Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidlaries Eliminations Congolidated
ASSETS
Current assets: .
Cash and cash equivalents..........coovcicnen. $ 63,202 § 6,685 $ 36 $ 1,622 § — % 71,545
Marketable securities .. — — — 262 — 262
Receivables, net of allowances 4,054 51,619 103 4,839 — 60,615
[NVEREOTIES. ... rcvierseeeererereeceecanssenesanssansnnaens 368 32,765 328 2,600 — 36,061
Prepaid expenses v 950 4,306 3 1,096 — 6,355
Deferred income taxcs nct 1,334 5,785 78 1,424 — 8,621
Total current assets................ 69,908 101,160 548 11,843 — 183,456
Receivables due beyond one year, net of
allowances .. 10,358 53,926 928 18,396 - . 83,608
Preneed ﬁmern] recewables a.nd trust
investments.. — — 504,534 — 10,519 — 515,053
Preneed cemctery rcccwables and lrust
INVESHMENLS ... renesesesess e enene : — 245,056 1,199 9,424 — 255,679
Goodwill........coe s e _ 253,451 48 19,787 — 273,286
Cemetery propeny, al cost — 338,274 11,408 25,118 v— 374,800
Property and equipment, at cost.... 43,395 436,588 1,699 37,299 —_ 518,981
Less accumulated depreciation..... 26,701 172,924 663 12,775 - —_ 213,063
Net property and equipment ..... 16,694 263,664 1,036 24,524 — 305918
Deferred income taxes, net... . 29,238 156,254 — 9,913 (2,546) 192,859
Cemetery perpetual care trust mvcstrncnts — 224,182 8,322 3,999 — 236,503
Other assets... 9,664 1,039 13 1,090 — 17,809
Equity in subSIdlanes . 21,124 6,826 — — (27,950) —
Total assets.. .. 3 156986 $ 2,154,366 $ 23,505 % 134,613 $ (30,496) § 2438974

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Curment maturities of long-term debt............. s 198 8§ — 5 — 8 — 8 — 3 198
Accounts payabie.... 2,196 21,284 1,075 2,051 — 26,606
Accrued expenses and other currenl
liabilities... . 16,654 45,934 — 2,691 — 65,279
Total current llabllmes 19,048 67,218 1,075 4,742 —_ 92,083
Long-term debt, less current mahmtles 450,115 — — — — 450,115
Deferred income taxes.. — — 2,546 — (2,546) —
Intercompany payables, nel........ (897,546) R69,802 4,419 23,325 —_ —
Deferred preneed funeral revenue.........ocveenes — 212,166 — 44,437 — 256,603
Deferred preneed cemetery revenue ..., — 255,266 515 28,726 — 284,507
Non-controlling intcrest in funeral and '

COTIELETY LIUSES .-y rree e e sonenesrsesensrnvrnrenes — 674,977 L1119 6,956 — 683,052
Other long-term liabilities ........coocveecemcccreenrins 11,717 2,152 — — — 13,869
Negative equity in subsidianes ..........coorenenne 150,334 — — — (150,334) —

Total liabilities .. {266,332) 2,081,581 9,674 108,186 (152,880) 1,780,229
Non-controlling i mtcresl in perpemal care

trasts .. — 223,119 8,309 3,999 — 135,427
Common smck 98,420 102 324 52 (478) 98,420
Other... 324,887 (150,436) 5,198 22,365 122,873 324,887
Accumu]ated other comprchenswe income...... 11 — -— 11 (11) 11

Totat shareholders' equity ... 423318 (150,334) 5,522 22 428 122,384 423,318
Total liabilities and shareho[ders‘ cqui!y.......... $ 156986 $ 2,154366 $ 23,505 § 134613 § (30,496) § 2,438,974
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an Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

October 31, 2006
Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiartes- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..o $ 39,120 % 3,254 % 37 § 1459 § — § 43,870
Marketable securities.. — — — 239 — 239
Receivables, net of allowances 0,875 57,294 1,703 3,682 — 72,554
Inventories... 316 32,804 280 2,852 —_ 36,252
Prepaid expenses................ 539 4,212 12 1,665 — 6,428
Deferred income taxes, D€t ......ocoveerivireinnans 3,835 5,482 — 1,185 — 10,502
Assets held for sale ... cvnncvenne — 349 - — — 349
Total current assets .. 53,685 103,395 2,032 11,082 = 170,194
Receivables due beyond one year net of
ALIOWANCES 1vuveceacrenseerrarseemiaesseestessieseses e nsenes 9,139 46,086 949 19,176 — 75,350
Prenced funeral receivables and trust '
investments.. — 502,502 —_ 11,i93 — 513,695
Prenced cemctcry recewables and tmst
IMVESHTIENTS 1. eevcveeenserem e sbacnemesiseacscaresene e — 243,619 847 13,464 — 257,930
Goodwill... — 251,507 48 19,787 -— 271,342
Cemetery prope:ny, at cost ......... — 335,160 10,608 24,512 -— 370,280
Property and equipment, at cost. 37,126 406,776 1,311 . 35,913 — 481,126
Less accumu!lated depreciation.. 21,278 155,524 524 11,500 -— 188,826
Net property and equipment .. 15,848 251,252 787 24,413 — 292,300
Deferred income taxes, net... 8,526 158,129 — 10,071 {2,743) 173,983
- Cemetery perpetual care tmst mveslmenis — 216,456 8,136 4,056 — 228,648
Non-current assets held for sale. — 13,265 — —_ — 13,265
Other assets... s 5312 7,178 — 1,100 ‘ — 13,590
Equity in subsu:llanes 14,391 6,296 — — (20,687) —

Total assets... .8 106501 § 2,134,845 § 23,407 3 138,854 $  (23,430) $ 2,380,577

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt............. $ 2,839 § - § — 3§ — § — 3 2,839

Accounts payable ... 2,346 14,243 1,530 1,256 — 19,375

Accrued expenses and othcr current

liabilities... 15,197 48,441 161 3,023 —_ 66,822
Total curren! habllmes 20,382 62,684 1,691 4,279 — 89,036

Long-term debt, less current marunnes 344,020 — — 30,000 — 374,020
Deferred income taxes.. ” — — 2,743 — {2,743) —
[ntercompany payablcs, net (923,919) 914,855 2,522 6,542 — —
Deferred prenced funeral revenue.................... R 226,097 — 44,170 — 270,267
Deferred prenced cemetery revenue ................ _— 265,890 1,772 28,662 — 296,324
Non-controiling interest in funeral and

cemetery trusts... — 646,509 655 6,650 — 653,814
Non-current habnlmes assoc:aled thh assets

held for sale ... — 8,833 - — — 8,833
Other long-term habllmes 10,386 2,024 — — —_ 12,410
Negative equity in subsndtarlcs 209,139 — — — (20%,139) —

Total liabilities (339,992) 2,126,892 9,383 120,303 (211,882) 1,704,704
Non-controiling interest in pcrpetual care

TUSES ©.vvvevemceecernress s essrecssnseanscasseasessrasaresasens — 214,925 8,160 4,056 — 227,141
Non-controlling interest in perpetual care

trusts associated with assets held for sale ... — 1,839 — — — 1,839
CommOn SIOCK ... irereearss s - 104,963 102 324 52 (478) 104,963
Other... . 341,933 (208,913) 5,540 14,446 188,527 341,933
Accumu]a:ed othcr comprehenswe ]oss (3 — — (3) 3 (3)

Total shareholders® equity ... rernesein o 446,893 (208,811) 5,864 14,495 188,452 446,893
Total liabilities and shareholdcrs' equity.......... $ 106501 § 2134845 § 23,407 § 138854 § (23,430) $ 2,380,577
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(11)

Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended October 31, 2007

Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior

Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiarles Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities.. R 637 % 68,417 § (1,838) § 14,725 § — 81,941
Cash flows from mvestlng actwmcs
Proceeds from sale of assets, net ........ovuen — 3,750 —_— — — 3,750
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired.... v — (5,203) — — — (5,203}
Insurance proceeds related lo humcane
damaged properties... - — 2,439 90 — — 2,529
Additions to propcrty and equ1pment (6,648) (27,16T) (150) (1,345) — (35,310}
Other .. - — 48 — — — 48
Net cash used in lnvestmg act:vmes (6,648) (26,133) (60) (1,345) — (34,186)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Procecds from long-term debt .........onveeee. 250,000 — — — — 250,000
Repayments of long-term debt ..o, (146,547) — — (30,000 — (176,547)
Intercompany receivables (payablcs) 20,173 (38,853) 1,897 16,783 — —
Debt issue costs.........-.. (6,2¥7) — — — — 6,217)
Proceeds from sale of common stock .
warrants.. . 43,850 — — — -— 43,850
[ssuance of common stock - 3,066 — — — — 3,066
Purchase and retirement of commeon s:ock (64,201) — — — — (64,201)
Purchase of call OpHONS....rmvvevrversrmrenvrvareens (60,000) — — —_ — (60,000)
Dividends.............. (10,184) — - —_ —_ (10,184)
Excess tax benef' ts from sharc-based
payment arrangements... - 153 — — —- — 153
Net cash provided by (used m) f nancmg
activities.. . 36,093 (38,853) 1,897 {13,217) — (20,080)
Net increase (decreasc) in cash 24,082 3,431 (i) 163 —_ 27,675
Cash and cash equivalents, begmmng of
PO .c..ovrrerrcnraee v rssssenics e reascssmse s rnenns 39,120 3,254 37 1,459 - 43,870
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ........ § 63,202 % 6,685 % 36 $ 1,622 § — 8 71,545
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(11) Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended October 31, 2006

Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash provided by operating activities......... § 1,968 § 73,676 $ 789 §$ 13,668 $ — § 90,101
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of assets, net ... — 485 — 733 — 1,218
Insurance proceeds related to hurricane
damaged properties... " - 5,616 384 — — 6,000
Additions to property and equnpment (3,583) (23,970} {i69) (1,185 — (28,907
Other ... 10 175 — 64 — 249
Net cash prowded by (used m) mve-‘nng
activities .. {3,573) (17,694) 215 (388) — {21,440)
Cash flows from {' nancmg actwmes
Repayments of long-term debt .. (33,168) — — — — (33,168)
intercompany receivables (payablcs) 67,446 (53,602) (967) (12,877) —_ _
Issuance of common stock... 368 — — — - 368
Purchase and retirement of common '.tock... (21,996) — — — —-— (21,996)
Dividends... (10,673} — — — - (10,673)
Excess tax beneﬁts from share based
payment arrangements ... ...ccovwverieunrerenans 11 — — — — 1
Other ... 62 — — — — 62
Net cash prov:ded by (used m) ﬁnancmg
activities .. 2,050 (53,602) {367} (12,877) - (65,396)
Net increase in cash 445 2,380 37 403 — 3,265
Cash and cash equwalems begmnmg of
period.... 38,675 874 — 1,056 — 40,605
Cash and cash cquwalents, cnd of penod 39,120 § 3,254 § 7 § 1,459 § — § 43,870
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(11) Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors of Senior Notes and Senior
Convertible Notes—(Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended October 31, 2005

Guarantor Guarantor Non-
Subsidiaries- Subsidiaries- Guarantor
Parent Tier 1 Tier 2 Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash provided by operating activities......... § 19,560 $ 14,703 § 1,157 8 17,422 § — 3 52,842
Cash flows from investing activitics;
Proceeds from sales of marketable
" SECUTIES .ovvuvonmeerrrrarorscnssmssenssrrsenrarssarssees — 16 — — — 16
Proceeds from sale of assers, net .. (402) 7,944 — 2,465 —_ 10,007
Additions to property and equnpment (3,734) (15,015) (117) (3,703) — (22,569)
Other ... S erererrnsens — 156 — 14 — 149
Net cash used in lnvestmg asc!mtlcs ............. {4,136) (6,899) (117 {1,245) — (12,397)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt ..o 440,000 _ — — - 440,000
Repayments of long-term debt ... (446,778) — — — — (446,778)
Intercompany receivables (payables) 31,052 (14,555) {1,040) (15,457) — —
Debt issue costs... RT (6,257) — — — — 6,257)
Issuance of common stock 13,602 - — — — 13,602
Purchase and retirement of common smck... {13,685) — — — — (13,685)
Dividends... (8,183) — — — — (8,183)
Other ......... (53) — — — — (53}
Net cash provnded by (used m) f'mancmg .
activities.. 9,698 (14,555) (1,040 (15,457) — (21,354)
Net increase (dccreasc) in cash 25,122 (6,751) — 720 —_ 19,091
Cash and cash equivalents, begmmng of
period.... . 13,553 7,625 — 336 — 21,514
Cash and cash equwalents, end of penod ......... $ ° 38675 § 874 § — $ 1,056 § -— § 40,605
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{12) Discontinued Operations and Acquisitions

The Cempany sold eleven businesses in fiscal year 2007, all of which are classified as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. In fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded gains on
dispositions, net of impairment losses, of ($44), ($153) and $1,311 in continuing operations, respectively, and $609,
($174) and $1,090 in discontinued operations, respectively.

In the consolidated statements of earnings, the impairment charges related to the write-down of these long-
lived assets occurring in 2005, 2006 and 2007 in continuing operations are reflected in the “Gains on dispositions
and impairment (fosses), net” line item. The related assets and liabilities associated with assets held for sale are
shown in separate line itemns in the consolidated balance sheet titled “assets held for sale,” “non-current assets heid
for sale” and “non-current liabilities associated with assets held for sale.” As of October 31, 2006, the assets held
for sale and the liabilities associated with assets held for sale line items in the balance sheet represent the assets and
liabilities, respectively, of facilities sold during fiscal year 2007. —

A summary of the assets and liabilities included in the “assets held for sale” and “liabilities associated with
assets held for sale” line items at October 31, 2006 and the operating results of the discontinued operations for the
years ended Qctober 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, are as follows:

Assets October 31, 2006

Receivables, NEt OF AlLOWANCES .........cvverireirrerrrsreseereereresssessessrsstsssintsrssasersssaesssssesnsnsesnsessonsenanen $ 22
Inventories and other CUITENE ASSELS.. ..o et s 327
Assets held for sale.........c.ccvvmerveririnierarnen, coenren e $ 349

Net property and eqQUIPITIENT ......cooiiieiierririeri e se et et e e raes 3,610
Preneed funeral receivables and trust invesStments ............ccceeevrrcrceenes e ies e eerresaerbe 4,778
Preneed cemetery receivables and trust INVESHMENLS .......cccoereevceienriieinionernnnnerneserereren s rees 224
Deferred charges and other aS5ets........ovvciiiinniiiiicisiisiico e onan 2,100
Deferred INCOME LAXES, NEL.......ccciii e v ieercriresr e rersre e sssssessssesssessneesabesesasesaresssnsesasessssserstnsassans 4
CRMBLETY PTOPETLY ...e.ecereeeeereriecesearsaresesssanerastamraraserasse st sanasesssasase st sasasasentsatareresntsrssenmnnsnssasanns 710
Cemetery perpetual care trust INVESUNENLS .....cviieeeriicceeiiicesses sttt sesrnes s svse e sasesenemeane 1,839
Non-current assets held for Sale et s sbssbanes $ 13,265

Liabilities

Deferred preneed funeral revenue ................ eeertees e eeeeeetneeeeatr e e et et antnee e re et e naeosntrenaneennear 3,624
Deferred preneed CEMEEIY TEVENUE ........c.ociviiiniiirimiiin ettt e sane e snasans 574
Non-controlling interest in funeral and cemetery trusts..........cocovv v 4,635
Non-current liabilities associated with assets held for sale ......oivviiviiiiiniineenreierenrenseens 3 8,833
Non-controlling interest in perpetual care trusts associated with assets held for sale ............... $ 1,839
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(12) Discontinued Operations and A;:quisitions—(Continued)

Year Ended October 31,
2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
FUNEEAL oovviiese s ie e s sase e one $ 1,851 $ 2,826 $ 4,045
CEIMELETY ..o cerirsrressesr s sssesss b as s eesabeneaes 937 1,061 1,637
$ 2,788 $ 3,887 3 5,682
Gross profit:
Funeral ....coocceeriniinieeccccecsrncnissrenens 3 110 b 79 5 247
L0 111 o OO TS 88 32 417
198 111 664
Gains on dispositions and impairment (losses), net... 609 (174) 1,090
Other operating income (expense), net ...........cccoee.e — (17 48
Earnings (loss) frem discontinued operations before
INCOME LAXES ..eoveeaeeeerercre v rvrnrrssvesssssnsesssesneeneess B 807 $ (80) 3 1,802

Acquisitions

On December 12, 2006, the Company acquired a new funeral home in the Eastern Division’s Southern Region
for approximately $2,800. On May 15, 2007, the Company acquired a new funeral home in the Eastern Division’s
Central Region for approximately $2,398. These acquisitions have been accounted for under the purchase method,
and the acquired assets and liabilities have been valued at their estimated fair values. Their results of operations
have been included since the acquisition date. The excess purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired
for these funeral homes was allocated to goodwill. The change in goodwill from October 31, 2006 to October 31,
2007 amounted to $1,944 and is primarily due to these acquisitions, all of which are reflected in the Eastern division
funeral segment.

(13) Separation'Charges

During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded $580, $991 and $1,507, respectively, in
total separation charges, of which $350, $550 and $300, respectively, related to the separation pay of former
executive officers. For a discussion of the separation pay to former executive officers, see Note 19. As of October
31, 2007, the Company has $699 in remaining payments under all executive officer separation agreements.

The Company reorganized its operating divisions from four operating divisions to two: Eastern and
Western, effective for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005. The Company recorded $230, $441 and $1,207 in costs
related to this reorganization for the years ended Qctober 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The liability
related to the reorganization amounted to $130 and $244 at October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company
paid approximately $408, $846 and $460 of the reorganization costs during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Reorganization costs in 2005 and 2006 primarily related to moving and other costs associated with the
reorganization, Reorganization costs in 2007 are primarily related to a lease agreement for which the Company is
committed through 2009. In the third quarter of 2007, the Company entered into a sublease of this property,
however, this sublease does not cover the full cost of the original lease.
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(14) Long-term Debt

October 31, 2007 October 31, 2006
Long-term debt:
3.125% senior convertible notes due 2014........c.ovoviniiiininens hy 125,000 3 —
3.375% senior convertible notes due 2016.............coovvvevevrmnee 125,000 —
Senior secured credit facility:
Revolving credit facility.......covevineiiiiicieneeeeseee — —
Term Loan B ... ssssssse et — 175,904
6.25% senior notes due 2013 ceiiivii e 200,000 200,000
Other, principalty seller financing of acquired operations or
assumption upon acquisition, weighted average interest
rates of 4.5% and 3.5% as of October 31, 2007 and
October 31, 2006, respectively, partially secured by assets
of subsidiaries, with maturities through 2022.............c.ccooeve. 313 955
Total long-term debt..........cc.ocouiuioiiininreeeereerniens 450,313 376,859
Less curtent MAtULHEsS ........ccceviviiennesisirirnes v s crnessreesneenns 198 2,839
$ 450,115 $ 374,020

Senior Convertible Notes

. On June 27, 2007, the Company issued in a private placement $125,000 aggregate principal amount of
3.125 percent senior convertible notes due 2014 (the “2014 Notes”) and $125,000 aggregate principal amount of
3.375 percent senior convertible notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes”, and together with the 2014 Notes, the “senior
convertible notes”). In connection with the sale of the senior convertible notes, the Company also sold common
stock warrants for approximately $43,850, as described below. Total proceeds from the issuance of the senior
convertible notes and sale of the common stock warrants was approximately $293,850. The Company used
approximately $163,978 of the proceeds to prepay the remaining balance of the Company’s Term Loan B at par
value (the Company had previously paid $13,098 of principal payments during 2007 prior to the extinguishment of
the debt), including accrued interest, and used $60,000 for the purchase of call options as described below. The
Company also used approximately $64,201 of the proceeds to repurchase 7,698,000 shares of the Company’s Class
A common stock in negotiated transactions. The Company incurred debt issuance costs of approximately $6,217 for
investment bank fees, legal fees and other costs related to the transaction. Debt issuance costs were capitalized and
will be amortized over the terms of the senior convertible notes or until they become convertible. The Company
recorded a charge for the loss on early extinguishment of debt of $677 as of October 31, 2007 which represents the
write-off of remaining Term Loan B deferred charges.

The 2014 Notes and 2016 Notes are governed by separate indentures dated as of June 27, 2007, among the
Company, the Guarantors named therein and the trustee. The 2014 Notes mature July 15, 2014, and the 2016 Notes
mature July 15, 2016. The 2014 Notes bear interest at a rate of 3.125 percent per annum, and the 2016 Notes bear
interest at a rate of 3.375 percent per annum. Interest is payable semiannualily in arrears on January 15 and July 15 of
each year, commencing January 15, 2008. As of October 31, 2007, the carrying values of the Company’s 2014
Notes and 2016 Notes, including accrued interest, were $126,345 and $126,453, respectively, compared to fair
values of $131,520 and $131,653, respectively.

Holders may convert their senior convertible notes based on a conversion rate of 90.4936 shares of the
Company’s Class A common stock per $1,000 principal amount of senior convertible notes (which is equal to an
initial conversion price of approximately $11.05 per share), subject to adjustment: (1) during any fiscal quarter
beginning after October 31, 2007, if the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock for a specified
period in the prior quarter is more than 130 percent of the conversion price per share, (2) for a specified period after
five trading days in which the trading price of the notes for each trading day was less than 95 percent of the product
of the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock and the then applicable conversion rate, (3) if
specified distributions to holders of the Company’s Class A common stock occur, (4) if a fundamental change
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occurs or (5) during the last month prior to the maturity date of the notes. None of these conditions had been met at
October 31, 2007. :

Upon conversion, in lieu of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, for each $1,000 principal
amount of senior convertible notes converted, a holder will receive an amount in cash equal to the lesser of (1)
$1,000 or (2) the conversion value, determined in the manner set forth in the indentures, of the number of shares of
the .Company’s Class A common stock equal to the conversion rate. If the conversion value exceeds $1,000, the
Company will also deliver, at the Company’s election, cash or Class A commeon stock or a combination of cash and
Class A common stock with respect to such excess amount, subject to the limitations in the indentures. If a holder
elects to convert its senior convertible notes in connection with certain fundamental change transactions, the
Company will pay, to the extent described in the indentures, a make whole premium by increasing the conversion
rate applicable to such senior convertible notes. '

Upon specified fundamental change events, holders will have the option to require the Company to
purchase for cash all or any portion of their senior convertible notes at a price equal to 100 percent of the principal
amount of the senior convertible notes plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the fundamental
change purchase date.

The senior convertible notes are the Company’s senior unsecured obligations. The senior convertible notes
are guaranteed, fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally, on an unsecured senior basis, by all of the
Company’s subsidiaries that are guarantors of the Company’s 6.25 percent senior notes, except for three immaterial
non-wholly owned subsidiaries and except for any future non-wholly owned subsidiaries. The indentures contain
events of default which, if they occur, entitle the holders of the senior convertible notes to declare the senior
convertible notes immediately due and payable. :

In connection with the sale of the senior convertible notes, the Company and the guarantors entered into a
registration rights agreement dated as of June 27, 2007. Pursuant to the registration rights agreement, the Company
filed with the SEC a shelf registration statement with respect to the resale of the senior convertible notes and the
shares of Class A common stock issuable upon conversion of the senior convertible notes. The Company agreed to
use its reasonable best efforts to keep the registration statement effective for a period of up to two years, subject to
the Company’s right to suspend the use of the prospectus under certain circumstances. The Company will be
required to pay additional interest, up to 0.50 percent, subject to some limitations, to the holders of the senior
convertible notes if the requirements of the registration rights agreement are not met.

Also, in connection with the sale of the senior convertible notes, the Company purchased call options with
respect to its Class A common stock from Merrill Lynch International. The call options cover, subject to anti-
dilution adjustments, 11,311,700 shares of Class A common stock for each series of senior convertible notes, at
strike prices that correspond to the initial conversion price of the notes. The call options are expected to offset the
Company’s exposure to dilution from conversion of the senior convertible notes because any shares the Company
would be obligated to deliver to holders upon conversion of the senior convertible notes would be delivered to the
Company by the counterparty to the call options. The Company paid approximately $60,000 for the call options.

The Company also entered into warrant transactions whereby it sold to Merrill Lynch Financial Markets
warrants expiring in 2014 and 2016 to acquire, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments, 11,311,700 and
11,311,700 shares of Class A common stock, respectively. The strike prices of the sold warrants expiring in 2014
and 2016 are $12.93 per share of Class A common stock and $13.76 per share of Class A common stock,
respectively. The warrants expiring in 2014 and 2016 may not be exercised prior to the maturity of the 2014 Notes
and 2016 Notes, respectively. The Company can elect to settle the warrants in cash or Class A common stock,
subject to certain conditions. The Company received approximately $43,850 for the warrants.
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The price of the call options is treated for tax purposes as interest expense, which amortizes over the lives
of the notes. Accordingly, the Company will have a tax benefit of approximately $21,000 over the lives of the
senior convertible notes. The sale of the warrants is not expected to have any tax consequences to the Company.

By selling the warrants, the Company used the proceeds to offset much of the cost of the call options. By
simultaneously purchasing the call options and selling the warrants, the Company has effectively increased the
conversion premium on the senior convertible notes to 55-65 percent abovc the market price of the Class A common
stock at the time of the offering.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On November 19, 2004, the Company entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit facility
consisting of a $125,000 five-year revolving credit facility maturing on November 19, 2009, and a $100,000 seven-
year Term Loan B. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company incurred a charge for the early
extinguishment of debt of $2,651 ($1,723 after tax, or $.02 per share) to write off fees associated with the prior
facility. In 2003, the Company borrowed an additional $130,000 in Term Loan B under an accordion feature. The
Term Loan B was paid in full in June 2007.

As a result of the amendment of the facility in 2004, the leverage-based grid pricing for the interest rate on
the Company’s revolving credit facility was reduced to LIBOR plus 150.0 basis points at closing, representing a 50
basis-point reduction. The grid for the revolving credit facility ranges from 137.5 to 200.0 basis points. The
Company pays a quarterly commitment fee of 37.5 to 50.0 basis points, based on the Company’s consolidated
leverage ratio. The interest rate on the Company’s Term Loan B was reduced to LIBOR plus 175.0 basis points,
-which was 75 basis points below the prior facility and not subject to grid pricing.

As of October 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no amounts drawn on the Company's $125,000 revolving
credit facility. As of October 31, 2007, after giving consideration to the $12,995 of outstanding letters of credit and
a $30,838 bond the Company is required to maintain to guarantee its obligations relating to funds it withdrew in
fiscal year 2001 from trust funds in Florida, the Company's availability under the revolving credit facility
was $81,167. As stated above, on June 27, 2007, the Company repaid the balance of its Term Loan B prior to its
maturity date. As of October 31, 2006, the carrying value of the Company’s Term Loan B including accrued
interest was $178,145, compared to 2 fair value of $177,925. As of October 31, 2006, the Company's Term Loan B
was subject to short-term variable interest rates of approximately 7.2 percent.

The senior secured credit facility is governed by three financial covenants:

e Maintenance on a rolling four quarter basis of a maximum consolidated leverage ratio (funded debt (net of
domestic cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities) divided by EBITDA (as defined)) - Maximum
3.50x,

e  Maintenance on 2 rolling four quarter ba51s of a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio (EBITDA
(as defined) divided by interest expense) — Minimum 2.50x, and

¢ Maintenance on a rolling four quarter basis of a maximum consolidated senior secured leverage ratio (total
funded senior secured debt divided by EBITDA (as defined)) — Maximum 3.00x with step-downs.

The covenants include required mandatory prepayments from the proceeds of certain asset sales and debt
and equity offerings (with the first $25,000 per year of asset sale proceeds considered to be an optional prepayment),
limitations on liens, limitations on mergers, consolidations and asset sales, limitations on incurrence of debt,
limitations on dividends, stock redemptions and the redemption and/or prepayment of other debt, limitations on
investments and acquisitions and limitations on transactions with affiliates. If there is no default or event of default,
the Company may pay cash dividends and repurchase its stock, provided that the aggregate amount of the dividends
and stock repurchased plus other types of restricted payments in any fiscal year does not exceed $30,000 plus any
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positive amounts in the discretionary basket. The agreement also limits capital expenditures in any fiscal year to
$40,000, with a provision for the carryover of permitted but unused amounts. The cost of acquisitions is unlimited if
the consolidated leverage ratio is less than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00 and the consolidated senior secured leverage ratio
is less than or equal to 1.75 to 1.00, after giving pro forma effect to the acquisition; otherwise, the limit is $75,000 in
any fiscal year, with a provision for the carryover of permitted but unused amounts. The lenders under the senior
secured credit facility can accelerate all obligations under the facility and terminate the revolving credit commitment
if an event of default occurs and is continuing.

Under the dividend and stock repurchase restrictions in the senior secured credit facility, the Company
could use up to $197,576 to pay dividends or repurchase its stock as of October 31, 2007.

Obligations under the senior secured credit facility are guaranteed by substantially all existing and future
direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries of the Company formed under the laws of any one of the states or the
District of Columbia of the United States of America (“SEI Guarantors™).

The lenders under the senior secured credit facility have received a first priority perfected security interest
in (1} all of the capital stock or other equity interests of each of the domestic subsidiaries of the Company and 65
percent of the voting capital stock of all direct foreign subsidiaries and (2) all other present and future assets and
properties of the Company and the SEI Guarantors except (a) real property, (b) vehicles, (¢) assets to which
applicable law prohibits security interest therein or requires the consent of a third party, (d} contract rights in which
a security interest without the approval of the other party to the contract would constitute a default thereunder and
(e) any assets with respect to which a security interest cannot be perfected. )

Senior Notes

On February 18, 2005, the Company completed its tender offer and consent solicitation for any and alt of
its $300,000 10.75 percent senior subordinated notes. The Company purchased a total of $298,250 in aggregate
principal amount of the notes in the offer. In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company incurred a charge
for early extinguishment of debt of approximately $30,057 ($19,210 after tax, or $.18 per share) representing
$25,369 for a tender premium, related fees and expenses and $4,688 for the write-off of the remaining unamortized
fees on the senior subordinated notes.

The Company funded the tender offer for the 10.75 percent senior subordinated notes, including related
tender premiums, fees, expenses and accrued interest of $28,931, with the net proceeds of the $130,000 in additional
Term Loan B borrowings described above, a portion of its available cash, and the net proceeds of the issnance of
$200,000 6.25 percent senior notes due 2013 (the “6.25 percent senior notes™), which were issued on February 11,
2005.

The Company redeemed the remaining $1,750 principal amount of senior subordinated notes on the first
call date of July 1, 2005 at the aggregate redemption price of $1,844, which was funded by cash on hand. In the
third quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company recorded a charge for the early extinguishment of debt of
approximately $114 including the call premium and write-off of the remaining unamontized fees on the senior
subordinated notes.

The 6.25 percent senior notes arc governed by the terms of an indenture dated as of February 11, 2005.
Prior to February 15, 2009, the 6.25 percent senior notes are not redeemable. Beginning on February 15, 2009, the
Company may redeem the 6.25 percent senior notes in whole or in part at any time at the redemption prices set forth
in the indenture, plus any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, upon a change of control of the Company,
holders of the 6.25 percent senior notes will have the right to require the Company to repurchase all or any part of
their 6.25 percent senior notes for cash at a price equal to 101 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the 6.25
percent senior notes repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest. As of October 31, 2007 and 2006, the
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carrying values of the Company’s 6.25 percent senior notes including accrued interest were $202,604 compared to
fair values of $193,578 and $190,599, respectivély.

The 6.25 percent senior notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the SEI Guarantors, and are the
Company’s senior unsecured obligations and the guarantees of the 6.25 percent senior notes are the SEI Guarantors’
senior unsecured obligations.

The indenture contains affirmative and negative covenants that, among other things, limit the Company and
the SEI Guarantors® ability to engage in sale and leaseback transactions, effect a consolidation or merger or sale,
transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all assets, and create liens on assets. The indenture also
contains customary events of default. Upon the occurrence of certain events of default, the Trustee or the holders of
the 6.25 percent senior notes may declare all outstanding 6.25 percent senior notes to be due and payable
immediately.

In connection with the issuance of the 6.25 percent senior notes in February 2005, the Company entered
into a registration rights agreement that required that a registration statement be filed and declared effective by the
SEC, and that an exchange offer be conducted providing for the exchange of the unregistered notes for similar
registered notes, all within specified times. The Company was unable to cause the required registration statement to
become effective on time and therefore was required to pay additional interest at the regular interest payment rates
to the note holders until the default was cured. Additional interest began to accrue on June 12, 2005 at a rate of 0.50
percent per annumy, increased to 1.00 percent on September 11, 2005 and increased to 1.50 percent on December 11,
2005. The exchange offer was completed on June 5, 2006. Total additional interest incurred from June 12, 2005 to
June 5, 2006 was $2,200 of which $1,672 was incurred in fiscal year 2006. Since the exchange offer was
completed the additional interest has been eliminated.

Other

As of October 31, 2007, the Company’s subsidiaries had approximately $313 of long-terrn debt that
represents notes the subsidiaries issued as part of the purchase price of acquired businesses or debt the subsidiaries
assurned in connection with acquisitions. Approximately $182 of this debt is secured by liens on the stock or assets
of the related subsidiaries.

Scheduled principal payments of the Company’s long-term debt for the fiscal years ending October 31,
2008 through October 31, 2012, ate approximately $198 in 2008, $20 in 2009, $5 in 2010, $5 in 2011 and $5 in
2012. Scheduled principal payments thereafter are $450,080.

As of October 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with the covenants in its debt agreements.
(15) Guarantees

The Company’s obligations under its senior secured credit facility, 6.25 percent senior notes and its 3.125
percent and 3.375 percent senior convertible notes are guaranteed by all of its existing and future direct and indirect
subsidiaries formed under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia, except for
specified excluded subsidiaries. For additional information regarding the senior secured credit facility, senior
convertible notes, and senior notes, see Note 14,

All obligations under the senior secured credit facility, including the guarantees and any interest rate

protection and other hedging agreements with any lender or its affiliates, are secured by a first priority perfected
security interest as described in Note 14,
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Louisiana law gives Louisiana corporations broad powers to indemnify their present and former directors
and officers and those of affiliated corporations against expenses incurred in the defense of any lawsuit to which
they are made parties by reason of their positions. The Company’s By-laws make mandatory the indemnification of
directors and officers permitted by Leuisiana law. The Company has in effect a directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy that provides for indemnification of its officers and directors against losses arising from claims
asserted against them in their capacities as officers and directors, subject to limitations and conditions set forth in
such policy. The Company has also entered into indemnity agreements with each director and executive officer,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed, subject to certain exceptions, to purchase and maintain directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance. The agreements also provide that the Company will indemnify each director and
executive officer against any costs and expenses, judgments, settlements and fines incurred in connection with any
claim involving him or her by reason of his or her position as director or officer, provided that the director or
executive officer meets certain standards of conduct.

As of October 31, 2007, the Company has guaranteed long-term debt of its subsidiaries of approximately
$101 that represents notes the subsidiaries issued as part of the purchase price of acquired businesses or debt the
subsidiaries assumed in connection with acquisitions.

(16) Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted Per Share Data

Earnings Shares Per Share
{Numerator) {Denominator) Data

Year Ended October 31, 2007
Earnings from continuing operations..........oovcevnieininee_$ 39,314
Basic earnings per common share:

Earnings from continuing operations available

to common shareholders.........coooeiiiieiiiiiiecieees $ 39,314 102,584 b .38
Effect of dilutive securities: :
Time-vest stock options assumed exercised
and restricted StOCK.......ocooviiiininiin i 153
Diluted eamings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations available
to commeon shareholders plus time-vest
stock options assumed exercised and
FESLHCIEA STOCK. .. vvrvvrrererereeeeenseriveesesesceeaanr e $ 39,314 102,737 $ .38
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Earnings Shares Per Share
(Numerator) {Denominator) Data

Year Ended October 31, 2006 -
Earnings from continuing operations.........cccccecevveines 3 37,580
Basic earnings per common share: ’

Earnings from continuing operations available

to common shareholders..........cc.occcovniiiniiicrrennennn. $ 37,580 106,855 $ 35
Effect of dilutive securities: -
Time-vest stock options assumed exercised
and restricted stock.........ccovvverereenenen, Lereere e 45
Dituted earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations available
to common shareholders plus time-vest

stock aptions assumed exercised and '
1eStricted StOCK......vvvirererereriiresresrnrnerneeerverriseinres B 37,580 106,900 $ 35

Earnings Shares Per Share
(Numerator) {Denominator) Data

Year Ended October 31, 2005
Earnings from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of change in accounting
PIINCIPIE. .. ..comreerererervrnerreerrsessnsnsrmrcreresse e sasasasees 3 8,303
Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations before
cumnulative effect of change in accounting
principle available to common shareholders ......... 3 8,303 109,040 3 .08

Effect of dilutive securities:
Time-vest stock options assumed exercised
and restricted StocK.....cvcninnnie, 165
Diluted eamings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle available to common shareholders
plus time-vest stock options assumed
exercised and restricted Stock.........o.ccvereeniccininn. $ 8,303 109,205 3 .08

Options to purchase 392,212 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $6.33 to $7.31 per share were
antidilutive during the year ended October 31, 2007. For the year ended October 31, 2007, 540,000 market based
stock options and 360,000 market and performance based shares of restricted stock were not dilutive. For the year
ended October 31, 2007, a maximum of 25,000,000 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock related to the
senior convertible notes and a maximum of 20,000,000 shares of Class A common stock under the common stock
warrants associated with the June 2007 senior convertible debt transaction were also not dilutive, as the average
price of the Company’s stock for the year ended October 31, 2007 was less than the conversion price of the senior
convertible notes and strike price of the warrants.

Options to purchase 1,068,771 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $5.86 to $7.03 per share
were outstanding during the year ended October 31, 2006, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the exercise prices of the options were greater than the average market price of the
common shares.
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Options to purchase 1,117,002 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $6.90 to $7.03 per share
were outstanding during the year ended October 31, 2005, but were not included in the computation of diluted
eamings per share because the exercise prices of the options were greater than the average

common shares,

market price of the

The Company includes Class A and Class B common stock in its diluted shares calculation. As of October
31, 2007, the Company's Chairman, Frank B. Stewart, Ir., was the record holder of all of the Company's shares of
Class B common stock. The Company's Class A and B common stock are substantially identical, except that
holders of Class A common stock are entitled to one vote per share, and holders of Class B common stock are
entitled to ten votes per share. Each share of Class B common stock is automatically converted into one share of
Class A common stock upon transfer to persons other than certain affiliates of Frank B. Stewart, Jr.

an Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) is comprised of the following components:

Continuing Operations

U.S. and
Possessions State Totals
Year Ended October 31,
2007:
Current taxX EXPENSE ......cooveereereeuecarrmrerseseresesrmseessnens $ 10,582 § 3,180 § 13,762
Deferred tax expense .....cccamiiin, 1,725 2,612 4337
' $ 12,307 § 5792 % 18,099
2006:
Current tax eXPense .........ceevreeverreenesssisse e $ 1,68¢ § © 5083 % 6,733
Deferred tax eXpense .........ccccovveeeeeecnreneceseeeer e 14,247 . 174 14,421
$ 15927 § 5227 % 21,154
2005;
CUITENE tAX EXPEDSE ..evvveeeee e rereeeeeeisisie e saessssissees $ 1,548 § 1,930 § 3,478
Deferred tax expense (benefit).........cccoovvvrcvnrnnnn, 227 (727) (500)
$ 1,775 § 1,203 % 2,978
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Discontinned Operations

U.S. and
- Possessions State Totals
Year Ended October 31,
2007:
"CUITENE 13X EXPETISE «..eerececernenererieenecresesesiessariseresnsens $ 269 % 39 % 308
Deferred tax eXPEnse ...........ccovcveevercnrerenneesceianenens — — —
' ' $ 269 § 39 3 308
2006: '
Current tax expense (benefit)........ccocovvvvvvrccerccers, $ 51 8§ @ % 47
Deferred tax benefit...........cooevevirccnrnininincniinnnnn {126) (14) (140
$ (75) $ (18) % (93)
2005:
Current tax EXPENISE ... .coevreeeermrnieererasenrersessessmsesserens $ 2609 § 25 8 294
Deferred tax benefit...........ccoooceerecimniiinincnccnnnnnn (43) — (43)
3 226 § 25 3 251

The reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate is as follows for continuing O]Serations:

Year Ended October 31,
2007 2006 2005
SLALULOTY TAX FALE....covrrereeeere e tesseas s s sbasssssesnssas 35.00 % 35.00 % 35.00 %
Increases (reductions}) in tax rate resulting from: ‘ _
State INCOITIE TAX v veerermeererrvrvrsrarrisinsserrerirssassesnssesseses 3.68 467 . 7.09
U.S. possession INCOME taX.........ccovrveveemercrennenrnrenns (.79) 248 6.62
Nondeductible expenses and other........c.coeeiviennnen. .04 A3 6.12
Dividend exclusion .............occocoimniiirrrnrernne (3.13) (347) (21.41)
Basis adjustment on sale of businesses...................... — — (2.41)
Valuation allowance..........ccococooiniciiereeecnenene (327 86 — |
Work opportunity tax credit............oeeevveerreerrerenernnn. — (.20) (4.61) !
Settlement of federal tax audit......c..ocvevreenreceeerenenn, ‘ — (3.45) —
|
Effective tax 1ate. . .....ccoovvvnrcrinniiinnecsssssssssssrssensnsssenes 31.53 % 36.02 % 26.40 %
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:

October 31,
2007 2006
Deferred tax assets;
ACCIUET BXPENSES..cvcerviresrermrrsesentseresesrerssisesesssesisreesesesecren $ 5,297 5 6,204
Allowance for sales cancellations and doubtful accounts..... 6,638 6,242
Capital loss carryover O e reerer s srsearrnrpas s — 5,27
Deductible Texas taxes related to Texas audits ...........e...... — 704
Deferred prenced sales and eXpenses ........ooocrrnceeenens 213,463 206,974
Deferred compensation .........c.ccccovmirevenensessensenseneineeniennes 4,420 3,731
Inventory WItedOW...........cocoeeiiiiircineereceenen s 1,022 1,050
Original issue discount on purchased call options ................ 20,321 —
Lease obligations .......ocoveeeeiniirireseereinnrarer e arcscnesanesesens 675 631
Loss on worthless Stock ... — 4,546
Non-compete amOTHZAtioN. .........evrvrernerseercarenmecnsnerererasseseas 2,358 3,519
L1 1 7= ORI 1,173 683
Share-based COMPENSAION.......cereeviirieniieirieieeraeseieseeenrenes 1,095 573
State income taxes ... s .32,342 33,143
U.S. possession income tax ... 16,860 17,105
305,664 290,376
Valuation allowance ... (4,032) (10,457)
301,632 279,919
Deferred tax liabilities:
DIEPreCiBtioN......cevevevrcirriresereecireie e e seseesnesanssnesessesnsrarasnsas 2,854 1,857
Goodwill amOrtiZAtioN ........c.covevviiiiinieeciseccee e 27,617 23,114
Partnership interest........cccccciiiniiinensseicsnisiesineennnns 2,037 - 2,037
Purchase accounting adjustments..........cccourverreeernnninrnninns 67,644 68,426
100,152 95,434
b3 201,480 184,485
Current net deferred aSSEl..........ovveieecererierisereessessesrenssnsenes 9 8,621 10,502
Long-term net deferred asset ... 192,859 173,983
b 201,480 184,485

(1)

@)

This tax benefit of $5,271 as of October 31, 2006 is calculated on a gross capital loss carryover of $15,060, of
which $10,647 was available until the end of fiscal year 2007 and $4,413 was available until the end of fiscal
year 2009. As of October 31, 2006, a valuation allowance of $3,393 was recorded on the capital loss carryover
scheduled to expire in 2007. During fiscal year 2007, the Company utilized both the 2007 and 2009 capital
loss carryforwards resulting in a release of the valuation allowance.

A significant component of this balance is a gross state net operating loss carryover of approximately $176,238
(37,439 net of a federal tax benefit). This loss is not concentrated in any one state, but instead, is widespread
in states whose carryover period averages from 15 to 20 years. During fiscal year 2007, the Company adjusted
its previously recorded valuation allowance from $313 to $1,962 as it was determined that the net operating
loss carryforwards in two states were not likely to be utilized prior to their expiration due to additional
operating losses incurred in 2007. This change is the net effect of recording reductions to the reserve of $299
offset by additions to the reserve of 51,948,
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@ This U.S. possession is Puerto Rico. A significant component of this balance is a net operating loss carryover
of $8,165 ($2,070 net of a federal benefit). Puerto Rico's allowable carryforward period is 7 years from the
date incurred. In 2007, the Company reduced its previously recorded valuation allowance from $2,205 to
$2,070, which represents a full reserve on the operating loss carryover asset. This change is the net effect of
recording reductions to the reserve of $1,076 for utilizations of the net operating loss carryover at one entity
and additions to the reserve of $941 for additional operating losses incurred in 2007 for a separate entity. The
remaining deferred tax asset balance of $14,790 is for timing differences relating primarily to deferred preneed
sales and expenses for which no valuation allowance has been recorded as management believes it is more
likely than not that this asset will be realized in future periods.

) During fiscal year 2007, the Company reduced its valuation allowance from $10,457 to $4,032 which
represents a reduction of $3,393 attributable to its utilization of its capital loss carryover and a reduction of
$4,546 related to the write-off of both the deferred tax asset and related valuation allowance for a worthless
stock deduction for which recognition was determined to be remote in fiscal year 2007. These reductions were
offset by $1,514 of net increases to the reserve attributable to the net operating loss changes noted in items (2)
and (3) above. Finally, at the end of 2007, the entire balance of the valuation allowance of $4,032 is
attributable to the net operating loss carryforwards in certain states and Puerto Rico.

During fiscal year 2007, the Company recognized a combined non-recurring tax benefit of $4,180, of
which $787 is attributable to the completion of an audit by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for tax periods 1999
to 2001 (see further information below), and $3,393 is attributable to a reduced valuation allowance on its capital
loss carryover which was due to expire at the end of 2007. The Puerto Rico benefit represents a partial recovery of
the tax receivable reserve recorded in the third quarter of 2006, while the reduced valuation allowance was the result
of the Company's ability to generate sufficient capital gain income prior to the 2007 expiration date on the loss

CaIrryover.

During the year ended October 31, 2006, the Company resotved a significant number of tax related matters
and new matters arose that created a net impact on the tax provision of $973. This net impact to income tax expense
is included in income from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2006 and is further explained
below.

First, as a result of the completion of an Internal Revenue Service examination for the tax years ended
October 31, 2001 and 2002, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $2,028 (the cash was received in
October 2006). In August 2006, the Company learned that the Joint Committee review of the IRS’s examination of
the Company’s tax returns for those tax years had been completed. Resolution was reached on a number of issues,
including adjustments related o foreign source income and the calculation of the foreign tax credit, various tax
accounting methods and separate return limitation year net operating loss limitations.

Second, the Company’s valuation allowance on deferred tax assets was increased by $237 (a net tax
expense) which is the net result of reductions to the allowance of $1,558 offset by additions of $1,795. The
reduction of $1,558 was primanly attributable to removing the valuation allowance on the capital loss carryover
subject to expiration at the end of 2009 which the Company believed was more likely than not to be realized. The
additions to the atlowance included $1,378 on the Puerto Rico net operating loss, $313 on a portion of the state net
operating losses and $104 on the capital loss carryover subject to expiration at the end of 2007,

Third, a reserve of 32,550 was recorded on a tax receivable {a net tax expense of $1,657) due from the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which is under examination and is uncertain as to payment. This reserve relates to
requested refunds of approximately $2,550 related to tax years October 31, 1999 to 2001 applied for by various
subsidiaries operating in Puerto Rico. The tax authorities are currently examining the refund claims, and a field
agent has recently questioned approximately $62,662 in deductions taken by the Company’s Puerto Rican
subsidiaries in prior years which, if not defended successfully, could result in additional tax, interest and penalties of
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approximately $28,420. The Company has not recorded an additional reserve for any additional taxes, interest or
penalties. In December of 2006 the Company successfully secured a position letter from the Treasury Department
of Puerto Rico limiting the potential liability to the refund under review. Then in September of 2007 it reached a
settlement with the taxing authority which enabled it to record a partial recovery of $1,211 ($787 net of federal tax)
on the $2,550 (81,657 net of federal tax) that had been previously reserved.

Fourth, an additional tax expense of $906 was recorded as a result of prior years refund denials issued by
the State of Texas of $631 (3410 net of a federal tax benefit) coupled with tax assessments of $1,185 ($780 net of a
federal tax benefit) on subsequent tax years attributable to the same sourcing issue in the'dented refunds. Also with
regard to Texas, new legislation was passed enacting a new margins tax in place of the existing franchise tax which
resulted in a tax benefit of $437 ($284 net of a federal tax).

Fifth, an additional tax expense of $885 was recorded in relation to the write-off of a deferred tax asset
attributable to foreign tax credits which the Company now believes it cannot recognize based on its anticipated
downward trend in future net foreign source income.

deferred tax items at the operating entity level and miscellaneous adjustments to deferred taxes aﬁer filing its state
income tax returns for fiscal year 2005.

I
Finally, an additional net tax benefit of $684 was recorded in 2006 for tax rate adjustments to various state
To the extent the Company were to prevail in matters for which reserves have been established or be
required to pay amounts in excess of the aforementioned reserves, the Company's effective tax rate in a given

financial statement period may be impacted.

(18) Benefit Plans
Stewart Enterprises Emplayees " Retirement Trust

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan, the “Stewart Enterprises Employees’ Retirement
Trust (A Profit-Sharing Plan)” (“SEERT”). All regular employees are eligible to participate in this plan. New
employees are automatically enrolled in the plan at a three percent contribution rate after 60 days of employment,
unless they elect not to participate. Contributions are made to the plan at the discretion of the Company’s Board of
Directors. Additionally, employees who participate may contribute 100 percent of their earnings, up to the limit set
by the Internal Revenue Code. Employce contributions of up to five percent of earnings are eligible for Company
matching contributions at the rate of $.50 for each $1.00 contributed. The Company’s expense, including the
Company’s matching contributions, for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.was approximately
$3,138, $2,113 and $2,163, respectively. )

Stewart Enterprises Puerto Rico Employees’ Retirement Trust

On January 1, 2003, the Stewart Enterprises Puerto Rico Employees’ Retirement Trust, a defined
contribution retirement plan, became effective when the Company adopted the Banco Popular de Puerto Rico
Master Defined Contribution Retirement Plan. Employees in Puerto Rico who were formerly participating in the
Stewart Enterprises Employees’ Retirement Trust had their account balances transferred to this plan in February
2003.- Individuals employed in Puerto Rico by the Company or certain of its subsidiaries and affiliates are eligible
to participate in this plan. Eligible employees may contribute up to 10 percent of their eamnings, up to a maximum
annual contribution of $8. Employee contributions of up to five percent of earnings are eligible for Company
matching contributions at the rate of $0.50 for each $1.00 contributed. Additional contributions may also be made
to this plan at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors.. The Company’s expense, including the
Company’s matching contributions, for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $85, $95 and
$108, respectively. S
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Non-qualified Supplemental Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a non-qualifted key employee defined contribution supplemental retirement plan, which
provides certain highly compensated employees the opportunity to accumulate deferred compensation which cannot
be accumulated under the SEERT due to certain limitations. Contributions are made to the plan at the discretion of
the Company’s Board of Directors. Additionally, employees who participate may contribute up to 15 percent of
their earnings. The first 5 percent of such employee contributions are eligible for Company matching contributions
at the rate of $.50 for each $1.00 contributed. The Company’s expense, including the Company’s matching
contributions, for the fiscal years ended QOctober 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $318, $144 and $210,
respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

On April 1, 2002, the Company adopted an unfunded, non-qualified retirement plan, the “Stewart
Enterprises, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan™ (“SERP”), to provide for the payment of pension
benefits to a select group of highly-compensated management employees as approved by the Compensation
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. The retirement plan is non-contributory and provides retirement
benefits based on final average compensation, position and the participant’s age, years of service or years of
participation in the SERP. The Company’s expense for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$2,448, $2,100 and $1,877, respectively. The Company’s liability as of October 31, 2007 and 2006 was $9,699 and
$7,955, respectively.

Compensation Plans

In April 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (“Stock Plan™) and the
Company’s Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) at its annual shareholders’ meeting. The
Stock Plan replaces the Company’s 1995 Incentive Compensation Plan, 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and
2005 Directors’ Stock Plan. No future grants will be made through these prior plans, The Compensation
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors will administer the Stock Plan and has the authority to make
awards under the Stock Plan including setting the terms of the awards. A total of 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s
Class A common stock are authorized to be issued under the Stock Plan. Officers, directors and key employees will
be eligible to receive incentives under the Stock Plan when designated as a Stock Plan participant by the Committee.

The Incentive Plan was presented to the shareholders for approval in order to qualify the quantitative
portion of the annual incentive award as fully deductible performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code. The Incentive Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee of the
Company's Board of Directors, and it will apply to each of the five fiscal years during the period beginning
November 1, 2007 and ending October 31, 2012, unless terminated earlier by the Compensation Comumittee. Any
executive officer may be designated by the Compensation Committee as a participant in the Incentive Plan for any
year. No participant may be paid a bohus under the Incentive Plan of more than $1,500 for any fiscal year. The
Compensation Committee may determine to pay bonuses under the Incentive Plan in whole or in part in cash or
stock. Any such stock will be issued through the Company’s stock-based incentive plans.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Cn July 1, 1992, the Company adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan. This plan was terminated and
replaced by the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Employee Stock Plan™), which was approved by the
Company’s shareholders at its 2003 annual meeting. The Company authorized 1,000,000 shares for issuance under
the Employee Stock Plan. The Employee Stock Plan provides to eligible employees the opportunity to purchase the
Company’s Class A common stock on a quarterly basis. The purchase price is established at a 15 percent discount

" from fair market value, as defined in the Employee Stock Plan. As of October 31, 2007, 334,456 shares had been
acquired under this Plan.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Net earnings for the year ended October 31, 2007 includes $1,576 (31,069 after tax) of share-based
compensation costs compared to $1,203 ($803 after tax) for the same period in 2006, which are included in
corporate general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings. As of October 31, 2007,
there was $2,882 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested share-based compensation that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.82 years. The following table is a summary of the
Company’s stock options outstanding as of October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and the changes that occurred during
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

2007 2006 2005
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average . Shares Average
Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise
QOptions Prices Options Prices Options Prices
Qutstanding at beginning of year.. 1,441,294  § 6.15 1,468,734 % 6.62 3,521,393 % 5.26
Granted .........ocoverenrennirinneninnes 1,039,167 % 7.12 473,060 § 5.37 1,182,100 % 6.96
Exercised.... (411,511 § 6.40 (33,334) § 544  (2,982460) $ 5.16
Forfeited (168.221) § 6.63 (467,166) 8 6.89 (252,299) § 6.57
Outstanding at end of year ............ 1,900,729 § 6.58 1,441,294  § 6.15 1,468,734 % 6.62
Exercisable at end of year............. 471,353 $ 5.90 645665 § 6.10 233338 % 5.44
Weighted-average fair value of
options granted..........coconeirnens 3 2.84 $ 2.27 s 4.06
Year Ended October 31, 2007
Apggregate Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding as of October 31, 2007 ......occoveiiiinimnnrcnncnen § 4,73
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2007 ..., $ 1,496
Options exercised during 2007 ... e 5 539
Year Ended October 31, 2006
Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding as of October 31, 2006 .........ccovvmrirenves s 3 575
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2006 ... $ 282
Options exercised during 2006..........c.cocveereivnermvmire e s sbaseses b 13

The following table further describes the Company’s stock options outstanding as of October 31, 2007.

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Number Averagt Weighted Number Weighted Average
Range of Qutstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Average Remaining
Exercise Prices 10/31/2007 Contractual Life  Exercise Price 10/31/2007 Exercise Price  Contractual Life

$506-%586.... 569,912 5.51 years $ 3540 307,903 $ 536 5.67 years
$633-%£690..... 786,317 5.35 years $ 657 163,450 $ 690 4.14 years
$731-8737...... 184,500 6.53 years $ 737 — b —_ —
$ 806 360,000 6.42 years $ 8.06 — b - —
$ 5.06t0 $8.06..... 1,900,729 5.71 vears $ 6.58 471,353 $ 514 5.90 years
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Weighted Average
Year Ended Grant-Date
) October 31, 2007 Fair Value
Nonvested options as of November 1, 2006...................... Severerereerreens 795,629 $ 3.18
GIanted.......oceeererieerceieeccrercr e raseaneseesaresresseesaen s e s s sessesessanesanessentesnnesares 1,039,167 b 2.84
VESLEA ...t ettt ecst ettt e ree e sa s e e e st et b e abs s be et et esneesneen (237,199 $ 322
FOITEIEA .ot et en e e e se e e ees s nneanns (168,221) 3 3.63
Nonvested options as of October 31, 2007 ... 1,429,376 $ 2.87

The fair value of the Company’s service based stock options is the estimated present value at grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for fiscal years
‘ 2007, 2006 and 2005: expected dividend yield of 1.1 percent, 0.4 percent and zero percent; expected volatility of
47.7 percent, 53.2 percent and 43.3 percent; risk-free interest rate of 4.4 percent, 3.7 percent and 4.4 percent; and an
expected term of 7.0 years, 7.7 years and 4.3 years. [n 2007, the Company issued stock options with market
conditions based on reaching certain target stock prices in the years 2008, 2009 and 2010, The Company records
this expense over the requisite service period. The fair value of the Company’s market based stock options is the
estimated present value at the grant date using the Monte Carlo lattice model approach with the following weighted
average assumptions for fiscal year 2007: expected dividend yield of 1.3 percent; expected volatility of 39.9 percent,
risk-free interest rate of 4.5 percent; and an expected term of 3.5 years. The expected dividend yield is based on the
Company’s annual dividend payout at grant date. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s stock for a period approximating the expected life. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S,
treasury yield in effect at the time of grant and has a term equal to the expected life. The expected term of the

options represents the period of time the options are expected to be outstanding.

Likewise, the fair value of shares acquired through the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is estimated
quarterly using the Black-Scholes eption pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for fiscal
years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively: expected dividend yield of 1.5 percent, 1.4 percent and 0.4 percent;
expected volatility of 42.5 percent, 44.6 percent and 54.9 percent; risk-free interest rate of 5.0 percent, 4.3 percent
and 2.6 percent; and an expected term of .3 years, .5 years and .5 years.

Restricted Stock

The expense related to restricted stock granted in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 is reflected in earnings
and amounted to $447, $484 and $742, respectively. Once granted, the restricied stock is included in total shares
outstanding but is not included in the weighted average number of common shares outstanding in each period used
to calculate basic earnings per common share until the shares vest. The table below is a summary of the Company’s
restricted stock activity for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

(In shares) - 2007 2006 2005

Nonvested restricted stock at beginning of year .................. 97,398 190,866 160,334
GIANLEA ... et e e st et sa e 565,000 31,998 166,500
VESIEA .....ooveeetirreereerirrerrevnvnrsesie et sr st e e vnassnestnseesnsesnssnses (29,801) (125,466) (125,335)
Farfetted. ... s {25,650) — {10,633)
Nonvested restricted stock at end of year ... 606,947 97,398 190,866

M On January 8, 2007, the Company granted 52,500 shares of restricted stock to a group of executive officers of
which vests in equal 25 percent portions on January 8, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011. On March 31, 2007, the
Company granted 340,000 shares of restricted stock to an executive officer consisting of 100,000 shares
cenditional on service, 120,000 shares conditional on certain performance criteria and 120,000 shares
conditional on certain market criteria. On May 16, 2007, the Company granted 170,000 shares of restricted
stock to an executive officer consisting of 50,000 shares conditional on service, 60,000 shares conditional on
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certain performance criteria and 60,000 shares conditional on certain market criteria. The restricted shares
based on service conditions vest in equal one-third portions on the anniversary date of the respective grant
dates. The performance conditions are based on meeting certain return on equity targets in each of the years
2008, 2009 and 2010. The Company assesses the probability of achieving these targets each reporting period in
determining the requisite service period in which to record compensation expense. The market conditions are
based on reaching certain target stock prices in the years 2008, 2009 and 2010. The Company records the
expense over the requisite service period. On September 17, 2007, the Company granted 2,500 shares of
restricted stock to an executive officer of which 34 percent vest on September 17, 2008, 33 percent vest on
September 17, 2009 and 33 percent vest on September 17, 2010.

@ On May 11, 2006, the Company granted 31,998 shares of restricted stock to certain executive officers, which

vest in equal 25 percent portions on May t1, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010.
& On November 18, 2004, the Company granted 72,000 shares of restricted stock to an executive officer which
became fully vested on June 30, 2006, On December 20, 2004, the Company granted 58,000 shares of
restricted stock to executive officers, which vests 25 percent on December 20, 2005, 25 percent on December
20, 2006 and 50 percent on December 20, 2007. On December 20, 2004, the Company also granted 36,500
shares of restricted stock to executive officers, which vest in equal 25 percent portions on December 20, 2005,
2006, 2007 and 2008.

Other

On February 28, 2007, the Company issued a total of 84,000 shares of Class A common stock to the
independent directors of the Company. The expense related to this stock amounted to $664 and was recorded during
the second quarter of 2007. Each independent director must hold at least 75 percent of the shares received by him
until he no longer serves as a member of the Board of Directors.

On May 12, 2006, the Company granted 27,759 shares of Class A common stock to executive officers as
part of their fiscal year 2005 bonus. The expense related to these shares was reflected in carnings in fiscal year 2005
and amounted to $247. :

(19) Commitments, Contingencies and Related Party Transactions
Litigation

Henrietta Torres and Teresa Fiore, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated and the
General Public v. Stewart Enterprises, Inc., et al.; No. BC328961, on the docket of the Superior Court for the State
of California for the County of Los Angeles, Central District. This purported ¢lass action was filed on February 17,
2005 on behalf of a pationwide class defined to include all persons who purchased funeral goods and/or services in
the United States from defendants at any time on or after February 17, 2001. The suit named the Company and
several of its Southern California affiliates as defendants and also sought to assert claims against a class of all
entities located anywhere in the United States whose ultimate parent corporation has been the Company at any time
on or after February 17, 2001,

In May 20035, the court ruled that this case was related to similar actions against Service Corporation
International (“SCI”) and Alderwoods Group, Inc., and designated the SCI case as the lead case. The case against
the Company effectively has been held in abeyance while the court tests plaintifi’s legal theories in the lead case.
Rulings on legal issues in the lead case will apply equally in the case against the Company, and the court has
allowed the Company to participate in hearings and briefings in the lead case.
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As a result of dernurrers, the plaintiff in the lead case amended her case twice. On January 31, 2006,
however, the court overruled SCI’s demurrer to the third amended complaint and established a schedule leading to a
hearing on a motion for summary judgment to test the viability of the named plaintiff’s claim against SCI. The third
amended complaint in the lead case alleges that the SCI defendants violated the “Funeral Rule” promulgated by the
Federal Trade Commission by failing to disclose that the prices charged to the plaintiffs for certain goods and
services the SCl defendants obtained from third parties specifically on the plaintiff’s behalf exceeded what the
defendants paid for them. The plaintiff alleges that by failing to comply with the Funeral Rule, defendants (i)
breached contracts with the plaintiffs, (ii} were unjustly enriched, and (iii) engaged in unfair, unlawful and
fraudulent business practices in violation of a provision of Califomia’s Business and Professions Code. The piaintiff
seeks restitution damages, disgorgement, interest, costs and attorneys’ fees.

In September and October 2006, the court granted the motion for summary judgment filed by the SCI
affiliate with whom the plaintiff had contracted and entered a judgment of dismissal in favor of that SCI affiliate. On
December 8, 2006, the plaintiff noticed an appeal of this judgment.

Because the matter is being appealed, the likelihood of liability and the extent of any damages cannot be
reasonably assessed at this time. The Company intends to aggressively defend itself in this matter. The Company
has not recorded a liability related to this litigation given that it does not believe that a loss is probable and
estimatable.

Funeral Consumers Alliance, Inc., et al. v. Service Corporation International, Alderwoods Group, Inc.,
Stewart Enterprises, Inc., Hillenbrand Industries, Inc., and Batesville Casket Co., number H-05-3394 on the docket
of the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas. This purported class action was originally
filed on May 2, 2005, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, on behalf of a
nationwide class defined to include all consumers who purchased a Batesville casket from the funeral home
defendants at any time. The court consolidated it with five subsequently filed, substantially similar cases (the
“Consolidated Consumer (Cases™).

The Consolidated Consumer Cases allege that the defendants acted jointly to reduce competition from
independent casket discounters and fix and maintain prices on caskets in violation of the federal antitrust !aws and
California’s Business and Professions Code. The plaintiffs seek treble damages, restitution, injunctive relief,
interest, costs and attomeys’ fees.

At the defendants’ request, in late September 2003, the court transferred the Consolidated Consumer Cases
to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas. The transferred Consolidated Consumer Cases
have been consolidated before a single judge in the Southern District of Texas.

On November 10, 2006, after the court denied Defendants® motions to dismiss, the Company answered the
first amended consolidated class action complaint, denying liability and asserting various affirmative defenses. The
court conducted a hearing on plaintiffs’ motion for class certification on December 4-7, 2006 and has taken the
motion under advisement. Fact discovery has been completed, and expert discovery is ongoing.

In April 2007, the plaintiffs filed an expert report indicating that the damages sought from all defendants
would be in the range of approximately $950 million to approximately $1.5 billion, before trebling. A successful
plaintiff in an anti-trust case may elect to enforce any judgment against any or all of the co-defendants, who have no
right of contribution against one another. Accordingly, any adverse judgment could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses
to the substantive allegations asserted, to class certification, and to the plaintiffs’ damage theories and calculations,
and the Company intends to aggressively defend itself in these proceedings. The Company has not recorded a
liability related to this litigation given that it does not believe that a loss is probable and estimatable.
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Pioneer Valley Casket Co., Inc., et al. v. Service Corporation International, Alderwoods Group, Inc.,
Stewart Enterprises, Inc., Hillenbrand Industries, Inc., and Batesville Casket Co., number H-05-3399 (“Pioneer
Valley Case™). This purported class action was filed on July 8, 2005, in the Northern District of California on behalf
of a nationwide class of independent casket retailers. The casket retailers make allegations similar to those made in
the Consolidated Consumer Cases reported above and seek treble damages, injunctive relief, interest, costs and
attorneys’ fees.

Likle the Consolidated Consumer Cases, in late September 2005, this matter was transferred to the United
States District Court for the Southern District of Texas. The Pioneer Valley Case has been consolidated with the
Consolidated Consumer Cases for purposes of discovery only.

On November 14, 2006, after the court denied Defendants’ motions to dismiss, the Company answered the
first amended complaint, denying liability and asserting various defenses. The court conducted a hearing on
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification on December 8, 2006 and has taken the motion under advisement. Fact
discovery has been completed, and expert discovery is ongoing. In April 2007, the plaintiffs filed an expert report
indicating that the damages sought from all defendants would be approximately $99.0 million, before trebling. A
successful plaintiff in an anti-trust case may elect to enforce any judgment against any or all of the co-defendants,
who have no right of contribution against one another. Accordingly, -any adverse judgment could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. The Company believes it has
meritorious defenses to the substantive allegations asserted, to class certification, and to the plaintiffs’ damage
theories and calculations, and the Company intends to aggressively defend itself in these proceedings. The
Company has not recorded a liability related to this litigation given that it does not believe that a loss is probable and
estimatable. ' : .

In Re: State Attorney General Civil Investigative Demands - On August 4, 2005, the Attorney General for
the State of Maryland issued a civil investigative demand to the Company seeking documents and information
relating to funeral and cemetery goods and services. Subsequently, the Attorneys General for the States of Florida
and Connecticut issued a similar civil investigative demand to the Company. The Company has entered into
arrangements allowing the Maryland and Florida Attorneys General to share in information provided by the
Company with the attorneys general of certain other states. The Company is cooperating with the attorneys general
and has provided information relevant to their investigations. Because these matters are in their preliminary stages,
the likelihood of liability and the extent of any damages cannot be reasonably assessed at this time. The Company
intends to aggressively defend itself in these matters.

Other Litigation

The Company is a defendant in a variety of other litigation matters that have arisen in the ordinary course
of business, which are covered by insurance or otherwise not considered to be material. The Company carries
insurance with coverages and coverage limits that it believes to be adequate.

See Note 17 for a discussion of tax related contingencies.
Securities and Exchange Commission Investigation

In November 2006, the Company received a subpoena from the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC™), issued pursuant to a formal order of investigation, seeking documents and information related to the
Company’s previously disclosed and completed deferred revenue project. In response to both the initial and
subsequent related subpoenas, the Company has provided to the SEC documents and other information related to the
deferred revenue project. The SEC has informed the Company that this is a fact-finding inquiry to determine
whether there have been any violations of the federal securities laws. The SEC has also informed the Company that
the investigation and subpoenas do not mean that the SEC has concluded that the Company, or anyone else, has
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violated any law or that the SEC has a negative opinion of any person, entity or security. The Company is
cooperating fully with the investigation and continues to provide documents and other information as requested by
the SEC.

Leases |

The Company has noncancellable operating leases, primarily for land and buildings that expire over the
‘next 1 to 15 years, except for six leases that expire between 2032 and 2039. Rent payments under these leases were
$4,478, $4,58R and $4,997 for the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, The Company’s
future minimum lease payments as of October 31, 2007 are $4,284, $3,876, $3,103, $2,079, $1,575 and $16,863 for
the years ending October 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and later years, respectively.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has entered into non-compete agreements with prior owners of acquired subsidiaries that
expire through 2012. During fiscal year 2001, the Company decided to relieve some of the prior owners and key
employees of their obligations not to compete; however, the payments will continue to be made in accordance with
the contract terms. Non-coinpete agreements are included in the “other assets™ line in the consolidated balance sheet
and amounted to $7,086 and $7,683 as of October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company’s future non-
compete payments as of October 31, 2007 .are $1,209, $328, $242, $242 and $68 for the years ending October 31,
2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

The Company is required to maintain a bond (330,838 as of October 31, 2007) to guarantee its obligations
relating to funds the Company withdrew in fiscal year 2001 from its preneed funeral trusts in Florida. This amount
would become senior debt if the Company was to borrow funds under the revolving credit facility to extinguish the
bond obligation by returning to the trusts the amounts it previously withdrew that relate to the remaining preneed
contracts.

Related Party Transactions

In November 2006, the Company announced the retirement of Everett N. Kendrick, Executive Vice
President, Chief Operating Officer and President — Sales and Marketing Division, effective December 31, 2006. As
part of Mr. Kendrick’s separation agreement, the Company must pay Mr. Kendrick $350 in equal bi-weekly
installments over a two-year period commencing six months after his retirement date. The Company recorded the
$350 charge in the first quarter of fiscal year 2007 but will make the payments in accordance with the agreement.

In June 2006, the Company announced the retirement of Kenneth C. Budde, President and Chief Executive
Officer, effective June 30, 2006. As part of Mr. Budde’s separation agreement, the Company is paying Mr. Budde
an amount equal to one year of salary, or $550, in equal instailments over a two-year period beginning in Jantary
2007. The Company reconied the 3550 charge in the th]rd quarter of fiscal year 2006 but will make payments in
accordance with the agreement.

In July 2005, the Company announced the retirement of Michael K. Crane, Sr., Senior Vice President and
President of the Central Division, effective October 31, 2005. As part of his separation agreement, he is entitled to
receive $300 in equal installments over a two year peried beginning in May 2006. The Company recorded the $300
charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005 but will make the payments in accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

In January 1998, the Company discontinued an insurance policy on the life of Mr. Frank B. Stewart, Jr.,

Chairman of the Company. In order to purchase a replacement policy, The Stewart Family Special Trust bm'rowed
$685 from the Company pursuant to a promissory note due 180 days after the death of Mr. Stewart. Interest on the
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(19) Commitments, Contingencies and Related Party Transactions—(Continued)

note accrues annually at a rate equal to the Company’s cost of borrowing under its revolving credit facility and is
payable when the principal becomes due. The amount of the loan was equal to the cash value received by the
Company upon the discontinuance of the prior insurance policy. The loan proceeds were used by the trust to
purchase a singte premium policy on the life of Mr. Stewart. Certain of the beneficiaries of The Stewart Family
Special Trust are members of Mr. Stewart’s family. The loan was approved by all of the disinterested members of
the Board of Directors. The outstanding balance of the loan at October 31, 2007, including accrued interest, was
approximately $1,197. '

The father of G. Kenneth Stephens, Jr.,, Executive Vice President and President of the Company’s Western
Division, has an 81 percent ownership interest in Cemetery Funeral Supply, Inc., a vendor of the Company. For the
years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, the Company paid Cemetery Funeral Supply, Inc. $186, $329 and
$226, respectively.

(20) Segment Data

Effective for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company reorganized its operating divisions from
four to two and revised its operating and reportable segments. The Company’s presentation reflects five operating
and reportable segments consisting of a corporate trust management segment and a funeral and cemetery segment
for each of two geographic areas: Westemn and Eastern.

As of October 31, 2007, the Company operated two geographic divisions each with a division president:
Western division and Eastern division. The Western division consists of 115 funeral homes and 47 cemeteries in
Alabama, Arkansas, California, Illinois, Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Nebraska, Oregon, Texas,
Washington and Wisconsin. The Eastern division consists of 106 funeral homes and 92 cemeteries in Alabama,
Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Maryland, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia,
West Virginia and Puerto Rico.

The corporate trust management segment includes (1) the funeral and cemetery service and merchandise
trust earnings recognized for GAAP purposes, which are further described below, and (2) fee income related to the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Investors Trust, Inc. (“ITL.”). Trust assets and the eamings on those assets are
associated exclusively with preneed sales. Because preneed services and merchandise will not be provided until an
unknown future date, most states require that all or a portion of the customer payments under preneed contracts be
placed in trust or escrow accounts for the benefit of the customers.

ITI serves as investment advisor exclusively to the Company’s trust funds., ITI provides investment
advisory services to the trusts for a fee. The Company has elected to perform these services in-house, and the fees
are recognized as income as earned.

The corporate trust management segment revenues reflect (1) investment management fees earned and (2)
the realized earnings related to preneed contracts delivered. Earnings recognition in this segment is unrelated to
investment results in the current period. Current investment results of the funeral and cemetery merchandise and
service trusts are deferred until the underlying preducts and services are delivered and are not reflected in the
statement of earnings but are disclosed in Notes 4, 5, and 7 along with the cost and market value of the trust assets.
The Company’s fee income related to management of its trust assets, the investment income recognized on preneed
contracts delivered and the trust assets are referred to as “corporate trust management” for the benefit of the
divisions.

Perpetual care trust earnings are reported in the geographic segments, as these revenues are recognized

currently and are used to maintain the cemeteries. Perpetual care trust eamnings and the cost and market values of
the perpetual care trust assets are presented in Note 6.
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{20) Segment Data—(Continued)

The accounting policies of the Company’s segments are the same as those described in Note 2. The
Company evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources to them using a variety of profitability
metrics. The most comprehensive of these measures is gross profit.

The Company also measures its preneed sales growth year-over-year. Preneed sales and the accounting for
these sales are discussed in Notes 2(i), 2(j) and 2(k). Although the Company does not consider its preneed selling
activities to be a separate segment, the Company is providing additional disclosure of preneed funeral and cemetery
merchandise and service sales in its segment footnote as preneed sales are reviewed monthly by the Company’s
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM™)} to assess performance and allocate resources. Preneed sales are
strategically significant to the Company as those sales are one of the primary drivers of market share protection and
growth. As such, the CODM reviews the preneed sales data in addition to revenue and gross profit. Information on
segment assets is not disclosed as it is not reviewed by the CODM.

The Company’s operations are product-based and geographically-based. As such, the Company’s primary
reportable segments presented in the following table are based on products and services and their geographical
orientation.

The Company’s funeral homes offer a complete range of funeral services and products both at the time of
need and on a preneed basis. The Company’s services and products include family consultation, removal and
preparation of remains, the use of funeral home facilities for visitation, worship and funeral services, transportation
services, flowers and caskets. In addition to traditional funeral services, all of the Company’s funeral homes offer
cremation products and services. The Company’s cemetery operations involve the sale of cemetery property and
retated merchandise, including lots, lawn crypts, family and community mausoleums, monuments, memorials and
burial vaults, along with the sale of burial site openings and closings and inscriptions. Cemetery property and
merchandise sales are made both at the time of need and on a preneed basis.

The Company incurs certain costs at the divisional or regional level that benefit all of the funeral homes
and cemeteries in the division or region, such as division management compensation, divisional and regional
headquarters overhead, insurance costs and legal and professional fees. These costs are allocated to the facilities in
the regions or divisions using various methods including their proportionate share of sales (which can include
preneed sales) or payroll. These costs are included in funeral and cemetery costs.

The Company incurs certain other costs at its Shared Services Center that benefit all of the funeral homes
and cemeteries, such as the costs to process contracts, make collections, pay vendors, deliver information system
services and deliver human rescurce services. These costs are allocated to the divisions and further allocated to the
facilities in the division using various methods including their proportionate share of sales (which can include
preneed sales) and the number of employees. These costs are included in funeral and cemetery costs.

For a discussion of discontinued operations, see Note 12. The table below presents information about
reported segments for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 for the Company’s continuing
operations only based on the Company’s reportable segments.

Funeral Revenue Cemetery Revenue Total Revenue
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Eastern Division....... $ 117,164 $ 116,283 $ 113,012 § 143,233 - § 136,807 $ 127,436 $ 260,397 $ 253,090 $ 240,448
Western Division...... 143,771 146,094 138,817 90,354 87,829 79,566 234,125 233,923 218,383
Corporate Trust
Menagement @ ..... 18,395 17,860 18,884 9,900 9,357 1,194 | 28,205 27,217 30,078
Total......cccoeevrereen. $ 279,330 $ 280,237 $ 270,713 $ 243,487 $ 233,993 $ 218,196 $ 522,817 $ 514,230 $ 488 909
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Total Gross Profit

Funeral Gross Profit Cemetery Gross Profit
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Eastern Division...... $ 17,846 § 18387 § 18493 20993 § 24030 $ 15687 § 38839 $ 42417 $ 34,180
Western Division...... 27,442 29,495 24,329 19,204 16,522 13,862 46,646 46,017 38,191
Corporate Trust
Management @ ... 17,667 17,313 18,368 9,278 8,866 10,740 26,945 26,179 29,108
Total......c.ocorrns S § 62,955 $ 61,190 49475 %8 49418 § 40,289 § 114613  $10L,479

$ 65,195

Net Preneed Funeral
Merchandise and Service Sales ®

Net Prenced Cemetery
Merchandise and Service Sales &

$ 112,430

Net Total Preneed
Merchandise and Service Sales ¥

207 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Eastern Division......§ 44,837  § 47288 § 42,904 33939 § 42,123 0§ 42360 % 83776 § 89411 3 85264
Western Division...... 57,792 56,470 48,523 16,797 17,720 16,521 74,589 74,190 65,044
Total.....ocrnirnreneen 3 102,629 $103,758 § 91,427 55736 § 59843 § 58881 $158365 5 163601 % 150,308

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and Amortization

Funeral Cemetery Total
. 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 . 2007 2006 2005
Eastern Division....... $ 6720 3§ 7615 $ 759 4418 § 3340 § 3381 $ 1L138  $ 10955 % ildél
Western Division...... 6,782 6,702 7,011 2572 2,504 2,590 9,354 9206 9,601
Reconciling Items . 7,146 5,505 4,647
Total...oeceeicnres $ 27638 § 25666 § 25709

Additions to Long-Lived Assets

Additions to Long-Lived Assets

Additions to Ldng-Livcd Assets

Funeral @ Cemetery & Tots! * -
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Eastern Division....... § 534 % 3740 $ 589 11,882 § 8602 § 58968 $ 1718 § 12342 § 14864
Western Division...... 14,070 11,285 6,354 10,538 10,526 5,831 24,608 21,811 12,185
Reconciling Items ¥, 7,703 5,329 6,428
$

49497 5 10482 § 33477

Funeral Goodwill Cemetery Goodwill " Total Goodwill
2007 2007 2006 2007 2006
Eastem Division.......ccccocovvvvveeee. 3 91,09t § - 89147 § 25952 § 125952 § 117,043  § 115,099
Western Division.... 107,522 107,522 48,721 48,721 156,243 156,243
Total ..o, 198,613 § 196,669 § 74,673 § 74,673 3 273,286 § 271,342

Aassets held for Sale-Funeral

Assets held for Sale-Cemetery

Assets held for Sale-Total

2007 2007 2006 2007 2006
Eastern Division.......ccccocvceeinrne. § — S 2,118 ¢ — 3 905 § — 8 3,13
Western Division.... — 7,545 — 2,956 — 10,501
TOtal......oeeccerecersrersrerenes. —] 9,663 § — 3 3951 § — 13,614

) Perpetual care trust earnings of $10,164, $10,079 and $8,106 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
are included in the revenue and gross profit data of the related geographic segment.

@ Corporate trust management consists of the trust management fees and funeral and cemetery merchandise and
service trust earnings recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered during the period. Trust
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(20) Segment Data—(Continued)

management fees are established by the Company at rates consistent with industry norms and are paid by the

" trusts to the Company’s subsidiary, Investor’s Trust, Inc. The trust earnings represent earnings realized over the
life of the preneed contracts delivered during the relevant pertods. Trust management fees included in funeral
revenue for 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $5,881, $5,528 and $5,383, respectively, and funeral trust earnings
recognized with respect to preneed contracts delivered included in funeral revenue for 2007, 2006 and 2005
were $12,514, $12,332 and $13,501, respectively. Trust management fees included in cemetery revenue for
2007, 2006 and 2005 were $5,343, $4,894 and $4,945, respectively, and cemetery trust earnings recognized
with respect to preneed contracts delivered included in cemetery revenue for 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $4,557,
$4.463 and 36,249, respectively.

@ Preneed sales ‘amounts represent total preneed funcral trust and insurance sales and cemetery service and
merchandise trust sales generated in the applicable period, net of cancellations.

"~ Reconciling items consist of unallocated corporate assets, depreciation and amortization on unallocated
corporate assets and additions to corporate long-lived assets.

) Long-lived assets include cemetery property and net property and equipment.

A reconciliation of total segment gross profit to total earnings from continuing operations before income
taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, is as follows: ' ) '

Year Ended October 31,
2007 2006 . 2005
Gross profit for reportable segments..............oocennen. $ 112,430 $ 114,613 $ 101,479
. Corporate general and administrative expenses......... (31,143) (31,739) (19,440)

Hurricane related recoveries (charges), net................ ; 2,533) - 1,628 (9,366)
Separation charges.........ccocvvicnnninn (580) (991) (1,507)
Gains on dispositions and impairment (losses), net... (44) ‘ (153) 1,311
Other operating inCOME, Net...........ccveerecervenrererereraens 1,651 ‘ 1,333 1,373
Interest EXPense .......ocvevercrmisimininesinsese e (25,065) (29,633) (30,460)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ..........c...ccc.. (677) — (32,822)
Investment and other income, net.........oo..ooveiiiiiiiinns 3,374 3,676 713
Eamnings from continuing operations before income :

taxes and cumulative effect of change in .

accounting principle .....o.ooveo e innsesseresenennas 3 57413 % 58,734 § 11,281

(21)  Supplementary Information

The detail of certain income statement accounts is as follows for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005. : ' ‘
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Year Ended October 31,

2007 2006 2005
Service revenue
FUneral ....cococevveiniieercerene s aesensseresnns $ 169,680 § 165418 % 153,920
COMELETY ..eeivreerernremrnenees s sesntn e esassanis 60,002 62,436 58,130
229,682 227,854 212,050
Merchandise revenue
FUNEral oottt esr et st ers 101,232 106,718 108,330
CRIMELELY ......oocvereiesiaesisses s sesaessessssasstessstessnss 166,772 155,406 144,567
' 268,004 262,124 253,397
- Other revenue
Funeral .........coovviin e 8,418 8,101 - 7,963
CRMBLETY 1vvveereeeer e s e e sarnans 16,713 16,151 15,499
25,131 24,252 23,462
TOtAl TEVENUE ...vvveeviitetiee et st srsabessssbanes $ - 522817 § 514230 $ 488,909
Service costs
| STT V1= | PRSP PPOO $ 59,540 % 56,434  § 50,989
CRMELEIY 1vovreecirereri e s seiesaeese e see e e rmse e 40,649 42,170 40,641
100,189 98,604 91,630
Merchandise costs
Funeral .........cccovvemmnnnmrmminnsensismeemessnserssrnns 63,187 64,728 66,356
CemMELEIY .o 97,904 90,527 86,523
. 161,091 155,255 152,879
General and administrative expenses
Funeral ..........ccccovevivnrerenninireniercerenssnenisrnessnns e 93,648 93,880 92,178
COMELETY ....voveeceerenmrreee e s s te e sees e sesssssasesasenes 55,459 51,878 50,743
149,107 145,758 142,921

TOLAl COSB...uiereiirriiiricrriseesreeiirnssressrnesresares st eeneesnesaes $ 410,387 § 399617 % 387,430

Service revenue includes funeral service revenue, funeral trust earnings, insurance commission revenue,
burial site openings and closings and perpetval care trust eamings. Merchandise revenue includes funeral
merchandise, flower sales, cemetery property sales revenue, cemetery merchandise delivery revenue and
merchandise trust earnings. Other revenue consists of finance charge revenue and trust management fees. Service
costs include the direct costs associated with service revenue and preneed selling costs associated with preneed
service sales. Merchandise costs include the direct costs associated with merchandise revenue and preneed selling
costs associated with preneed merchandise sales. '

(22) Hurricane Related Charges

The Company has insurance coverage related to property damage, incremental costs and property operating
expenses it incurred due to damage caused by Hurricane Katrina. The insurance pelicies also provide coverage for
interruption to the business, including lost profits, and reimbursement for other expenses and costs incurred relating
to the damages and losses suffered. As of October 31, 2007, the Company had incurred approximately $33,758 (of
which $20,897 was incurred in fiscal year 2005 and $10,328 was incurred in fiscal year 2006) in total expenses
related to Hurricane Katrina including the write-off of damaged buildings, equipment and inventory, demolition
costs, debris removal, record restoration, general cleanup, temporary living facilities for employees, relocation
expenses and other costs. The Company is expensing non-capitalizable costs related to Hurricane Katrina as
incurred. For the year ended October 31, 2007, the Company recorded hurricane related charges of $2,533
compared to a $1,628 recovery for the year ended October 31, 2006. As of October 31, 2007, the Company has
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recorded insurance proceeds from Hurricane Katrina of $23,562 and business interruption proceeds of $3,169 for a
total of $26,731. Of this amount, $11,531 was recorded in fiscal year 2005 and $15,200 was recorded in fiscal year
2006. No additional insurance proceeds were recorded in fiscal year 2007,

Some of the insurance proceeds were recorded as receivables and were collected in a subsequent period.
As of October 31, 2006, the Company had received $16,731 in insurance proceeds and received an additional
$10,000 in insurance proceeds, including $3,169 in business interruption insurance proceeds, in fiscal year 2007.

For the year ended October 31, 2006, the Company recorded $3,169 in business interruption insurance
proceeds based on information received from the Company’s insurance carrier. The Company has reflected $2,829
and $340 of the business interruption insurance in the funeral and cemetery revenue line items, respectively, in the
consolidated statements of earnings for the year ended October 31, 2006 and in current receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet as of QOctober 31, 2006.

The Company has been unable to finalize its negotiations with its insurance carriers related to property
damage and extra expenses, and business interruption damages, related to Hurricane Katrina, and filed suit against
the carriers in August 2007. In addition to the insurance proceeds received and recorded by the Company as
described above, the carriers have advanced an additional $1,100, which the Company has not recorded as income
but as a liability pending the outcome of the litigation, The suit involves numerous significant policy interpretation
disputes, among other issues, and no assurance can be given as to how much additional proceeds the Company may
recover from its insurers, if any, or the timing of the receipt of any additional proceeds.

23 Subsequent Events

On December 20, 2007, the Company announced a $25,000 increase in its current stock repurchase
program.

(24) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The quarterly financial data in the table below has been reclassified to reflect the results of certain
businesses previously reported as continuing operations to discontinued operations.

First Second Third Fourth
Year Ended October 31, 2007
REVENUES ...ce et ececes e 8 131,847 § 137,032 § 127,578 % 126,360
Gross profit......ccoiic 30,998 32,782 26,505 22,145
NEt GAITIHNES ...vcveereeirrecreererceeereneessesssresss e 11,926 13,629 8,123 6,135
Net earnings per common share: .
BaSiC...ccccorvnierrrreerrirneinisseecnesneaneranes A1 13 .08 .06
Diluted ....coeeeireeereerernesrrceerr e 11 13 .08 .06
) First Second Third Fourth
Year Ended October 31, 2006
REVENUES .....ovvevereerrnrvrnrsrrerennsees Srvererarernresens 3 125,220 $ 130,084 § 128,613 $ 130,313
Gross Profit........cccvecervcvrrerervvvnrscsrernersrerennenes 29,058 31,965 25,514 . 28,076 -
Net @AMMINES.......crvreeccrererrererrrerremesvacarecsesrnnns 8,389 11,447 7,334 10,423
Net earnings per common share: .
Basic.....c.coovirerenann et e .08 1 _ 07 10
Diluted .......covreecrermrncrrerrenn e reeseserereenrns .08 1 07 .10

M First quarter of fiscal year 2007 includes a charge of $1,850 in net hurricane related costs, $485 in separation
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pay for a former executive officer and $98 in net gains on dispositions and impairment (losses) in continuing
operations. Second quarter of fiscal year 2007 includes a charge of $283 related to net hurricane related costs
and $47 in separation charges. Third quarter of fiscal year 2007 includes a charge of $210 related to net
hurricane related costs, ($46) in net gains on dispositions and impairment (losses) in continuing operations, $48
in separation charges and $677 for the loss on early extinguishment of debt. Fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007
includes a charge of $190 related to net hurricane related costs and ($88) in net gains on dispositions and
impairment (losses) in continuing operations.

First quarter of fiscal year 2006 includes a charge of $2,638 in net hurricane related costs and $154 in separation
pay for a former executive officer. Second quarter of fiscal year 2006 includes a recovery of $558 related to net
hurricane related costs, $159 in net gains on dispositions and impairment (losses) in continuing operations and
$122 in separation pay for a former executive officer. Third quarter of fiscal year 2006 includes a recovery of
$1,072 related to net hurricane related costs and $680 in separation pay for a former executive officer. Fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2006 includes a recovery of $2,636 related to net hurricane related costs and ($306) in net
gains on dispositions and impairment (losses) in continuing operations. Third and fourth quarters of fiscal year
2006 also contain out of period adjustments as described in Note 2(v).

Changes in the number of deaths can vary among local markets and from quarter to quarter, and variations

in the number of deaths in the Company’s markets or from quarter to quarter are not predictable. However,
generally the number of deaths fluctuates with the seasons with more deaths occurring during the winter months
primarily resulting from pneumonia and influenza. These variations can cause revenues to fluctuate,
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s (“SEC”) rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Disclosure Committee and management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b). Based upon this evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The
Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies
and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal! control over financial reporting as of
October 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria described in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSQ). Based on this assessment, management concluded that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of October 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal contro! over financial reporting as of October 31, 2007 has
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their
report which appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2007, the Company completed the implementation of its Oracle financial
software system. In connection with this implementation, the Company has improved its internal controls over
financial reporting by increasing its reliance on automated controls.

With the exception of the Oracle implementation described above, there have been no changes in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal year that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting,
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Item 9B. Other Information

On December 19, 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors awarded
performance based stock options and performance based restricted stock to G. Kenneth Stephens, Jr., Executive
Vice President and President — Western Division and Brent F. Heffron, Executive Vice President and President —
Eastern Division. These awards to Messrs. Stephens and Heffron, named executive officers in the Company 52007
Proxy Statement, are required to be disclosed under item 5.02(e) of Form §-K.

Messrs. Stephens and Heffron each received options to purchase 45,000 shares of Class A common stock
with an exercise price of $8.47, the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock on December 19, 2007.
The options to purchase will vest in three parts, with one-third vesting on each of October 31, 2008, October 31,
2009 and October 31, 2010 contingent upon the achievement of specified trading prices of the Company’s Class A
common stock. To the extent not already vested, all of the options vest on October 31, 2010 upon the achievement
of a specified trading price. The options have a seven year term.

Messrs. Stephens and Heffron each also received 15,000 shares of restricted stock vesting in three paris
with one-third of the restricted stock vesting on each of October 31, 2008, October 31, 2009 and October 31, 2010
contingent upon the achievement of specified return on equity criteria. To the extent not already vested, all of the
restricted shares will vest on October 31, 2010 upon the achievement of specified return on equity criteria.

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information regarding executive officers required by Item 10 may be found under Item 4(a) of this
report.

We have adopted the Stewart Enterprises, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “code™), a code of
ethics that applies to alt employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Controller. The code is available at the Company website where all of its public filings are available free of charge
on the same day they are filed with the SEC. The Company’s website address is www.stewartenterprises.com. Any
substantive amendments to the code, or any waivers granted for any directors or our Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer or Corporate Controller will be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K.

The remaining information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive
proxy statement relating to its 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which proxy statement will be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days afler the end of the last fiscal year.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive proxy

statement relating to its 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which proxy statement will be filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the last fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters _

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about our common stock that may be issued under equity
compensation plans as of October 31, 2007:
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Number of Securities
Remaining Available For
Future Issuance Under

Number of Securitics to be Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Issued Upon Exercisc of Exercise Price of Pians (Excluding Securities
Qutstanding Opticns, Outstanding Options, Reflected in the First
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Column) ?
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders ................... 2,507,676 L3 6.85 5,302,377
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders..... — — —
Total....ocee e ccrrcesrene, 2,507,676 b 6.85 5,302,377

(1) Includes 4,636,833 shares of our common stock under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, which are issuable as
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance shares or stock awards. This also includes 665,544
shares remaining to be granted under the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,

The remaining information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive
proxy statement relating to its 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which proxy statement will be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the last fiscal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item I3 is incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive proxy
statement relating to its 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which proxy statement will be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the last fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive proxy
statement relating to its 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which proxy statement will be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the last fiscal year.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements

The Company's conseclidated financial statements listed below have been filed as part of this report:

' Page
Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm........ccviiiiiin s 48
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Years Ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 .................. 50
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of October 31, 2007 and 2006.........ccoo el 51
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and
1 T O O SOOIt 53
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 .............. 55
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements .......cocvvrvr v s 56
(2) Financial Statement Schedule for the years ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying ACCOUNLS ......c..evvererrreeeriecercrerai e sese et sesebssae st basasis 122

All other schedules are omitted because they are not apphcable or not required, or the information appears
in the financial statements or notes thereto.

121



STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(Unaudited)
{Dollars in thousands)

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMNC COLUMND COLUMNE COLUMNF
Balance at Charged to
beginning costs and - Balance at
Description of period expenses Other changes Write-offs end of period

Current—Allowance for doubtful

accounts:
Year ended October 31, :
2007 . $ 6,635 4,188 — {2,681) $ 8,142
20006 ..o $ 6,785 2,579 (23) {2,706) 5 6,635
2005 s $ 5,518 3,77t 3 (2,507) b 6,785
Due after one year—Allowance for
doubtful accounts:
Year ended October 31,
2007 iecceceveieeeeee. § 10,888 5,568 — (5.632) $ 10,824
2006 ... $ 11350 4,216 — (4,678) b 10,888
2005 . 8 8,022 6,306 —_ (2,978) $ 11,350
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance
Year ended October 31,
2007 e 3 10,457 (1,595) — (483000 § 4032
2006 .., $ 10,220 237 — — $ 10457
2005 .. $ 9,744 476 — — $ 10220

™ This is primarily related to the write-off of both the deferred tax asset and related valuation allowance for a
worthless stock deduction for which recognition was determined to be remote in fiscal year 2007.
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Item 15(a)(3) Exhibits

31

3.2

4.1

4.2 .

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended and restated as of April 20,
2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 30, 2006)

By-laws of the Company, as amended and restated as of April 20, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 30, 2006)

See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions of the Company’s Amended and Restated Articles of Inéorporation,
as amended, and By-laws, as amended, defining the rights of holders of Class A and Class B common stock

Specimen of Class A common stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Amendment
No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 {Registration No. 33-42336) filed with the
Commission on October 7, 1991)

Rights Agreement, dated as of October 28, 1999, between Stewart Enterprises, Inc. and ChaseMellon
Shareholder Services, L.L.C. as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to the Company’s
Form 8-A dated November 3, 1999)

Amendment No, 1 to the Rights Agreement dated June 26, 2007 between Stewart Enterprises, Inc. and
Mellon Investor Services LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2007)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated November 19, 2004 by and among the Company,
Empresas Stewart-Cementerios and Empresas Stewart-Funerarias, as Borrowers, Bank of America, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer and The Other Lenders party
hereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 22, 2004) '

Indenture dated as of February 11, 2005 by and among Stewart Enterprises, Inc., the Guarantors thereunder
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, with respect to the 6.25 percent Senior Notes due 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February
11, 2005)

Form of 6.25 percent Senior Note due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Fortn 8-K dated February 11, 2005)

Indenture dated June 27, 2007 by and among Stewart Enterprises, Inc., the guarantors named therein and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, with respect to 3.125 percent Senior Convertible Notes due
2014 (including Form of 3.125 percent Senior Convertible Notes due 2014) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2007)

Indenture dated June 27, 2007 by and among Stewart Enterprises, Inc., the guarantors named therein and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, with respect to 3.375 percent Senior Convertible Notes due
2016 (including Form of 3.375 percent Senior Convertible Notes due 2016) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2007)

Registration Rights Agreement dated June 27, 2007 by and among Stewart Enterprises, Inc., the guarantors

named therein and the Initial Purchases (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2007)
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The Company hereby agrees to furnish to the Commission, upon request, a copy of the instruments which define the
rights of holders of the Company’s long-term debt. None of such instruments (other than those included as exhibits
herein) represent long-term debt in excess of 10 percent of the Company’s consolidated total assets.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans or Arrangements

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Company and its Directors and Executive Officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended October 31, 2004, filed January 11, 2005) (the “Original 2004 Form 10-K™)

Retirement Agreement by and between the Company and Kenneth C. Budde dated June 6, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 6,
20086)

Employment Agreement dated February 20, 2007 between the Company and Thomas J. Crawford
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February
21, 2007); Amendment No. I to Employment Agreement dated February 20, 2007, effective May 14, 2007,
between the Company and Thomas J. Crawford (incorporated by reference to Exhibit .10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 30, 2007)

Employment Agreement dated May 14, 2007 between the Company and Thomas M. Kitchen (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 17, 2007)

Separation Agreement dated October 11, 2005, effective Juiy 14, 2005, between the Company and Michael
K. Crane (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 0-Q for the quarter ended
July 31, 2005) A

Retirement Agreement dated October 26, 2006, effective November 2, 2006, between the Company and
Everett N. Kendrick (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 2, 2006)

Form of Stock Option Agreement between the Company and its Executive Ofﬁcers {(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Orlgmal 2004 Form 10-K) .

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement between the Company and its Exeeutive Officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Original 2004 Form 10-K)

Form of Restncted Stock Agreement under the Stewart Enterprlses Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
between the Company and its Executive Officers

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Stewart Enterprises, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan between
the Company and its Executive Officers

Purchase Agreement dated June 21, 2007 by and among Stewart Enterprises, Inc., the guarantors listed on
Schedule A thereto and the Initial Purchases (incorporated by reference to Exh:blt 10. 1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form §-K filed June 27, 2007)

Confirmation of OTC Convertible Note Hedge dated as of June 21, 2007 by and between Stewart

Enterprises, Inc. and Merrill Lynch International (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company s Current Report on Fonn 8-K filed June 27, 2007)
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10.13
10.14
10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

" Confirmation of OTC Convertible Note Hedge dated as of June 21, 2007 by and between Stewart

Enterprises, Inc. and Merrill Lynch International (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27,2007) .

Confirmation of OTC Warrant Transaction dated as of June 21, 2007 by and between Stewart Enterprises,
Inc. and Merrill Lynch Financial Markets (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2007)

Confirmation of OTC Warrant Transaction dated as of June 21, 2007 by and between Stewart Enterprises,
Inc. and Merrill Lynch Financial Markets (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s

- Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2007)

The Stewart Enterprises Employees' Retirethent Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the
1991 Registration Statement); Amendment thereto dated January 1, 1994 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.28 to the Company Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1994 (the
“1994 10-K”, Commission File No. 1-5449); and Amendment thereto dated January 1, 2002 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the 2001 10-K, Commission File No. 1-5449); Amendment thereto dated
January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the 2002 10-K, Commission File No. 1-
5449); Amendment dated September 24, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2004); Amendment thereto dated January
1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Original 2004 Form 10-K); Amendment thereto
dated March 28, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended October 31, 2005); Amendment No. 10 to the Stewart Enterprises Employees’
Retirement Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended April 30, 2006)

Stewart Enterprises Puerto Rico Employees’ Retirement Trust Summary Plan Description dated January 1,
2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of the Company’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended October 31, 2005); Amendment No. 1 dated January I, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended October 31, 2005)

1165(e) Plan Adoption Agreement related to the Stewart Enterprises Puerto Rico Employees’ Retirement
Trust, amended effective as of October 31, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended October 31, 2005)

Stewart Enterprises, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the
Company’s definitive proxy statement for the year ended October 31, 2006)

2007 Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendlx B to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement for the year ended October 31, 2006) :

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B in the Cornpany’s definitive
proxy statement for the year ended October 31, 2002); Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended October 31, 2006)

2000 Incentive Compensatlon Plan (mcorporated by reference to, Exhlblt 10.45 to the Cornpany s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2000, Commission File No. 1-5449)

- The Stewart Enterprises, Inc. Supplemental Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plan for certain highly
-compensated executives (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended July 31, 2001, Commission File No. 1-5449); Amendment No. 1 dated

January 1, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended October 31, 2005)
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1¢.24  Stewart Enterprises, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated by refetence to Exhibit
10.12 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended April 30, 2002);
Amendment No. 1 dated April 1, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended October 31, 2005) |

:

12 Calculation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
21 Subsidiaries of the Company
23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

31.1  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Thomas J. Crawford, President and
Chief Executive Officer

312 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Thomas M. Kitchen, Senior Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

32.1  Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Thomas J. Crawford, President and

Chief Executive Officer, and Thomas M. Kitchen, Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
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! : SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on December 21,
2007.
STEWART ENTERPRISES, INC.

By: _/s/ THOMAS J. CRAWFORD
Thomas J. Crawford
President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ THOMAS J. CRAWFORD President, Chief Executive Officer December 21, 2007
Thomas J. Crawford and a Director

' Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
‘ {Principal Executive Officer)
|

/s/ THOMAS M, KITCHEN Senior Executive Vice President, December 21, 2007
Thomas M. Kitchen Chief Financial Officer and a
(Principal Financial Qfficer) Director
| /sy ANGELA M. LACOUR Vice President, December 21, 2007
Angela M. Lacour Corporate Controller and
(Principal Accounting Officer) Chief Accounting Officer
/s/ FRANK B. STEWART, JR. Chairman of the Board December 21, 2007

Frank B. Stewart, Jr.

/s/ ALDEN J. McDONALD, JR. Director December 21, 2007
Alden J. McDonald, Jr.

/s/ JAMES W. McFARLAND Director December 21, 2007
James W. McFarland '

/sy RONALD H. PATRON Director December 21, 2007
Ronald H. Patron

/s MICHAEL O. READ Director December 21, 2007
Michael O. Read

/s ASHTON J. RYAN, JR, Director December 21, 2007
Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
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Corporate Officers
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President
Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Financial Officer
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Executive Vice President
President, Eastern Division

Lawrence B. Hawkins
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G. Kenneth Stephens, Jr.
Executive Vice President
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Senior Vice President of Finance
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Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing
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Senior Vice President of Corporate Development and
[nvestor Relations
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Vice President, Senior Administrative Officer
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President
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